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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors of Tai Sang Bank Limited (the 'Bank’) submit their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Bank are commercial banking and related financial services and property investment and management. The

principal activities of the Bank’s subsidiaries are shown in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively the 'Group') for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 9.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$Nil (2023: HK$Nil).

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Bank has not issued any new shares. Details of the share capital are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Bank has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

DIRECTORS
(a) Directors of the Bank
The directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are :
Mr. Patrick Ma Ching Hang, BBS, JP Mr. Ma Ching Tsun Mr. Ma Ching Yuk, SBS, JP

(Chairman)
Mr. Alfred Ma Ching Kuen Mr. Philip Ma Ching Yeung, BBS Ms. Katy Ma Ching Man (Alternate

director to Mr. Alfred Ma Ching Kuen)

Ms. Amy Ma Ching Sau (Alternate Mr. Ma Ching Cheng Mr. James Yu Man Woon*

director to Mr. Philip Ma Ching Yeung)
Mr. Aaron Tan Leng Cheng* Mr. Stephen Chung Kong Fei*

*Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 98 of the Bank's Articles of Association, all ordinary directors retire in each succeeding two years. Accordingly,
all ordinary directors remain in office.

(b) Directors of the Bank's subsidiaries

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Ma Ching Yuk, Mr. Alfred Ma Ching Kuen, Mr. Patrick Ma Ching Hang, Mr. Philip
Ma Ching Yeung and Mr. Ma Ching Tsun are also directors in subsidiaries of the Bank. There are no other directors of the subsidiaries of
the Bank.

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP'S BUSINESS

Except for the loans disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank’s subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE BANK OR ANY
SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE BANK

At no time during the year was the Bank, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors and chief executives of the Bank (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or its specified undertakings or other associated corporation.



DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts conceming the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were
entered into or existed during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

(a) Review of Business

In the financial year 2024, the Group reported a pre-tax operating profit before property revaluation loss and loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment of HK$1.06Mn, as compared to HK$4.65Mn in 2023. This represents a notable decrease, primarily attributed to the
costs associated with launching a new safe deposit centre in Whampoa in November 2024. Overall, the key contributors of the Group’s
operating income in 2024 were the net interest income and safe deposit box rental income of the Group. Additionally, the Group’s safe
deposit box rental income for the current year increased by 30% from the previous year.

During 2024, total customers’ deposits decreased by 1.3% from the end of previous year. The mix of customers’ deposits for 2024 has
shifted towards fixed deposits as a result of the increased interest rates. As at the end of 2024, fixed deposits accounted for 38.6% of the
total level of customers’ deposits, increased from the 27.8% of total customers® deposits for 2023. For both year end of 2024 and 2023,
savings accounts took up the largest proportion of the total customers’ deposits balances.

Other major source of income for the Group came from property rental income . Net property rental income decreased by 11.2% when
compared to 2023. Despite, the lackluster commercial real estate market, the occupancy rate and net property rental income were
relatively stable during 2024. The Group’s investment properties recorded a slight decrease of 0.75% in value as at the end of 2024,
resulting in the booking of property revaluation loss of HK$2.3Mn for the year 2024,

The Group continued its investment strategy in equity shares, with a focus on enhancing returns for our stakeholders. The dividend
income from equity share investments also improved in 2024 with an increase of 19.9% .

Operating expenses increased by 22.1% in 2024 as a result of the Group’s expansion of safe deposit box business by the opening of
another flagship safe deposit box centre in Whampoa, Hong Kong in mid-November 2024.

The loans and advances of the Group decreased by 8.5% during the year, mainly resulted from the full repayment by a loan customer
during the first half of 2024. Funds received from the repayment of loans had been invested in exchange fund bills, which could provide
a reasonable level of interest yield while also serve to enhance the liquidity of the Bank. The amount of surplus funds placed with the
HKMA was also maintained at a minimum.

During the year, all relevant laws and regulations were complied with. The Group’s conservative management on the latest balance sheet
mix and new expansion of business had resulted in a total capital ratio exceeding 80% and liquidity maintenance ratio exceeding 110%
as at the year-end of 2024, both of which were substantially above the statutory minimum.

The Group observes a strict customer acceptance policy. While the aim is not to provide a full range of banking services to satisfy all
customer needs, the Group is committed to deliver products and services with quality and flexibility such that solid customer
relationships are established and maintained.

As at the end of 2024, the total number of employees employed by the Group was 49. The Group operates in three locations, being the
head office in Central and safe deposit box centres in Quarry Bay and Whampoa. The Group adopts close communication between
management and the staff and places strong emphasis on operational efficiency, risk management, compliance, and sensible work-life
balance for employees. The Group will continue to adopt environmental protective measures in order to promote an environmental
friendly working environment for all employees.

(b) Principal Risks

The Group is exposed to various types of risks including credit risk, operational risk, liquidity risk, market risk, legal risk, strategic risk
and climate risk, the details of which are carried in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Different Board committee, viz.
Executive Committee, Credit Committee, Asset & Liability Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Risk Committee, arc in place to oversee the various types of risks confronted by the Bank and give directions to
management to control and mitigate these risks accordingly.



DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(c) Important Events and Future Development

The Group will remain conservative and continue to maintain its total capital and liquidity maintenance ratios at levels with appropriate
buffers above the statutory minimums to guard against any unexpected market shocks. While the Group intends to proceed with the
approved Board expansion plan by opening new safe deposit box centers, it will closely monitor the current market conditions and make
necessary adjustments to the approved plan as it is deemed appropriate by management.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in
force for the benefit of any of the directors of the Bank (whether made by the Bank or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the
Bank).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANKING (DISCLOSURE) RULES
The Bank has complied with the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

PATRICK MA CHING HANG
Chairman
HONG KONG, 27 MARCH 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
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31 December

31 December

Bt 2024 2023

Note HKS$ HKS
ASSETS
CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS 10 93,041,899 112,229,011
PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS MATURING
BETWEEN ONE AND TWELVE MONTHS 79,080,190 45,300,048
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER ACCOUNTS 11 210,485,855 227,579,897
INVESTMENT SECURITIES MEASURED AT
FVOCI

12 202,907,792 199,003,354

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 137,181,013 120,292,351
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 303,300,000 305,600,000
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16 37,418,070 22,812,490
TAX RECOVERABLE 13,523 85,206
TOTAL ASSETS 1,063,428,342 1,032,902,357
LIABILITIES
DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS 17 237,894,953 241,134,446
LEASE LIABILITIES 16 41,594,834 25,477,421
OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 18 58,805,257 41,349,873
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 19 8,544,561 9,389,354
TAX PAYABLE 9,523 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 346,849,128 317,351,094
EQUITY
SHARE CAPITAL 20 310,000,000 310,000,000
RESERVES 21 406,579,214 405,551,263
TOTAL EQUITY 716,579,214 715,551,263

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1,063,428,342

1,032,902,357

APPROVED AND AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE BY THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON 27 MARCH 2025.

ALFRED MA CHING KUEN )
) DIRECTORS
PHILIP MA CHING YEUNG )

THE NOTES ON PAGES 12 TO 78 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Note HKS$ HKS
INTEREST INCOME 5 20,289,188 19,701,469
INTEREST EXPENSE 5 (4,990,571) (3,709,284)
NET INTEREST INCOME 15,298,617 15,992,185
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6 29,589,336 24,563,822
NET OPERATING INCOME 44,887,953 40,556,007
OPERATING EXPENSES 7 (43,829,759) (35,902,506)
OPERATING PROFIT 1,058,194 4,653,501
REVALUATION DEFICIT ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES 15 (2,300,000) (2,300,000)
LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (206,747) (142,519)
(LOSS) / PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (1,448,553) 2,210,982
INCOME TAX CREDIT / (EXPENSE) 9 818,236 (392,248)

(LOSS) / PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS (630,317) 1,818,734

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME :

ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT
OR LOSS:

EQUITY INVESTMENT SECURITIES MEASURED AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME:

INCREASE IN FAIR VALUE DURING THE YEAR 21 1,742,810 1,108,070
1,742,810 1,108,070

ITEMS THAT WILL BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR

LOSS:

DEBT INVESTMENT SECURITIES MEASURED AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME:

DECREASE IN FAIR VALUE DURING THE YEAR 21 (84,542) (121,615)

(84,542) (121,615)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 1,027,951 2,805,189

THE NOTES ON PAGES 12 TO 78 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
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Note

Balance at 1 January 2024

Comprehensive income
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Change in fair value of investment
securities measured at FVOCI

21

Total comprehensive income / (loss)

Transfer and appropriation

Transfer from other properties revaluation
reserve to retained earnings 21

Total transfer and appropriation

Balance at 31 December 2024

Balance at 1 January 2023

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Change in fair value of investment
securities measured at FVOCI

21
Total comprehensive income
Transfer and appropriation
Transfer from other properties revaluation
reserve to retained earnings 21

Total transfer and appropriation

Balance at 31 December 2023

Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

R HfEEE HERRHE e
Share Other Retained
capital reserves eamings Total
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
310,000,000 4,566,963 400,984,300 715,551,263
- - (630,317) (630,317)
- 1,658,268 - 1,658,268
- 1,658,268 (630,317) 1,027,951
- (64,091) 64,091 B
- (64,091) 64,091
310,000,000 _ 6,161,140 400,418,074 716,579,214
310,000,000 3,644,599 399,101,475 712,746,074
- - 1,818,734 1,818,734
- 986,455 - 986,455
- 986,455 1,818,734 2,805,189
E (64,091) 64,091 -
- (64,091) 64,091 -
310,000,000 _ 4,566,963 400,984,300 715,551,263

THE NOTES ON PAGES 12 TO 78 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Free 2024 2023
Note HKS HKS
(R gz THAE A SRAE NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 22(2) 183,740,329 13,461,448
BREY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
UREUAAN BB R B B e DIVIDENDS RECEIVED ON EQUITY
Bt AH eSS RS INVESTMENTS MEASURED AT FVOCI
BEZER 6 1,290,365 1,075,900
B - BN PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (9,185,142) (1,365,276)
AN EEEE PURCHASE OF EQUITY INVESTMENTS
Bt AHMATE WS 2 MR MEASURED AT FVOCI
BE& N =
BRENZ B RHPEE NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (7,894,777) (289,376)
BRER FINANCIING ACTIVITIES
HEaETREHS PRINCIPAL ELEMENTS OF LEASE LIABILITIES 22(c) (2,451,575) (2,051,587)
WRER > BE R HIBH NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (2,451,575) (2,051,587)
E4 RERESIEE 2 INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 173,393,977 11,120,485
PRLARZ RS RERH CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
SIE B4R 1 JANUARY 148,443,132 137,322,647
RLRANBZES SR CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
HEH B4R 31 DECEMBER 22(b) 321,837,109 148,443,132
SERAZIETEAGS THE NOTES ON PAGES 12 TO 78 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED

MEmRs —Hs53 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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2.1.2 FITRESEERSRBMMERA 2R
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RE. REFEIRRBHEANT TS AL R
RAMERRRRZEZEFERESE,

General Information

The principal activities of Tai Sang Bank Limited (the “Bank”™) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group™) are the provision of banking and related financial
services, and property investment and management.

The Bank is an authorized institution incorporated in Hong Kong., The address of
its registered office is 130-132 Des Vocux Road Central, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in units of Hong Kong
dollars (HKS), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2025.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policics have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Tai Sang Bank Limited have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income and investment properties at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

2.1.1 Adoption of new HKFRS and amendments

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the
first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2024:

- Classification of Liabilitics as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

- Non-current Liabilities with Covenants - amendments to HKAS 1
- Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - amendments to HKFRS 16

- Supplier Finance Arrangements - amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

2.1.2 New and amended standards not yet adopted by the Group

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published
that are not mandatory for 31 December 2024 reporting period and have
not been early adopted by the Group. These standards and interpretations
are not expected to have a material impact on the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foresecable future transactions.

12
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Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank's statement of financial position (Note 26), the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses
(Note 2.12). The results of subsidiaries are accounted by the Bank on
the basis of dividend received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
when the right to receive payment is established.

There are no restrictions, or other major impediments on the transfer of
funds or regulatory capital between the Group companies.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for all instruments measured at
amortised cost and debt securities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets have been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan commitment fees for
loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with
related direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate on the loan. Commission and fees arising from
negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of, a transaction for a
third party - such as the arrangement of the acquisition of shares or
other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses - are recognised
on completion of the underlying transaction.

Other operating income (including rental income from investment
properties and safe deposit box rental) is recognized when services
are provided.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL);

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or

- Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are
described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a
financial liability from the issuer's perspective, such as loans,
government and corporate bonds and trade receivables purchased
from clients in factoring arrangement without recourse.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depend on:

(2) the Group's business model for managing the asset; and

(b) the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments into
one of the following three measurement categories:

- Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest (‘SPPI’), and that are not designated at
FVPL, are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount of
these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance
recognised and measured as described in note 3.1.4. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest
income’ using the effective interest rate method.

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the assets, where the assets' cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are
not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised cost
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in ‘Net Investment Income’. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in ‘Interest Income’ using
effective interest rate method.

14
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- Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented in
the profit or loss statement within 'Net trading income' in the
period in which it arises, unless it arises from debt
instruments that were designated at fair value or which are
not held for trading, in which case they are presented
separately in Net Investment Income'. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in ‘Interest Income’ using
the effective interest rate method.

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group's objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash
flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of
these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading
purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’
business model and measured at FVPL. Factors considered by the
Group in determining the business model for a group of assets
include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets
were collected, how the asset's performance is evaluated and
reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and
managed and how managers are compensated. An example is the
liquidity portfolio of assets, which is held by the Group as part of
liquidity management and is generally classified within the hold to
collect and sell business model. Securities held for trading are
held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or are
part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking. These securities are classified in the
‘other’ business model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
‘SPPT test’). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement, i.e. interest includes only consideration for
the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and
a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement.
Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement,
the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting
period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.
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(ii)

(iii)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a
contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic
ordinary share.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the Group's management has elected,
at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Group's policy is to
designate equity investments as FVOCI when those investments are held
for purposes other than to generate investment returns. When this
election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends, when
representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in the “Net
Trading Income’ line in the statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses
(ECL") associated with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI and with the exposure arising from loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts. The Group recognises a loss
allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of
ECL reflects:

- An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;.

- The time value of money; and

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past event, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual
cash flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the Group assesses
whether or not the new terms are substantially different of the original
terms. The Group does this by considering, among others, the following
factors:

- If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification
merely reduces the contractual cash flows to amounts the borrower is
expected to be able to pay.

- Whether any substantial new terms are iniroduced, such as profit
share/equity-based return that substantially affects the risk profile of
the loan.

¥

Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in
financial difficult.

- Significant change in the interest rate.

- Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

- Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that
significantly affect the credit risk associated with the loan.

16
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Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Modification of loans (Continued)

(iv)
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If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the
original financial asset and recognises a 'new' asset at fair value and
recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of
renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial
recognition of impairment calculation purposes, including for the
purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred. However, the Group also assesses whether the new
financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial
recognition, especially in circumstances whether the renegotiation
was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally
agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also
recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss on derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or
modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash
flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or
loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

The impact of modifications of financial assets on the expected
credit loss calculation is discussed in note 3.1.10.

Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets have
expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i) the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group
has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities and transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards. These transactions are
accounted for as 'pass through' transfers that result in derecognition
if the Group:

(a) has no obligation to make payments unless it collects
equivalent amounts from the assets;

(b) is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

(c) has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the assets
without material delay.
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2.6 Financial liabilities

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are classified
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for:

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities held for
trading (e.g. short positions in the trading book) and other
financial liabilities designated as such at initial recognition.
Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss are presented partially in other
comprehensive income (the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is not
attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to
market risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of
change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such a
presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in
which case the gains and losses attributable to changes in the
credit risk of the liability are also presented in profit or loss;

- Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets
which did not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing
involvement approach applies. When the transfer of financial
asset did not qualify for derecognition, a financial liability is
recognised for the consideration received for the transfer. In
subsequent periods, the Group recognises any expense incurred
on the financial liability; when continuing involvement approach
applies; and

- Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.

(ii) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished (i.e.
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders of debt
instruments with substantially different terms, as well as substantial
modifications of the terms of existing financial liabilities, are
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. The terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10%
different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. In addition, other qualitative
factors, such as the currency that the instrument is denominated in,
changes in the type of interest rate, new conversion features attached
to the instrument and change in covenants are also taken into
consideration. If an exchange of debt instruments or modification of
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the
exchange or modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability
and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.

18
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Financial gnarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of:

- The amount of the loss allowance; and

- The premium received on initial recognition less income
recognised in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the amount
of loss allowance (calculated as described in note 3.1.4). The Group
has not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market
interest rate, or that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or
issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and seftle the
liability simultaneously.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank's functional currency
and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign
currency and classified as FVOCI are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the securities
and other changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in the investment revaluation
reserve in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Bank premises represent those properties held for own use and are treated
as finance lease since the costs of land and building elements of the
leasehold properties cannot be allocated reliably at the inception of the
lease. Bank premises are stated at valuation made in prior years less
accumulated depreciation charge and impairment losses.

On adoption of HKAS 16 entities that measured property, plant and
equipment based on revaluation performed prior to 30 September 1995
were exempted from the requirement to make regular revaluations
prospectively, provided that these entities did not measure their property,
plant and equipment using the revaluation model subsequent to 1995.

Effective from 30 September 1995, no further revaluations of bank premises
have been carried out. The Group has adopted the transitional provision in
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16, which provides exemption from the need to
make regular revaluation of bank premises.

The revalued amount made prior to 30 September 1995 became a deemed
cost as the revaluation date for subsequent measurement under HKAS 16.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Bank premises Bank premises are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Portion of the bank premises value
attributable to the land element is depreciated over
the lease term, while portion attributable to the
building element is depreciated on a straight line
basis over the remaining portion of the useful life.

Leasehold
improvements

Remaining portion of the useful life of the bank
premises.

Furniture, fixtures
& equipment

Fumiture, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation for fumniture,
equipment and fixtures at owned premises is
calculated at 10% per annum on a reducing balance
basis after an initial provision of 20% on cost in the
year of purchase. Depreciation for fixtures at leased
premises is calculated on straight line basis over the
remaining protion of the lease.

20



2 EAEHBOR B30
2.10 pR - SEMEBH (8D

2.11

PEHEREHIR - REZRREERETER
ERRE BT o WS HEEHGER - BEAE
e b MU TR N 2 BElR
E{EARRE R FIRENF - B E EHOs T
-

AR AR E B R AT U B R H
RREEA I BT C EE W E8E - BE 2
DA OV R A SRR B B S R EL B
EMEREESE -

HE 2 BRI RSt R B L EFTE AR ERNR
T2 ELBE AR -

BRVIR

FHr & BN Z A E e AT A (R
HSWBABIFE A E S E &R YHEHT
EREEDR -

R EE RN B AR 2 33 A
N

BB HE T B A R T S BT A
BB EBEFR R Z fhET AT EEANR - 0K
BRAAFHSERATEH 2 st A PREZE
FHBE > SN fEETTEERERA - PIARERE
e/ 2 RS 2 B SR SR T
AT - RS E R RS
A th Z Wi E R TT R E -

B A% B RGO FI A R E R R
RACRFER 3 KT L BRA R T Gt Rl
AeEAKEZIREMERA © &AL KA BES]
iR - WERBEREYFEREEN - BZRHRH
YBEE A RO - HDUATEEERE - AT
HHAMEE R REE AL BIEEA
REHEW R -

AFEEZ S EHEEAZARER -

MGEYFEEERE R - RERERIERE
FE - TR E S P H 2 A PEERIR
hEE E2A - BER—HERY¥E AR
BT EE B R AR - AR Sat 2
E165R "W - RERFRE"  FHAZIREE
BN HEER Z 2N ERE D A M2
s o BEAEEERSYEEATE B
ISESURERER - BRI SRR
Z PAERTIRE . B8R -

Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.10

2.1

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the consolidated
Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value
assessed by professional valuers on the basis of open market value. If
information of open market value is not available, alternative valuation
methods are used such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with valuation standards on properties published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The item is stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to generate
economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of premises
under HKAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment". However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the
gain is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income up to the
amount previously debited.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment and are
teviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the country where the company's subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, revaluation of bank premises and tax
losses carried forward. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward are
recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which these losses can be utilised.
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(©)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and matemity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

Group companies offer defined contribution mandatory provident
funds to all eligible employees of the Group. The funds are
provided through payments to trustee-administered funds.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Long service payments

The Group’s eligible employees who have completed a required
number of years of service to the Group are eligible for long
service payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
in the event of the termination of their employment, provided that
such termination meets the circumstances specified in the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance.

In June 2022, the Hong Kong Government enacted the
Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”) which will be effective from 1 May 2025 (the
“Transition Date”). Under the Amendment Ordinance, any
accrued benefits attributable to the employer’s mandatory
confributions under mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Benefits”) of an entity would no longer be cligible to offset
against its obligations on long service payment (“LSP”) for the
portion of the LSP accrued on or after the Transition Date. There
is also a change in the calculation basis of last monthly wages for
the portion of the LSP accrued before the Transition Date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications
of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong” (the “Guidance™) which provides clarified and detailed
guidance on the accounting considerations relating to the
abolition of the offsetting mechanism. The Guidance clarified that
following the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance, LSP is no
longer a ‘simple type of contributory plans’ to which the practical
expedient had been intended to apply.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future long
service payments expected to be made. The provision is based on
the best estimate of the probable future payments which have
been eamed by the employees from their service to the Group to
the end of the reporting period.
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2.16

2.17

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if that party controls, jointly controls or has
significant influence over the Group; is a member of the same financial
reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries; is
an associate or a joint venture of the Group; is a key management
personnel of the Group or parents, or where the Group and the party are
subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than not
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks and
central bank, placements with banks and exchange fund papers with
original maturitics of three months or less, that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group. For leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and to
treat these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

- Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable

- Variable lease payment that are based on a index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

- Amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees

. The exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonable certain to exercise that option

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option, and

- Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Depending on the nature of the underlying asset and the terms and
conditions of the lease, a lessee may be able to refer to a rate that is
readily observable as a starting point when determining its
incremental borrowing rate for a lease (for example, the rate that a
lessee has paid, or would pay, to borrow money to purchase the type
of asset being leased, or the property yield when determining the
discount rate to apply to property leases).

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent
third-party financing received as a starting point, where possible,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since the receipt
of third party financing. Where recent third-party financing does
not exist, the Group uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for the leases and makes
adjustments for factors specific to the lease. Lease payments are
allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received,

- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.18 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases with low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value leases comprise computer equipment and small items of office
furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial Risk Management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities
involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of
risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial business, and the
operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The
Group's aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and
return and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

The Group's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these
risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information systems.
The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect
changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.

Risk management policies are approved by the Board of Directors. Financial
risks are identified, evaluated and managed in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The Board provides written policies or guidelines
covering areas, such as credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. In
addition, internal audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment.

The major types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational
risks. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate and other price risks.

3.1 Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty causes a financial loss to the
Group by failing to discharge an obligation. Adverse changes in the
economy, or in the health of a particular customer, could result in losses
that are different from those provided for at the end of reporting period.
Management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk.
Credit exposures arise principally in loans and advances. There is also
credit risk in off-balance sheet financial arrangements such as loan
commitments. The credit risk management and control are performed by
all responsible staff under close supervision by senior management.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1

Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.1 Credit risk management

The Group manages concentrations of credit risk wherever they are
identified — in particular, to individual counterparties and groups, and
to industries. The Group controls the levels of credit risk it undertakes
by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one
borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to industry segments. Such
risks are monitored on a continuous basis and subject to periodic or ad
hoc reviews, when considered necessary.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the
ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and
capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits
where appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also mitigated in part by
obtaining collateral and corporate and personal guarantecs from the
borrowers.

(a) Collateral

The Group implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral. The principal collateral types for loans and
advances are :

- Mortgages over residential and commercial properties;
- Charges over equities; and
- Pledges over deposits.

Loans and advances to customers are generally secured. In
addition, the Group will seek additional collateral from the
counterparty as soon as impairment indicators are noticed for the
relevant individual loans and advances.

(b) Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer as required. Guaraniees and standby
letters of credit - which represent irrevocable assurances that the
Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannot
meet its obligations to third parties carry the same credit risk as
loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit - which are
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer
authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Group up to a
stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions - are
secured by the underlying collaterals provided by the borrowers.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees or
letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to
extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the
likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments,
as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon
customers maintaining specific credit standards.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1
3.1.2

Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancements
The Group
Maximum exposure 2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$

Credit risk exposures relating to on-
balance sheet assets are as follows:
Balances with banks and central bank 8,655,055 12,719,691
Placements with banks 161,047,641 142,300,048
Investment debt securities measured at
FvOCI 179,715,020 177,553,392
Loans and advances to customers :

Loans to individuals :

- Overdrafts 6,918,393 5,789,708

Loans to corporate entities :

- Investment companies 189,401,587 210,337,814

- Small and medium size

enterprises (SMEs) 6,992,265 6,192,308

Credit risk exposures relating to off-
balance sheet items are as follows:

- Loan commitments and other

credit related liabilities 15,903,763 5,099,736

At 31 December 568,633,724 559,992,697

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the
Group at 31 December 2024 and 2023, without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet
assets, the exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts as
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Management is confident in its ability to continue to control and sustain
minimal exposure of credit risk to the Group resulting from its loan and
advances portfolio based on the following :

- 100% of the loans and advances portfolio is categorised in the top grade
of the internal rating system (2023 : 100%);

- Mortgage loans and properties investment loans, which represent the
majority of the loans and advances portfolio, are backed by collateral;

- 100% of the loans and advances portfolio is considered to be neither past
due nor impaired (2023 : 100%); and

- The Group has a stringent selection process in granting loans and
advances.

Credit risk mitigation, collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group uses a variety of techniques to reduce the credit risk arising from
its lending and money market activities. Enforceable legal documentation
establishes the Group's direct, irrevocable and unconditional recourse to any
collateral, security or other credit enhancements provided.
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Credit risk (Continued)
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3.1.2 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other
credit enhancements (Continued)

Credit risk mitigation, collateral and other credit enhancements

BAUR 31 it il B A W5 B o FTr A 4B B LR

(Continued)

The table below describes the nature of collateral held and their

e financial effect by class of financial asset:
AR HEEGERE—RRERZGETF Balances and These exposures are generally considered to be
EES ZHEEmMEE A REERRE - It placements with low credit risk due to the nature of the
R TE — N R - banks counterparties. Collateral is generally not
sought on these balances.
FERCR R TR EE T EREESRE Balances with These exposures are the outstanding balances at
T30H HEIIMNEES B FE L2456k central bank the Hong Kong exchange fund settlement
f B IS - RS S FE M account with Hong Kong Monetary Authority,
g SRR AESEBBEE which are unsecured. They are considered to be
HEE - of very low credit risk due to the nature of the
counterparty.
DI EEE HEREEERE S ESERERRE Investment debt These exposures comprise solely of investments
HEHHS BETSITZIMNERESER M securities in exchange fund bills issued by the Hong Kong
ahEt AHAM THEBRTEZMEBWHE BEIE measured at government and are considered to be very low
el eyl (EERE - INEESEB DURTE FVOCI credit risk due to the nature of the issuer.
NEERE  HERET- Exchange fund bills are issued on unsecured
# basis.
BERGEK ISR RIERBHIEH M ALS Loans and These exposures are secured, partially secured
FEEZSZENM S BEE advances or unsecured depending on the type of collateral
O DL H SIS - 32 and type of facilities offered to customers. The
EHLEEETEYE it major types of collateral taken include
e Ky AR o A2ENF]EEAE residential properties, other properties, bank
{RIE(SEFEEF « 120244128 31 deposits and shares. Personal guarantees are
B » EEBERZEHFLEETT100% also obtained by the Group for credit
(20234 : 100%) - enhancement. As at 31 December 2024, the
collateral coverage of loans and advances to
customers is 100% (2023: 100%).
ARAEN IR E BB R B B Contingent The components and nature of contingent
RIE BERIENT RS - AT RE liabilities and liabilities and commitments are disclosed in
FH A E AT AU 2 B SR commitments Note 25. Regarding the commitments that are

B EERNSXACHERRE
B BUWEIFSETERAZER
» Wi SRS EEN RS
REAGEEER - 120244124
318 » RAEBERRTE ZHEHEE
RHTIA100% (20234 : #B3F
100%) ©

unconditionally cancellable without prior notice,
the Group would withdraw the credit facilities
extended to borrowers in case their credit
quality deteriorates.  Accordingly, these
commitments do not expose the Group to
significant credit risk. As at 31 December 2024,
the collateral coverage of contingent liabilities
and commitments is over 100% (2023: over
100%)

While the credit risk of balances with central bank is considered to be
very low, as stated in the above analysis, the credit risk, expected
credit loss measurement and loss allowances of loans and advances,
investment debt securities measured at FVOCI, contingent liabilities
and commitments, balances and placements with banks and
investment debt securities measured at FVOCI are analysed in detail
from note 3.1.3 to note 3.1.8.

WP ESHRATR - I RERITROAZ (SRR
BRFR(E - RHIEES. 1. 32 MIEE3. 1. 8 Gt
B BAAFEE B B AR MRS
W KA B - RRAEFRIE R BRI
FEIEMCHZ EHRMR - FERIRA ERIAKE
{% o
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3.1 {EERBD 3.1 Credit risk (Continued)
3.1.3 EFBOX ~ $MTERIFE U A PRIE R  3.1.3 Loans and advances, placements with banks and investment debt
BHWRhE A K fhrS e By sig securities measured at FVOCI
BFEBGER - SRITE TR EUAFEHEAE Loans and advances, placements with banks and investment debt
HE#EEE AHMMsT SR s IT SRS 4 securities measured at FVOCI are summarised as follows :
s o
< FHEICroup 2024461251 31 20234E12 3180
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
FEH BB FRARIH SRR
Neither past due Neither past due
nor impaired nor impaired
HK$ HKS$
ZERER Loans and advances 203,312,245 222,319,830
SRATIEISEHRR Placements with banks 161,047,641 142,300,048
AFEESEH  Investment debt
HEFEzF AHA4T  securities measured at
AU BB FVOCT
e 179,715,020 177,553,392
20244 F220234E12H31 8 » Wi EEiHE There were no loans and advances, placements with banks and
RBEZ S BEIRTTRIZEIRR RN TE investment debt securities measured at FVOCI that were past due but
HET B H S8 A isas 2 i5s not impaired nor loans and advances that were impaired at 31
BRSSO - B5E December 2024 and 2023. The credit quality of the portfolio of loans
WIEIE B I E R S E R ARTT B (= and advances and placements with banks that were neither past due nor
B L e P ER P 2 SR STAR 2 St s impaired was of satisfactory grading by reference to the internal rating
BE . system adopted by the Group.
RN E AR R E P S HR T EE During the year, the Group did not obtain any assets by taking
{EAIEEE (20234 © £]) « FA20244E12831H possession of collateral held as security (2023 : Nil). The Group has
EEIEUCE A EE (20234F © fE) - no repossessed assets as at 31 December 2024 (2023 : Nil).
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1

Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.4 Expected credit loss measuremnet

HKFRS 9 outlines a 'three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in
credit quality since initial recognition as summarized below:

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in 'Stage 1' and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.

If a significant increase in credit risk (SICR') since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to 'Stage
2' but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument
is then moved to 'Stage 3'.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that
result from default events possible within the next 12 months.
Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on
expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with HKFRS 9
is that it should consider forward-looking information.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those
financial assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition. Their
ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

The 'three-stage' model for impairment based on changes in credit quality
under HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets) is summarized in the following table:

12 8 A FRE AR

12-month expected credit losses

risk since initial recognition)

BEEFRRTIER AR

Lifetime expected credit losses

1B Y)Y X1 E
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
( B VIHARER LASR S F AR S R
(¥HaHER) s> (BEEHBED
(initial recognition) (Significant increase in credit (Credit-impaired assets)

EEFEATIERER

Lifetime expected credit losses

TEIRIRE B B iR e B OSRA T BRI
EEE - SRR Z B e (RS T

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in addressing
the requirements of the standard are discussed below:
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
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3.1.5
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Credit risk (Continued)

Expected credit loss measuremnet (Continued)

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in
addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a
significant increase in credit risk when one or more of the
following qualitative or backstop criteria have been met:

Qualitative criteria:
For retail mortgages or loans, if the borrower meets one or more of

the following criteria:

- In short-term forbearance
- Direct debit cancellation
- Extension to the terms granted

- Previous arrears within the last 12 months

For corporate lendings and treasury instruments, if the borrower is
on the significant financial difficulty and the lending meets one or
more of the following criteria:

- Significant adverse changes in business, financial and/or
economic conditions in which the borrower operates

- Actual or expected forbearance or restructuring

- Actual or expected significant adverse change in operating
results of the borrower

-  Significant change in collateral value which is expected to
increase the risk of default

- Early signs of cashflow/liquidity problems such as delay in
servicing of loans

Backstop

A backstop is applied and the financial instrument considered to
have experienced a significant increase in credit risk if the
borrower is more than 30 days past due on its contractual
payments.

The assessment of SICR incorporates forward-looking information
and is performed at annual credit assessment of each loan/lending
and at the end of financial year for all financial instruments held by
the Group. The criteria used to identify SICR are monitored and
reviewed periodically for appropriateness by the Group.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which is
fully aligned with the definition of credit-impaired, when it meets
one or more of the following criteria:

Quantitative criteria
The bomrower is more than 90 days past due on its contractual
payments.



3 BB ()

31
3.1.5

3.1.6

fE SRR (D
MR EL S8 P R IR 2 TR ()

BN E B DUERKAIERRE - RIS AR
EERUBEEE  REIEE

- ERAEDEHEIE
- ERAAR A
- ERANEREE TR ALIR 2R

- ERAZB R ARG
- ERABRRR 2 ENERBUKF

itk EA R EEfAE SR TR » BB
WS R E TR 2 BOER K -
BAERCH IO NS E 2 TRIME
BT RIBE T RHRGIIR(PD) - BAER
#(CI (EAD) R B4R KR (LGD) Z I RIER YT -

sHREHERARE - PEREZRY

g ARRE AR REEINURRER
BESEEHRE - AEEEHAEZRESD
FILN12{8 A B (A7 0 < TS AT
BB - S FHRAREBOBIRPD)
~ BEEMR I (EAD) BB 4JRSR(LGD) =
FEZFBIBR R - HMERDT -

- BARPREISERAERIL2E A SR
ERIERFES - SEBTHEAREZT
fetk (P B RERFEZEERN 5]
R) e

- BORBRMCIZSE - ERRIMEARER
{ERIERFFEUNS - EROTAENR - ARE
FERUENT < %1 -

- BEIES R AARMNEORORERE
REREFRZES - REBXBHF B
BRI FRAERIERF » DURERGEE
HAti{E RS R Z TR > BRERK
RAFTAFR -

AEEEEHTARRS R {0 BEgOSE
EEEZBONR - BORKRMEORR
MO - REEEFIHEAERL - AEE#E=
FAFLHTR B E H AN - FEIERE
Kt E P A TR AR AR
HE -

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.5 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

Qualitative criteria:

The borrower meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates the
borrower is in significant financial difficulty. These are instances where:

- The borrower is insolvent

- There are cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower
- The borrower is in breach of loan covenants or conditions

- The borrower is probable to initiate bankruptcy proceedings
- The borrower's competitive position has deteriorated

- The borrower is downgraded below investment grade level

The criteria listed above have been applied to all financial instruments
held by the Group and are consistent with the definition of default used
for internal credit risk management purposes. The default definition has
been applied consistently to model the Probability of Default (PD),
Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss given Default (LGD) throughout
the Group’s expected loss calculations.

3.1.6 Measuring ECL - Explanation of assessment process

The Group assesses the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) individually for
each financial asset. The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (12M)
or Lifetime basis depending on whether a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is
considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit losses arc the
discounted product of the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at
Default (EAD), and Loss Given default (LGD), defined as follows:

- The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its
financial obligation (as per "Definition of default and credit-
impaired" above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD), or over
the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

- EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the
time of default, over the next 12 months (12M EAD) or over the
remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

- Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Group's expectation of the
extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of
counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of
collateral or other credit support.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each
future month and for each individual exposure. These three components
are multiplied together and discounted back to the reporting date and
summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original
effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.
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3.1.6

3.1.7
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Credit risk (Continued)

Measuring ECL - Explanation of assessment process (Continued)

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop
on each exposure from the point of initial recognition throughout the
lifetime of each loan. The maturity profile is based on historical
observed data and is estimated individually based on the Group's
knowledge of each loan.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the
expected payment profile, which varies by each loan.

The 12-month and lifetime 1.GDs are determined based on the factors
which impact the recoveries made post default. These vary according
to each loan exposure.

- For secured products, this is primarily based on collateral type
and projected collateral wvalues, historical discounts to
market/book values due to forced sales, time to repossession and
recovery costs observed.

- For unsecured products, LGD's arc typically set at each loan,
which are influenced by collection strategies, including
contracted debt sales and price.

ECL measurement

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL forward-looking
macroeconomic information, such as property price index, is
incorporated as part of risk parameters estimation. The Group has
regularly reference to macro-forecast data and expert judgement to
ensure that relevant factors could be taken into consideration in the
ECL calculation.

As the Group's loan portfolio consists of limited number of borrowers
that are of different nature and background, the economic variables
and their associated impact on the PD, EAD and LGD of each
exposure vary. Judgment on individual loans of such factors has been
applied in this process. Each individual loan exposure is analysed
based on the historical records and future outlooks which are
applicable to each exposure on a case by case basis.

As with any economic forecast, the projections and likelihoods of
occurrence are subject to a degree of inherent uncertainty and
therefore the actual outcomes may be significantly different to those
projected. The Group considers these forecasts to represent its best
estimate of the possible outcomes.
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ERER Credit grade
RERY Performing

ARTM4EEHE Gross carrying amount
FEHEAA%%EE  ECL allowance

ClEE v Credit grade

FIR R Performing

RRIFI4RER Gross carrying amount
THEA(E i %E#  ECL allowance

(Z) FoEKiE

ElEE Credit grade
RELRIF Performing

B [ 4R AH Gross carrying amount
HEHHSAEA%ERH  ECL allowance

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.7 ECL measurement (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk — Financial instruments
subject to impairment

The following tables contain the analysis of the credit risk
exposure of financial instruments for which are subject to ECL
assessment. The gross carrying amount of financial assets below
also represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on

these assets.

(a) Loans and advances to customers and accrued interest

2024
A FRRMRE: ECL staging
SBIRER 2B EB3MEE
REAFNE BEEREE BECHE MATREMEA
A% STk S PERRL RENEHRE st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit-
12-month ECL  Lifetime ECL.  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS$
203,600,123 - - - 203,600,123
203,600,123 - - - 203,600,123
2023
FiEFAR%MEE: ECL staging
1R 2B I
ERFNE SEEINE  EEEINRE MATREMEA
Jiiki VS -HlESEEE =S SRS BRESSHRE imet
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit:
12-month ECL.  Lifetime ECL.  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$S HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS
222,678,211 - - - 222,678,211
222,678,211 - - - 222678211
(b) Loan commitments
2024
FHfaFAHRKMB. ECL staging
BImE 2R IPEEL
LEAFE BEFIEE  BETINER RATREEM
2k P S WiEREL ERAREA RENSRRE met
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit-
12-month ECL.  Lifetime ECL.  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
15,903,763 - - - 15,903,763
15,903,763 - - - 15,903,763
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(Z) SERKRAE(M)

ERER
RELREF

AR AR
G RERER

Credit grade
Performing

Gross carrying amount

ECL allowance

(W) FRIBURISR B BRI SR B B LR

VTR Credit grade
RIS Performing

AR 4a%E Gross carrying amount
FHA{EHES#EHE  ECL allowance
ERE& Credit grade
FHEHF Performing

MRET 4B Gross carrying amount
TAHfER{E&#EH  ECL allowance
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.7 ECL measurement (Continued)

(b) Loan commitments (Continued)
2023
FHEF#E%EE ECL staging
BB --y) SH3MmEL
12EABUE  BEFOHE  BETITE MACSEME
RIRE  HERA#EE  SERREK BENSERE Mzt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit-
12-month ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
5,099,736 - B - 5,099,736
5,099,736 - - - 5,099,736
(c) Balances and placements with banks and accrued interest
2024
T FAEAME, ECL staging
S1RE: B2EL BIwE
L2EABUHE BEFRNE  BEFONE MACREREH
Rk  HfEAE#K  SifEERK RENSERE st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit-
12-month ECL.  Lifetime ECL.  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS HKS HKS
167,543,625 - - - 167,543,625
167,543,625 - - - 167,543,625
2023
FUEASARE, ECL staging
BIRE SREY SIMmE
LEAFSIE SEFHE RECIEE BAEREMA
R#EX  HEA#ES  HEAEE EEVSRRE Mzt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit-
12-month ECL.  Lifetime ECL.  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS

148,180,822

- - 148,180,822

148,180,822

- - 148,180,822
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ER%S&& Credit grade
IR Performing
R EI4EEH Gross carrying amount
fHfA(EEE%#4  ECL allowance
ERER Credit grade
RE R Performing
AR 4E4E Gross carrying amount
THHA(EFE4##  ECL allowance
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Credit risk (Continued)
3.1.7 ECL measurement (Continued)

(d) Investment debt securities measured at FYOCI

2024

Fi{EFEHRsRE: ECL staging

B1MBEL B2REEE BImEL
L2fEATEHE BEFMIR  BETFIHE BACREER
A% pERRk  BEARX RENSERE g
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit-
12-month ECL  Lifetime ECL.  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
179,715,020 - - - 179,715,020
179,715,020 - - - 179,715,020
2023
% MEEL ECL staging
B1MmE V)12 BIBE
12fEATNHE  SETONRE  EETICEE MACTREMEA
A% pEEEE  BERER RENSRRE kst
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit-
12-month ECL.  Lifetime ECL.  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
177,553,392 - - - 177,553,392
177,553.392 - - - 177,553,392
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The Group's policies regarding obtaining collateral have not
significantly changed during the reporting period and there has
been no significant change in the overall quality of the collateral
held by the Group since the prior period.

The Group’s financial assets that are secured have sufficiently
safe “loan to value” (LTV) ratios, which result in no loss
allowance being recognised in accordance with the Group’s
expected credit loss model.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.7 ECL measurement (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance for the
Group include the following items:

(i) Mortgage collateral valuations; and

(ii) Listed share collateral valuations.

Set out below are the changes to the ECL as at 31 December 2024 that
would result from reasonably possible changes in these parameters
from the actual assumptions used in the Group's economic variable
assumptions (for example, the impact on ECL of each of upward or
downward movements in collateral valuations):

_ YrRiRBEWE M Mortgage collateral valuations

-20% A% No change +20%

TSGR A0

Listed share collateral valuations
A% No change +10%

-10%

3.1.8 Loss allowance

The loss allowance can be impacted by a variety of factors, including;

- Transfers between ECL stages due to financial instruments
experiencing significant increases or decreases of credit risk
or becoming credit-impaired in the period, and the
consequent step up or step down between 12-month and
Lifetime ECL;

- Additional allowances for new financial instruments
recognised during the period, as well as releases for
financial instruments de-recognised in the period;

- Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs,
EADs and LGDs in the period, arising from regular credit
assessments;

- Financial assets derecognized during the period and write-
offs of allowances related to assets that were written off
during the period.

The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance
between the beginning and the end of the annual period:
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H) EBBUK

2024461 H 1 B Zi8%%HE

BREFSERE B

BAURERE - BERRERREY
W22 ST
AN IR SREE

20244E12 A 31 HZ B RbE

202341 B 1H 28K B

B AEAIS R 2 8
B - BORAR RN
MOz &5
AR R SR

202341231 HZ BB

(Z) FOPOKE

20244E1 A 1 B 2 E&RH

S AEHTR R
B2
TEAREAAER LR 2 SRIEE

2024412 31 H Z 85888

Loss allowance as at 1

January 2024
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2024

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2023
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2023

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2024

Transfer between ECL stages
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2024

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.8 Loss allowance (Continued)

(a) Loans and advances to customers

IR S2PmES HIME
Stage 1 Stagf. 2 Stagﬁ MAE®E
{ERBEN
EAFEH BEFRNE BEEFIHE SRIRE
fBHAX HEARARR WitE H#%k Purchased
12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- ¢ Eqd
ECL ECL ECL impaired Total
HKS HKS HKS$S HKS HKS
FIRE H2mE HIEEL
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 HAESRE
ERWEN
LEAFN BAFNNE BEFRNR SRR HE
BH#ER mEARR WfE AR Purchased
12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- ' Eqd
ECL ECL ECL impaired Total
HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HKS
(b) Loan commitments
S1PEEL B BIPEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 MADRE
A EEEN
L2ERRN ®EFAME BEFINE 2 SERE
fER#E% B AR% #iE AR Purchased
12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- et
ECL ECL ECL impaired Total
HKS HKS$S HKS HKS HKS
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Loss allowance as at 1
January 2023

Transfer between ECL stages
Changes in PDs/1.GDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2023

R) FEEREBRRYOH

2024481 H 1 H 2 Bk fms

RK AR~ TS

IBAHEE ~ BRBARRIEN
WO 2 S
TERBHNE I RER 2 SR E

20244F12A 31 A Z i85

2023E1 H 1H Z KM

REEFISER - #i%

MO R

AR R SR E

20234 12H 31 H 2 8484

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2024
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LLGDs/EADs
Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2024

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2023
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2023

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.8 Loss allowance (Continued)

(b) Loan commitments (Continued)

1R SE2PREY 3MmER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 MAESE
fEHRRER
DREABY ERFINE ERTFANE  SRRE
BRRAK MERAKL H{BFA#EK  Purchased
12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- st
ECL ECL ECL impaired Total
HKS HKS$S HKS$ HKS HKS$
(c) Balances and placements with banks
S B2ABE BIBE:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 MAES4E
{1 FL B RS
REAEY BEFINE BEFNNE 2 SERE
BA#EL #ERAEE  #EAME  Purchased
12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- R
ECL ECL ECL impaired Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
B1REE -yl BIRE:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 RATRE
R RBEN
REAEN REFINE BESANE 2 SERE
BR#L HMERA#%  #3RA#%  Purchased
12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- §EEF
ECL ECL ECL impaired Total
HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS
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Loss allowance as at 1
January 2024

Transfer between ECL stages
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2024

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2023
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2023

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.8 Loss allowance (Continued)

(d) Investment debt securitics measured at FVOCI

E1E SEMREY B3
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 MACS®E
fEFBE
REAFN EAFINE BASEHRE 2 LSWRE
EiE-ES T EREE S B@H#%  Purchased
12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- - E1
ECL ECL ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS
H1PEEE W) I
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 MAER4E
TR
EAEY BESINE RESENE 2 SRRE
BRALX HEREAR  WMEM#AR  Purchased
12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- st
ECL ECL ECL impaired Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1

3.1.9

3.1.10

42

Credit risk (Continued)

‘Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when
it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include: (i)
ceasing enforcement activity and (ii) where the Group’s
recovery method is foreclosing on collateral and the value of
the collateral is such that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. However, there were no such assets
being written off during the year ended 31 December 2024 and
31 December 2023.

Modification of financial assets

Apart from the rescheduled loans stated in note 3.1.3, the
Group sometimes modifies the terms of loans provided to
customers due to commercial renegotiations, or for distressed
loans, with a view to maximizing recovery.

Such restructuring activities include extended payment term
arrangements, payment holidays and payment forgiveness.
Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or
criteria which, in the judgement of management, indicate that
payment will most likely continue. These policies are kept
under continuous review. Restructuring is most commonly
applied to term loans.

The risk of default of such assets after modification is assessed
at the reporting date and compared with the risk under the
original terms at initial recognition, when the modification is
not substantial and so does not result in derecognition of the
original asset. The Group monitors the subsequent
performance of modified assets. The Group may determine that
the credit risk has significantly improved afier restructuring,

The Group continues to monitor if there is a subsequent
significant increase in credit risk in relation to such assets
through the use of specific models for modified assets.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3 (AR () 31
3111 HEREARBBREZ BRI 3
() HESE (a)
AT A8 R AR 202452 8220234£12H 31
HEEPERIE TEEHRBRE
MRS R - PRt A - &
ERR BEF 2 BERR S RRRE
EREE - SERE CHESE R
ERES %R 5 F 2 MBI -
m The Group
R20245£12H31H At 31 December 2024
I EE S Placements with banks
TR B S5 Balances with banks and
TRCE central bank
AR EEER Investment debt securities
HeEEE A AL measured at FVOCI
S BB
Hr
Eod =) g Loans and advances to
customers :
EAER: Loans to individuals :
-EX - Overdrafts
IR : Loans to corporate entities :
- EBNE - Investment companies
- > - SMEs
A20234E12H31H At 31 December 2023
PFE 2R Placements with banks
FHEZE S 5R  Balances with banks and
T8 central bank
DIAREEAER Investment debt securities
HeEEE A HAr4E measured at FVOCI
Bs 2 BB
Bigs
BEBGK : Loans and advances to
customers :
HAER : Loans to individuals :
53 - Overdrafis
BREER Loans to corporate entities :
- B NE - Investment companies
-t/ - SMEs

Credit risk (Continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

Geographical sectors

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group's main credit
exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by geographical region as
of 31 December 2024 and 2023. For this distribution, the Group has
allocated exposures to regions based on the country of domicile of its
counterparties. Credit risk exposure by geographical sectors is classified
according to the location of counterparties after taking into account the

transfer of risk.
BHKIE
EHBERI
Asia Pacific
itk excluding B L
Hong Kong Hong Kong Europe Total
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
- 161,047,641 - 161,047,641
8,655,055 - - 8,655,055
179,715,020 - B 179,715,020
6,918,393 - - 6,918,393
189,401,587 - - 189,401,587
6,992,265 - - 6,992,265
391,682,320 161,047,641 * 552,729,961
- 85,300,048 57,000,000 142,300,048
12,719,691 - - 12,719,691
177,553,392 - - 177,553,392
5,789,708 - : 5,789,708
210,337,814 - - 210,337,814
6,192,308 - - 6,192,308
412,592,913 85,300,048 57,000,000 554,892,961
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The Group

As at 31 December
2024

Placements with
banks

Balances with banks
and central bank

Investment debt
securities measured
at FVOCI

Loans and advances

to customers :

Loans to individuals

- Overdrafts

Loans to corporate

entities :

- Investment
companies

- SMEs

As at 31 December
2023

Placements with
banks

Balances with banks
and central bank
Investment debt
securities measured
at FVOCI

Loans and advances
to customers :
Loans to individuals
- Overdrafts

Loans to corporate

entities :

- Investment
companies

- SMEs

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.11
(Continued)

(b) Industry sectors

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group's main credit
exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by the industry sectors
of its counterparties.

it g
TEHY
MRS Whole-sale KEAF

BRI % Financial  and retail Investment EA AL
Sovereign  institutions trade companies [ndividuals Total
HK$ HK$ HK$§ HK$ HK$ HK$

- 161,047,641 - - - 161,047,641

2,609,570 6,045,485 - - - 8,655,055
179,715,020 - - B - 179,715,020
- - - - 6,918,393 6,918,393

- - - 189,401,587 - 189,401,587

- - 6,992,265 B - 6,992,265
182,324,590 167,093,126 6,992,265 189,401,587 6,918,393 552,729,961
- 142,300,048 - - - 142,300,048

7,400,553 5,319,138 - - - 12,719,691
177,553,392 = B B - 177,553,392
" s = - 5,789,708 5,789,708

- - - 210,337,814 - 210,337,814

- - 6,192,308 - - 6,192,308
184,953,945 147,619,186 6,192,308 210,337,814 5,789,708 554,892,961
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.2 Market risk

The Group takes on minimal exposure to market risks, which is
the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency
and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and
specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility
of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

The Group performs periodic stress tests to monitor its exposures
to market risks. Stress tests provide an indication of the potential
size of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by the Group are in general risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to risk category.

The results of the siress tests are reviewed by senior management
and by Board Committees. The stress testing is tailored to the
business and typically uses scenario analysis.

Sensitivity analysis for 2024 and 2023

As at 31 December 2024, no significant open positions in foreign
currencies were taken, hence the net interest income for foreign
currencies were not sensitive to interest rate changes. Interest
sensitivity applies mainly to Hong Kong Dollar ('HKD')
positions, whereby if the HKD market interest rates had been 100
basis points lower with other variables held constant, the Group's
profit afier tax for the year and reserves would have been
HK$747,128 and HK$747,128 lower (2023: 100 basis points
lower, HK$1,488,380 and HK$1,488,380 lower) . This arose as a
result of lower net interest income eamed on HKD financial
instruments.

The Group's equity risk position arises mainly from the holdings
of equity securitics all being classified as financial assets
measured at FVOCI, the majority of which being listed in Hong
Kong. Such holdings are held for long term investment purpose.
At 31 December 2024, if Hang Seng Index had been 10% lower
(2023: 10% lower) with all other variables held constant and the
equity instruments moved according to the historical correlation
with the index, the Group's investment revaluation reserve would
be HK$1,045,831 lower (2023: HKS$1,201,009 lower). The
Group's equity securities measured at FVOCI would be
HK$1,045,831 lower (2023: HK$1,201,009 lower).

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, majority of the Group's
financial assets and liabilities are denominated in HKD or United
States dollars ("USD") and as HKD is pegged to the USD,
therefore the Group is not exposed to significant currency risk.

The method and assumption used on the above sensitivity
analysis on interest rate risk and equity price risk is performed on
the same basis for both 2024 and 2023.
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32 WHEEE 3.2 Market risk (Continued)

3.2.2 SpUEER 3.2.2 Foreign exchange
EERZER T EIMNBER M A HMT B
WRBRERBHREE AR - UT2R
TSR E 12 3 31 H AR 2 Z SN R R E,

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash
flows. The table below summarises the Group's exposure to foreign

b RASTUEEE BENEFE L IREH

currency exchange rate risk at 31 December. Included in the table are

Wrkir ELHE(E I - the Group's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by
currency.
REAMEBAF/NEE BB Z 1 Concentrations of currency risk on-and off-balance sheet items
ket EH oAt ke
HK Dollars US Dollars Others Total
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
= The Group
R20244£12H31H At 31 December 2024
W Assets
EERESRERE % Cash and balances with banks 85,597,584 7,090,027 354,288 93,041,899
EWPFREIZEZKER1  Placements with banks maturing
EVEP IRk between one and twelve months 70,000,000 9,080,190 - 79,080,190
B AR b HA AR TS Loans and advances to customers
and other accounts 210,397,206 88,623 26 210,485,855
AN EEEAERR Investment securities measured at
BEfT AHMET AL FVOCI
S EEE 202,866,643 41,149 - 202,907,792
W BEE R Property, plant and equipment 137,181,013 - - 137,181,013
- LZES Investment properties 303,300,000 - - 303,300,000
B HEEE Right-of-use assets 37,418,070 - - 37,418,070
BEUL[E] > FiEk Tax recoverable 13,523 - - 13,523
RilE4SE Total assets 1,046,774,039 16,299,989 354,314 1,063,428,342
=i ¢ Liabilities
EPEEX Deposits from customers 222,233,848 15,539,018 122,087 237,894,953
HEAME Lease liabilities 41,594,834 > - 41,594,834
HAE & R Other liabilities and provisions 58,679,758 125,388 111 58,805,257
RIERIEE & Deferred tax liabilities 8,544,561 - - 8,544,561
FERTRIR Tax payable 9,523 - - 9,523
HMSET Total liabilities 331,062,524 15,664,406 122,198 346,849,128
REAMRPIPH Net on-balance sheet position 715,711,515 635,583 232,116 716,579,214
ERXE Credit commitments 15,903,763 - - 15,903,763
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Market risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Foreign exchange (Continued)

poedi e HAt ]
HK Dollars US Dollars Others Total
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
i The Group
120234128310 At 31 December 2023
FE Assets
BEEESRERERE Cash and balances with banks 111,705,789 149,423 373,799 112,229,011
EHAFBUEIERE R Placements with banks maturing
2128 H AEH between one and twelve months 30,000,000 15,300,048 - 45,300,048
ARG HARRIR Loans and advances to customers
and other accounts 227,472,706 107,164 27 227,579,897
IR EEAERER Investment securities measured at
BENET AEMETE FVOCI
BT s 198,970,995 32,359 S 199,003,354
¥ LB RS Property, plant and equipment 120,292,351 - - 120,292,351
Bt /I Investment properties 305,600,000 - - 305,600,000
EFEEE Right-of-use assets 22,812,490 - - 22,812,490
e IEl 2 #i=k Tax recoverable 85,206 - E 85,206
RiEest Total assets 1,016,939,537 15,588,994 373,826 1,032,902,357
=i Liabilities
= EEER Deposits from customers 226,160,712 14,841,165 132,569 241,134,446
HEEE Lease liabilities 25,477,421 . s 25,477,421
A R R Other liabilities and provisions 41,206,164 143,597 112 41,349,873
RERIEERE Deferred tax liabilities 9,389,354 . = 9,389,354
HMAEF Total liabilities 302,233,651 14,984,762 132,681 317,351,094
REAMNRNISHE Net on-balance sheet position 714,705,886 604,232 241,145 715,551,263
ISR Credit commitments 5,099,736 = - 5,099,736
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3.2
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Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items -
repricing analysis

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce
or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The Board
sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily by senior management.

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to interest rate risks.
Included in the table are the Group's assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity
dates.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.2 3.2 Market risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items - repricing

BB RS0 analysis (Continued)
£ The Group
3E12 1%E5 B FFAR
AR LA 1Z3{E A EA £ SHE Non-
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over interest Aok
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
A20244E12H3 At 31 December
18 2024
RE Assets
BEHFHR4 R Cash and balances
EES with banks 83,620,987 - - - - 9,420,912 93,041,899
TEHAHFREI%ak  Placements with
EHNX1Z128H  banks maturing
AEIHR between one and
twelve months - 49,080,190 30,000,000 - - - 79,080,190
ZEE R At Loans and advances
R to customers and
other accounts 93,842,698 109,469,548 . ; - 7,173,609 210,485,855
PIAFEEEETE  Investment securities
HHSEET A  measured at FVOCI
&R G B < %
B 139,926,011 39,789,009 - - - 23,192,772 202,907,792
Hft &z Other assets - - - - - 477912,606 477,912,606
RESE Total assets 317,389,696 198,338,747 30,000,000 - - 517,699,899 1,063,428,342
=i | Liabilities
BEEFNK Deposits from
customers 169,065,905 16,858,089 - - - 51,970,959 237,894,953
HEAE Lease liabilities 302,309 607,514 2,782,233 20,054,901 17,847,877 - 41,594,834
Hh&f Other liabilities - - = - - 67,359,341 67,359,341
aRaest Total liabilities 169,368,214 17,465,603 2,782,233 20,054,901 17,847,877 119,330,300 346,849,128
HFIRGE2PE  Total interest
& sensitivity gap 148,021,482 180,873,144 27,217,767  (20,054,901) (17,847,877)
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.2 WiEEK 3.2 Market risk (Continued)
3.2.3 FREE @) 3.2.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)
2w The Group
3%E12 1%£5 g FEE
{EH A 1E3(EA EA F 54 Non-
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over interest 4sE
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
1220234£12H At 31 December
31H 2023
Wik Assets
EFHERE  Cash and balances
EIES with banks 97,394,557 - - - - 14834454 112,229,011
EPFEIZE  Placements with
FIEP1%£12fE  banks maturing
A AEIH between one and
twelve months - 6,427,588 38,872,460 - - - 45,300,048
EERFRE  Loans and advances
iR to customers and
other accounts 37,573,755 184,746,075 - - - 5,260,067 227,579,897
BLONSE(EEET  Investment securities
BHHSEEE  measured at FVOCI
AHAhERE
L E SR - 29,786,533 147,766,859 - - 21,449,962 199,003,354
HAEE Other assets - - - - - 448,790,047 448,790,047
RESE Total assets 134,968,312 220,960,196 186,639,319 - - 490,334,530 1,032,902,357
an Liabilities
BEEEX Deposits from
customers 169,351,582 8,222,539 8,651,236 - - 54,909,089 241,134,446
THEEE Lease liabilities
174,318 350,206 1,602,151 11,217,563 12,133,183 - 25,477,421
HAtn& & Other liabilities - - - - - 50,739,227 50,739,227
¥=Ui: c=3:13 Total liabilities 169,525,900 8,572,745 10,253,387 11,217,563 12,133,183 105,648,316 317,351,094
BfFREE;?:  Total interest
A sensitivity gap (34,557,588) 212,387,451 176,385,932  (11,217,563) (12,133,183)
33 GmMESER 33  Liquidity Risk

RBAESRRIFENEEGBRNEERGBTEEZH
EREZAMES A LEESARINGHZERSE
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Liquidity risk arises from the mismatch in the cash flows arising from
on-balance sheet assets and liabilities, plus the settlement characteristics
of off-balance sheet activities.

The Group's liquidity management process, as closely monitored by
senior management in accordance with policies and guidelines approved
by the Board, includes the following tasks :

- day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to
ensure that requirements can be met;

- maintaining adequate amount of highly marketable assets that can
casily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen interruption to
cash flow;

- monitoring liquidity ratios
requirements; and

against intemal and regulatory

- managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.
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FRIREEE D) 3.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
Ecpe R BERR M F—K » R B 2SI i Monitoring and reporting take the form of maturity profile projections
1T WEARESSEE Y ERHIR - P HiEEEE ERN for the next day, week and month respectively, as these are key periods
Z FHARCE R RS SR « B2 EARNAE M for liquidity management. Mismatches between medium-term assets and
£77 Z /K P EESE RIS DA S i — TR R SRS S B - liabilities together with the level and type of undrawn lending
commitments, overdraft facilities usage and contingent liabilities are also
monitored under the usual conservative strategy of the Group.
BIHASHR 3.3.1 Maturity analysis
TFTEZ#RBUNHESHAEAYNTIL H ZRRIFESTE The table on the following page analyses the Group's assets and liabilities
v AERGEZHAAR 2B - into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at end of
the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.
b==t | The Group
] UEAMA  1ZE3{HH  3ZEI2EA 1E54F BiBsE
Repayable on Up to 13 3-12 1-5 Over #EFHAH [k
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
R20244F At 31 December
12A31H 2024
RE Assets
EFH4 Cashand
KfEE  balances with
E banks 11,074,448 81,967,451 - - - - - 93,041,899
EHIHRK Placements with
[FEZEEIE  banks maturing
W1Z12{F between one and
HNFIEE  twelve months - - 49,080,190 30,000,000 - - & 79,080,190
Z ek  Loans and
FEAAR  advances to
5 customners and
other accounts 58,228,167 2,139,491 2,193,135 3,603,199 124,046,452 19,341,305 934,106 210,485,855
PAZAE{E  Investment
{Hst&H  securities
HE#EET  measured at
AEf&z FVOCI
Az
W&/ H - 139,926,011 39,789,009 - - - 23,192,772 202,907,792
W% - 558 Property, plant
e and equipment - - - - - - 137,181,013 137,181,013
gz Investment
properties o - - 3 - - 303,300,000 303,300,000
E{tiFHME Right-of-use
-3 assets - 409,565 819,130 3,686,087 19,659,129 12,844,159 - 37,418,070
EE M 2 #2 Tax recoverable
= = - - 13,523 - . - 13,523
WEESEN  Total assets 69,302,615 224442518 91,881,464 37,302,809 143,705,581 32,185,464 464,607,891  1,063,428,342
=T { Liabilities
ZF#7#  Deposits from
customers 146,111,715 74,925,149 16,858,089 = - - - 237,894,953
fiE&E{E Lease liabilities - 302,309 607,514 2,782,233 20,054,901 17,847,877 - 41,594,834
Hit& &K Other liabilities
pLtr and provisions 9,786,625 10,253,251 6,018,732 31,754,928 975,592 16,129 - 58,805,257
RFERTE  Deferred tax
“E liabilities - - - - - - 8,544,561 8,544,561
FE(F7i7  Tax payable 5 s = 9,523 - - . 9,523
AiAEt Total liabilities 155,898,340 85,480,709 23,484,335 34,546,684 21,030,493 17,864,006 8,544,561 346,849,128
W  Net liquidi
zﬁﬁ g:p iquidity (86,595,725) 138,961,809 68,397,129 2,756,125 122,675,088 14,321,458 456,063,330 716,579,214
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The Group

At 31 December
2023

Assets

Cash and balances
with banks

Placements with
banks maturing
between one and
twelve months

Loans and
advances to
customers and
other accounts

Investment
securities
measured at
FVOCI

Property, plant
and equipment

Investment
properties
Right-of-use assets

Tax recoverable

Total assets
Liabilities

Deposits from
customers

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities
and provisions

Deferred tax
liabilities

Total liabilities

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

33 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.3.1 Maturity profile (Continued)
Big  MEAMA 1ZE3{ER  3ZEI1EA 155 HifsE
Repayable on Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over EEHIA L]
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
15,229,011 97,000,000 - 5 s - - - 112,229,011
- - 6,427,588 38,872,460 - - - 45,300,048
15,307,836 1,888,223 2,124,339 4,232,748 83,756,609 119,336,036 934,106 227,579,897
- - 29,786,533 147,766,859 - - 21,449,962 199,003,354
= s - = = - 120,292,351 120,292,351
= z - - - - - 305,600,000 305,600,000
- 237,630 475,260 2,138,671 11,406,245 8,554,684 - 22,812,490
- - - 85,206 - - - 85,206
30,536,847 99,125,853 38,813,720 193,095,944 95,162,854 127,890,720 448276419  1,032,902,357
169,341,180 54,919,492 8,222,538 8,651,236 - - - 241,134,446
- 174,318 350,206 1,602,151 11,217,563 12,133,183 - 25,477,421
6,749,577 3,303,203 4,684,115 24,485,391 2,111,458 16,129 - 41,349,873
. . " - - - 9,389,354 9,389,354
176,090,757 58,397,013 13,256,859 34,738,778 13,329,021 12,149,312 9,389,354 317,351,094
40,728,840 25,556,861 158,357,166 81,833,833 115,741,408 438,887,065 715,551,263

Net liquidity gap (145,553,910)
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

33

3.3.2

HEBTRBESRE -

i The Group

F20245:12A831H At 31 December 2024

FEFTE B SR Non-derivative cash flow

=i Liabilities

EEER Deposits from customers

HRAR Lease liabilitics

HAt S tE Other liabilities

=4 (2] Total liabilities

(&HEIIH) (contractual maturity)

e R RSB Assets held for managing

B R WEIMAH) liquidity risk (contractual
maturity)

#20234£12R31H At 31 December 2023

JEPTES SR Non-derivative cash flow

=i § Liabilities

BEER Deposits from customers

HEAH Lease liabilities

Hit&E Other liabilities

AR Total liabilities

(A&EE) (contractual maturity)

FfEEERRIR SR Assets held for managing

W2 REE(SEURIEE)  liquidity risk (contractual

maturity)

AR FEARESERAR
FOREZ BEAERE - FHRIERE
B RSRATRRE o FAEUTHE Z K
TH B AMNE R S T8 R P FI SRR
- RIEWEHEENR > —H0E
R H B— U Z & F G
BBy - FrFAEZ T ERHRES
AR FTHEIER £ B (1 4Rs T
fkfH -

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Non-derivative financial liabilities and assets held for managing liquidity risk

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under non-
derivative financial liabilities and assets held for managing liquidity risk by
remaining contractual maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,
whereas the Group manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected
undiscounted cash inflows.

& A BAA 1238 H 3Z12ME A EbEakes

Up to 1-3 3-12 More than k]

1 month months months 1 year Total
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
221,036,864 16,858,089 - - 237,894,953
435,000 870,000 3,915,000 43,428,667 48,648,667
20,153,749 6,103,947 31,061,416 991,720 58,310,832
241,625,613 23,832,036 34,976,416 44,420,387 344,854,452
223,621,077 60,243,210 75,080,573 - 358,944,860
224,260,672 8,222,538 8,651,236 - 241,134,446
250,000 500,000 2,250,000 26,580,000 29,580,000
10,139,500 4,756,781 23,823,583 2,127,587 40,847,451
234,650,172 13,479,319 34,724,819 28,707,587 311,561,897
112,776,627 36,302,162 187,639,190 - 336,717.979

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding loan
commitments include cash, balances with banks and central bank, items in the
course of collection and exchange fund bills and placements with banks. In the
normal course of business, a proportion of customer loans contractually repayable
within one year will be extended. The portfolio of marketable securities held
provides further reserves to meet unexpected cash outflows.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Off-balance sheet items

The Group
A
No later than R Haxn
1 year Indetinite ‘T'otal
HK$ HKS$ HK$
At 31 December 2024
Loan commitments 15,903,763 - 15,903,763
At 31 December 2023
Loan commitments 5,099,736 - 5,099,736

(a) Loan commitments
The dates of the contractual amounts of the Group's off-balance sheet financial
instruments, that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities,
are summarised in the above table.

3.4 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not presented at fair value in
the Group's statement of financial position are estimated as follows:

(i)  Placements with banks

The fair value of overnight placements to banks is their carrying
amount. Fixed interest-bearing placements are maturing within one year
from the end of the reporting period and their carrying value
approximates fair value.

(if) Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are net of provisions for impairment
and bear interest at a floating rate and their carrying value approximates
fair value.

(iii) Deposits from customers

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which
includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount repayable on
demand. The fair value of those balances bearing interest at a floating
rate is their carrying value. Fixed interest-bearing deposits from
customers are maturing within one year from the end of the reporting
period and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Fair value hicrarchy

BB B EERR BRAN A EUSETT
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HKERS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable
inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources; unobservable
inputs reflect the Group's market assumptions. These two types of inputs have
created the following fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as price)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

- Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The
Group considers relevant and observable market prices in its valuations where
possible.

Assets measured at fair value :

The Group
w1k HoR F3Mk HEH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
31 December 2024
Recurring fair value
measurement
Equity investments
measured at FVOCI ~ _ 22874367 ___ - _ 318405 23192772
31 December 2023
Recurring fair value
measurement
Equity investments
measured at FVOCI 21 A 24,263 - 325,694 21 ,449,962
———————————— —————

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between all levels of fair
value hierarchy classifications. Predominately of the Group’s fair value financial
assets are at Level 1 equity investments. The fair value of the Level 3 equity
investments as at 31 December 2024 was measured using an adjusted asset based
approach with significant unobserved inputs and hence was classified as Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy. The most significant unobservable input for
measuring the fair value of the investment was the net assets value of the
investee and the fair value of the investment would largely change in proportion
to the change in the net assets value of the investee.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.5 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept
than the 'equity’ on the face of consolidated statement of financial position,
are :

- to comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital)
Rules of the Banking Ordinance and the authorization criteria of
licensed bank under the Banking Ordinance;

- to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concem, so that
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the Group's stability and its
business development; and

- to employ capital in an efficient and risk based approach with an aim
to optimize risk adjusted return to the shareholders.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by
the Group's management, employing techniques based on the Banking
(Capital) Rules. The required information is filed with the HKMA on a
quarterly basis.

The HKMA requires each bank or banking group to maintain a capital
adequacy ratio (“CAR™), defined as the ratio of total regulatory capital (as
defined under the Banking (Capital) Rules) to the risk-weighted assets, at
or above the minimum as set out in section 3A of the Banking (Capital)
Rules. The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2024 are computed
on both solo and consolidated basis of the Bank as specified by the HKMA
under section 3C of the Banking (Capital) Rules for its regulatory
purposes, and are in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.

The Bank's policy on capital adequacy as approved by the Board of
Directors sets out the objectives, policies and process for managing capital
and assessing the adequacy of capital to support its current and future
activities. The Bank reviews its policy on capital adequacy on a regular
basis to ensure all necessary changes are reflected in the policies.

CAR is monitored by the Bank on a daily basis to ensure compliance with
all relevant statutory requirements and regulatory guidelines governing the
banking business.

Other than statutory CAR, an internal trigger CAR is applied for control
purposes. If the actual CAR falls below the trigger ratio, the case would
immediately be reported to the Board and the HKMA, and remedial action
will be taken.

In addition, the Bank will assess the impact on its capital when there are
new products, new investments, or any proposed significant transactions.

Semi-annual stress tests are also performed to assess the potential impact
of extreme business conditions on capital and to develop strategies to
mitigate the adverse effects where necessary.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.5 Capital management (Continued)

The table below summarises the ratios and the composition of regulatory capital of
the Group as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023. The Bank complied with
all of the externally imposed capital requirements by the HKMA throughout the year.

2024 2023
Common equity tier 1 capital ratio 59.56% 62.45%
Tier 1 capital ratio 59.56% 62.45%
Total capital ratio 80.95% 85.26%
Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.5% 2.5%

The above capital ratios represent the consolidated ratios of the Bank computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. In
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the Bank has adopted the “basic
approach” for the calculation of the risk weighted assets for credit risk and the “basic
indicator approach” for the calculation of operational risk. The Bank has been
exempted from the calculation of risk weighted assets for market risk.

The Bank is required to calculate and report its capital ratios on the consolidated
position based on the regulatory scope of consolidated figures in addition to the
Bank's solo position based on its unconsolidated level figures. As at 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023, the basis of consolidation for accounting purpose
differs from the basis of consolidation for regulatory purposes, under which only
Success Land Enterprises Limited, Golden Wisdom Development Limited, Team
Gold Investment Limited and Gold Harmony Enterprises Limited are included as
subsidiaries in the consolidated Group for regulatory purposes.

The capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above capital ratios
and reported to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority is analysed as follows :

2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$°000

Common equity tier 1 (CET1) capital

CET!1 capital instruments 264,987 264,987
Retained earnings 399,601 399,759
Disclosed reserves 6,161 4,567
670,749 669,313
Less : Cumulative fair value gains arising from
revaluation of land and buildings (269,655) (272,019)
Regulatory reserve for general banking risk (1,800) (1,800)
Total CET]1 capital after deductions 399,294 395,494
Additional Tier 1 capital - -
Total Tier 1 capital after deductions 399,294 395,494
Tier 2 capital
Reserve attributable to fair value gains on revaluation
of land and buildings 141,601 142,665
Regulatory reserve for general banking risk 1,800 1,800
143,401 144,465
Less : Tier 2 capital deductions - -
Total Tier 2 capital after deductions 143,401 144,465
Total capital base 542,695 539,959
e e —
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Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgments in Applying Accounting
Policies

@

(b)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professional valuer on an open market
basis at a valuation date. The fair values are assessed in accordance with
the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties (2020 Edition) published by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The contractual rental income and
the expected future market rental income after allowing for outgoings and
maintenance requirements are capitalised at observed market yields. The
principal assumptions underlying the estimation of market value are those
related to: the receipt of contractual rentals; expected fiture market
rentals; rent free periods; maintenance requirements; and observed market
yields. Changes in the assumptions used in the valuation would affect the
fair value of investment properties.

In addition, the values are also assessed by reference to comparable sales
transactions around the valuation date as reported in the relevant market
at similar locations. Appropriate adjustments have been made on the
values of the subject properties for relevant factors, such as location
difference, building age, time of transaction, shop frontage, floor levels
and pedestrian flow, etc.

Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex
models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and the
resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation
techniques used in measuring ECL is further detailed in note 3.1.4, which
also sets out key sensitivities of the ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:
- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;
- Choosing assumptions for the measurement of ECL;
Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking

scenarios for each type of product/market and the associated ECL;
and

- Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of
measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the
Group in the above areas is set out in note 3.1.4.
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Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgments in Applying Accounting
Policies (Continued)

(¢) Determination of deferred taxation

In determining the deferred tax positions of the Group and of the Bank,
significant judgment is required in determining the tax implications of the
transactions entered into by the Group. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that it could be recoverable. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised at full.

Management reviewed all the transactions entered into by the Group and
by the Bank, and all deferred tax assets (to the extent recoverable) and
deferred tax liabilities are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements except for the certain tax losses carry forwards that the
realisation of related tax benefit through future taxable profits is not
probable.

Net Interest Income
2024 2023
HKS HKS$

Interest income
Cash and balances and placements with banks 8,514,264 8,850,778
Loans and advances to customers 4,911,484 8,264,900
Investment securitics measured at FVOCI

6,731,289 2,522,233

Others 132,151 63,558

20,289,188 19,701,469

Interest expense

Deposits from customers 3,486,672 2,665,884
Bank borrowings 2,603 8
Lease liabilities 1,288,424 948,413
Others 212,872 94,979

4,990,571 3,709,284

The interest income and interest expenses are for financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss.

The interest expenses on lease liabilities relate to interest for the lease liabilities
recognized on the long term property lease entered into by the Group as lessee
for its expanded safe deposit box business.
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Other Operating Income
2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
Fees and commission income
- Credit related fees and commissions - 6,000
- Other fees 179,456 182,114
Less : Fees and commission expense
- Other fees and commission paid (42,822) (66,834)
Net fees and commission income 136,634 121,280
Net gain from trading of foreign currency 13,301 8,694
Gross rental income from investment properties 8,697,380 9,361,232
Less : rental outgoings (3,387,412) (3,382,185)
5,309,968 5,979,047
Air-conditioning and management fees 2,201,203 2,072,006
Dividend income from:
- listed equity investments measured
at FVOCI 1,269,965 1,062,300
- unlisted equity investments measured
at FVOCI 20,400 13,600
Safe deposit box rental 19,941,401 15,304,963
Exchange differences (12,633) (3,638)
Others (Note(i)) 709,097 5,570
24,129,433 18,454,801
29,589,336 24,563,822

—— — &

Note (i):

The Group initiated a legal proceeding on 11 February 2021 as plaintiff via the
issuance of a writ of summons to the Group's previous cleaning contractor as
defendant, for damages caused by negligence of the said cleaning contractor and
the lack of duty of care when carrying out their contracted work on 25 July 2020
which caused damages due to flooding from a fire sprinkler broken by the staff of
the cleaning contractor. The legal proceeding since concluded, with the Group
received the final court settlement of HK$701,831 for reimbursement of legal costs
from the defendant during the year ended 31 December 2024. The settlement
received was recognised in other income of the book.

Operating Expenses
2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
Staff costs (Note 8) 21,313,444 18,007,958
Depreciation - property, plant and equipment 4,095,100 3,016,931
Depreciation - right-of-use assets 3,963,408 2,851,561
Auditors' remuneration 1,148,100 1,180,000
Premises and equipment expenses 3,234,693 2,573,743
Computer expenses 1,957,365 1,748,222
Administrative expenses 2,795,320 2,407,954
Professional fees 1,769,440 996,015
Directors' fee (Note 23) 2,469,324 2,469,324
Other operating expenses 1,083,565 650,798
43,829,759 35,902,506
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Staff Costs
2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
Wages and salaries 20,939,532 18,292,731
Write back for annual leave and long-service payment (113,351) (835,345)
Pension cost - defined contribution plan (Note (i)) 487,263 550,572

21,313,444 18,007,958

Staff costs include salary and contribution to retirement scheme paid as directors'
emoluments (Note 23).

Note (i): Pension cost

There were forfeited contributions totaled HK$469,402 utilized during the year or
available at the year-end to reduce future contributions (2023: HK$259,439) .

Contributions totaling HK$155,643 (2023: HK$127,112) were payable to the defined
contribution plan at the year end.

Income Tax (Credit) / Expense

Hong Kong income tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

2024 2023

HKS HKS$
Current income tax expense - Hong Kong profits tax 26,557 18,567
Deferred income tax (credit)/expense (Note 19) (844,793) 373,681
Income tax (credit)/expense (818,236) 392,248

The tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before tax differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows :

2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
(Loss) /Profit before income tax (1,448,553) 2,210,982
Tax calculated at tax rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) (239,011) 364,812
Adjustment on different tax rate applicable to group
company (21,918) (12,403)
Income not subject to tax (1,571,073) (593,692)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 775,044 450,928
Other 241,767 191,561
Adjustment in respect of prior years (3,045) (8,958)
Income tax (credit)/expense (818,236) 392,248
Cash and Balances with Banks
2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
Cash in hand 2,419,393 2,509,320
Balances with banks and central bank 8,655,055 12,719,691
Placements with banks maturing within one month 81,967,451 97,000,000
93,041,899 112,229,011
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Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts

2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
Loans and advances to individuals
- Overdrafis 6,918,393 5,789,708
Loans and advances to corporate entities
- Investment companies 189,401,587 210,337,814
- SMEs 6,992,265 6,192,308
Loans and advances to customers 203,312,245 222,319,830
Accrued interest 738,377 920,017
Other accounts 6,435,233 4,340,050

Loans and advances to customers and

other accounts 210,485,855 227,579,897

There were no impaired loans or non-performing loans at 31 December 2024
(2023: Nil).

The Group accepted property mortgages and listed securities at fair value of
HK$351,400,000 and HKS$20,104,827 respectively (2023: HK$503,000,000
and HK$16,094,789 respectively) as collateral for loans, which it is permitted to
sell or re-pledge in the event of default by the borrower, of which no properties
or securities (2023: Nil) were re-pledged or lent to third parties.

Investment securities measured at FVOCI

2024 2023
HK$ HKS$
Debt securities
- exchange fund bills, unlisted, at market
value 179,715,020 177,553,392
Equity securities
- listed in Hong Kong, at market value 22,833,218 21,091,909
- listed outside Hong Kong, at market value 41,149 32,359
- unlisted, at estimated fair value 318,405 325,694
Total equity securities 23,192,772 21,449,962

202,907,792 199,003,354

Investment securities measured at FVOCI are analysed by categories of issuers
as follows :

- Sovereign 179,715,020 177,553,392
- Banks and other financial institutions 11,829,768 11,774,380
- Corporates 10,350,004 8,816,082
- Others 1,013,000 859,500

202,907,792 199,003,354

The movement in investment securities measured at FVOCI is summarised as
follows :

2024 2023

HK$ HK$
At 1 January 199,003,354 119,058,201
Surplus from changes in fair value (Note
21) 1,658,268 986,455
Additions 292,246,170 208,958,698
Redemptions / Disposals (290,000,000) (130,000,000)
At 31 December 202,907,792 199,003,354

62



12

13

BAAPARE R LIS A SRS
W2 TR (W)

AP EE B H LR AHAME S
R AR

EE A — AR E R R B 2
HEZRERERNFAEEFEAHSE
BiEt ARMARAULES - SREEERILIASIR
HERZERETIUAEREBAESIAR
PRI AR R T AR L AR A1 -

Wi AT
20244 R 20234124 31 F BRAT EL R HE
AZHEAEAT

Investment securities measured at FVOCI (Continued)

Equity investments measured at FVOCI

The Group has designated at FVOCI investments in a portfolio of equity securities that were
acquired for investment purposes. The Group chose this presentation alternative because the
investments were made for their dividend income rather than with a view to profit on a

subsequent sale.

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 and 2023, which are held by the Bank

directly, are as follows :

20244£12H31H 20234E12A31H
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
FREET
Ee FEf AL TEES =y o FEASERERE BT eI URAR B TR
Name Place of Principal Particulars of issued Interest Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
incorporation  activities shares held held
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
KEMEER HHE LyJE 4 gl 10, 000/ & 3E AT 100% 923,734 805,614 1,215,726 1,021,183
ARAE Hong Kong Property R ERE R T
TSB Property management 10,000 ordinary
Management shares of HK$1
Limited each
mECEAR B BARFH 2 S S A S 100% 2 2 2 2
| Hong Kong Investment FEHEN T
Success Land holding 2 ordinary shares of
Enterprises HKS$1 each
Limited
LERRAR B =1 22,900,0000¢ &3E  100% 34225855 33,892,044 35,749,861 35,435,202
AT Hong Kong Investment e R AR AR
Golden Wisdom holding It
Development 22,900,000 ordinary
Limited shares of HK$1
each
RENEAR & BEHA 19,800, 000RE & 100% 29,713,404 29,408,848 31,554,100 31,262,096
NGl Hong Kong Investment R G A S
Team Gold holding IT.
Investment 19,800,000 ordinary
Limited shares of HK$1
each
LBMAEAR B NERa 1S RAL R 100% 18,105,013 (3,119,350) 19,194,265 (2,010,296)
Al Hong Kong Investment EARIT
Gold Harmony holding 1 ordinary shares of
Enterprises HKS$1 each
Limited
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Property, Plant and Equipment
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&4,
BEE Rt
Furniture,
[opis fixtures and b k]
Bank premises equipment Total
HK$ HKS$ HK$
BRARMEEE B EERAE Cost or Deemed cost at valuation
#2024F1851H At 1 January 2024 150,285,740 38,547,917 188,833,657
NE Additions B 21,190,509 21,190,509
HisH/ & Write-off / disposal - (1,079,398) (1,079,398)
20244E12H31H At 31 December 2024 150,285,740 58,659,028 208,944,768
20234FE1H1H At 1 January 2023 150,285,740 39,229,993 189,515,733
NE Additions - 143,697 143,697
ey /e Write-off / disposal - (825,773) (825,773)
20234 12831H At 31 December 2023 150,285,740 38,547,917 188,833,657
EETTE R EE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
H2024F1H1H At 1 January 2024 51,703,590 16,837,716 68,541,306
RAEFEHTEE Charge for the year 358,722 3,736,378 4,095,100
W/ HE Write-off / disposal - (872,651) (872,651)
720244E12831H At 31 December 2024 52,062,312 19,701,443 71,763,755
B20234FE1H1H At 1 January 2023 51,344,868 14,862,761 66,207,629
KAEFEETE Charge for the year 358,722 2,658,209 3,016,931
e/ e Write-off / disposal - (683,254) (683,254)
R2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023 51,703,590 16,837,716 68,541,306
FRERE Net book value
2024412 H31H At 31 December 2024 98,223,428 38,957,585 137,181,013
R2023£E12H31H At 31 December 2023 98,582,150 21,710,201 120,292,351
B2 THHEE R EATOF ¢ The Group’s bank premises at their net book values are analysed as follows :
2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
REHE In Hong Kong, held on :
HEESOEZHE Leases of over 50 years 94,567,568 94,683,176
TEBSOEZHE Leases of under 50 years 3,655,860 3,898,974
98,223,428 98,582,150
15 RiFe Investment Properties
EE BRI FESNT ¢ The Group's interests in investment properties at their net book values are analysed as
follows :
2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
NES: In Hong Kong, held on :
BES0EZFE Leases of over 50 years 291,000,000 293,200,000
THBIBASOEZHE Leases of under 50 years 12,300,000 12,400,000

303,300,000 305,600,000
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Investment Properties (Continued)

All investment properties were classified as level 3 asset of fair value hierarchy as
of 31 December 2024 and 2023.

At 31 December 2024, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations for
future repairs and maintenance.

In the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, direct operating expenses
include HK$266,044 (2023: HK$12,542) relating to investment properties that
were unlet.

Valuation basis of investment properties

The investment properties were revalued on the basis of their open market values,
which were derived by the following valuation methodologies adopted by Jones
Lang LaSalle Limited, the independent firm of qualified property valuers, as at 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

- Sales evidence on the market on comparable properties around the time of
valuation; and

- Capitalisation of the income potential using appropriate capitalisation rate,
which was derived from analysis of sale transactions and the valuer’s
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or expectations.

The fair value measurement of investment properties is positively correlated to the
market rental and negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances for fair
value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the year ended 31
December 2024:

2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
At 1 January 305,600,000 307,900,000
Deficit from fair value adjustments on
investment properties (2,300,000) (2,300,000)
At 31 December 303,300,000 305,600,000

Right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities

(a) Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets is as follows:

HK$
At 1 January 2023 25,664,051
Depreciation (2,851,561)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 22,812,490
Additions 18,568,988
Depreciation (3,963,408)
At 31 December 2024 37,418,070
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Right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities
The Group had obligations under contractual maturities of the lease liabilities as follows:
2024412 31H R20235 124310
At 31 December 2024 At 31 December 2023
R AMGEE el RAS
BRI EEE FRIEMR
Present value . Present value .
. . Total minimum .. Total minimum
of the minimum lease - of the minimum e et
lease payments paym lease payments as¢ paym
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS
Within one year 3,692,056 5,220,000 2,126,675 3,000,000
After one year but
within five years 20,054,901 24,450,667 11,217,563 13,800,000
Over five years 17,847,877 18,879,333 12,133,183 12,780,000
41,594,834 48,550,000 25477,421 29,580,000
Less: total future
interest expenses (6,955,166) (4,102,579)
Present value of lease 25,477,421

liabilities

41,594,834

For both years, the Group leased the commercial properties for its own operations. Lease contracts
are entered into 9 to 10 years (2023: 10 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contained different terms and conditions. Extension and termination options are included in
the leases across the Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the asset used in the Group’s operation. The extension and termination options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor. The Group’s borrowing rates
applied to the lease liabilities range from 3.66% to 4.25% (2023: 3.66%).

Deposits from Customers

Demand deposits and current accounts
Savings deposits
Time, call and notice deposits

Other Liabilities and Provisions

Cashier orders

Rental deposits

Rental income received in advance
Accrued interest

Accounts and other payables
Amount due for clearing
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2024 2023

HK$ HKS
54,109,959 57,552,544
92,001,756 111,788,636
91,783,238 71,793,266
237,894,953 241,134,446
2024 2023

HKS HK$
2,312,153 2,519,504
25,917,899 21,183,007
14,157,173 10,745,130
634,671 346,816
15,748,990 3,830,135
34,371 2,725,281
58,805,257 41,349,873
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Deferred Income Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to

the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

Deferred tax assets :

- Deferred tax assets to be recovered after

more than 12 months
Deferred tax liabilities :

- Deferred tax liabilities to be incurred after

more than 12 months

Net deferred tax liabilities

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows :

At 1 January

Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note 9)

At 31 December

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows :

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2023
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

At 31 December 2023

Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

At 31 December 2024

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2023

Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

At 31 December 2023

Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

At 31 December 2024

2024 2023
HK$ HKS$
(9,849,058)  (8,202,176)
18,393,619 17,591,530
8,544,561 9,389,354
2024 2023
HK$ HK$
9,389,354 9,015,673
(844,793) 373,681
8,544,561 9,389,354
taking into
I AT &
Accelerated tax A EH{EHER ik
depreciation  Fair value gains Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
1,544,834 16,284,734 17,829,568
(273,135) 35,097 (238,038)
1,271,699 16,319,831 17,591,530
795,293 6,796 802,089
2,066,992 16,326,627 18,393,619
i i #aan
Tax losses Other Total
HK$ HK$ HK$
8,724,332 89,563 8,813,895
(606,462) (5,257) (611,719)
8,117,870 84,306 8,202,176
1,678,300 (31,418) 1,646,882
9,796,170 52,888 9,849,058

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forwards to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
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Share Capital

20244E12A31H 2023#12AH31H
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
e 34 e 4
No. of Shares HK$  No. of Shares HK$
Ordinary shares issued
and fully paid - 310,000,000 310,000,000 310,000,000 310,000,000
Reserves
2024
)
Group
H A3 Eia= ®iE EE Eigk
EIEEE  EERE et fati ited ]
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation revaluation General Regulatory Retained
reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ earnings Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
At 1 January 2024 1,854,801 301,905 610,257 1,800,000 400,984,300 405,551,263
Surplus on revaluation of
investment securitics
measured at FVOCI - 1,658,268 - - - 1,658,268
Transfer from revaluation
reserve to retained
earnings on depreciation of (64,091) - - - 64,091 -
Loss for the year - - - - (630,317) (630,317)
At 31 December 2024 1,790,710 1,960,173 610,257 1,800,000 400,418,074 406,579,214
Representing :
Bank and subsidiaries 1,790,710 1,960,173 610,257 1,800,000 400,418,074 406,579,214

"The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises prior to

30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2. 10).

*The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of debt and equity investment securities
measured at FVOCI until such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note

2.5).

*The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.

“The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purpose.
Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

>This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the historical
cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2023 : HK$12,665).
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Reserves (Continued)

2023

At 1 January 2023

Surplus on revaluation of
investment securities measured
at FVOCI

Transfer from revaluation

reserve to retained earnings on
. g . 5

depreciation of bank premises

Profit for the year
At 31 December 2023

Representing :
Bank and subsidiaries

EE
Group
Hihse "& il EE AR
EfEGE  EGEE e i’ BF et
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation revaluation  General Regulatory Retained
reserve' reserve®  reserve’ reserve’ earnings Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
1,918,892  (684,550) 610,257 1,800,000 399,101,475 402,746,074
- 986,455 E - - 986,455
(64,091) E - - 64,091 -
= & - - 1,818,734 1,818,734
1,854,801 301,905 610,257 1,800,000 400,984,300 405,551,263
1,854,801 301,905 610,257 1,800,000 400,984,300 405,551,263

'The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises prior
to 30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.10).

The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumaulative net change in the fair value of equity investments measured at FVOCI
until such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note 2.5).

The general reserve comprises previous years' transter from retained earnings and is distributable.

*The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision

purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained eamings and in consultation with the HKMA.

5This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the
historical cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2022: HK$12,665).
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Notes To Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

Operating profit

Dividend income from equity investments
measured at FVOCI

Depreciation - property, plant and equipment

Depreciation - right-of-use assets

(Increase) / decrease in accrued interest and
other accounts

Increase in other liabilities and provisions

Decrease in loans and advances to customers

Decrease in deposits from customers

Decrease / (increase) in placements with banks
and exchange fund bills with original maturity
over 3 months

Income tax refund / (paid)

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities included:-

- Interest received

- Interest paid

2024 2023

HK$ HK$
1,058,194 4,653,501

(1,290,365) (1,075,900)
4,095,100 3,016,931
3,963,408 2,851,561
(1,913,543) 41,554
5,450,016 7,842,495
19,007,585 63,894,001

(3,239,493) (24,934,386)

156,554,777 (42,708,660)

54,650 (119,649)
183,740,329 13,461,448
20,470,828 19,797,347
4,702,716 3,490,212

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the
following balances with less than three months' maturity from the date of acquisition.

Cash in hand (Note 10)

Balances with banks and central bank (Note 10)

Placements with banks with original maturity
within 3 months

Exchange fund bills with maturity within 3
months
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2024 2023

HK$ HK$
2,419,393 2,509,320
8,655,055 12,719,691
131,047,641 103,427,588
179,715,020 29,786,533
321,837,109 148,443,132
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Notes To Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

(c) Changes in liabilties arising from financing activities

The following table sets out an analysis of the cash flows and non-cash flows
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

HEAR
Lease Liability
HKS$
At 1 January 2023 27,529,008
Financing cash flow
Principal elements of lease liabilities (2,051,587)
Other changes
Interest expenses 948,413
Interest payments (948,413)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 25,477,421
Financing cash flow
Inception of lease 18,568,988
Principal elements of lease liabilities (2,451,575)
Other changes
Interest expenses 1,288,424
Interest payments (1,288,424)
At 31 December 2024 41,594,834
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Benefits and Interests of Directors (Disclosures Required by Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G)

(FH) EHEEERORKEF (a) Directors' emoluments and retirement benefits
2024 2023
HK$ HK$
PEFEEN IR fTEEHEK The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid to or
AWMt S ERE B sasn receivable by directors of the Bank during the year in
N respect of their services as directors were as follows:
e Fees 2,469,324 2,469,324
N REE AT AR TEESHEK The aggregate amounts of emoluments and retirement
A HEMRTSRENB AT benefits paid to or receivable by directors of the Bank
LTI 7 B & R RIEF (4 during the year in respect of their services in
KEUT connection with the management of the affairs of the
Bank or its subsidiary undertakings were as follows:
E Salary 1,321,000 1,300,000
{(TERRRETBI (B 12k Employer's Contribution to Retirement Scheme - -
1,321,000 1,300,000

3,790,324 3,769,324

(Z) #HHEEFAEETHMCE T E555 (b) Loans to directors and controlled body corporates by directors
WEHE R AR B2 Particulars of loans made to directors and controlled body corporates by directors are
MF : as follows:
2024 2023
HK$ HKS$
RIS EE 7 426550 Aggregate amount of loans outstanding at the
end of the year 157,840,939 125,532,258
RNAREERENRT 5 ESiE Maximum aggregate amount of loans during
the year 167,832,293 127,050,225

FA4HEE R REEER A
8K HEREAGERREES
RSB EM B ALE

All loans to directors and controlled body corporates by directors are granted on
values not greater and on term not more favourable than to borrowers of the same
financial standing but unconnected with the Bank.

BURITIAAME SR REE -
24 REWRAL 235

() MEEEHELRS

Related-Party Transactions

(a) Transactions with key management

AT — BB EE RN AREA L
ETZIRMTHEBER S - AERIMEERE
BAEZATK - LFTRARASEZFIHTK
R AR B MR TR & P Z MR R
SFTRERE -

BN RS A\ LA EEEEE - K
CfEEE - ARSI E R
NZABIFETZEAR S - WEXHTS
IREFEE23FTRER SN 2 R B B R R — B

A number of banking transactions were entered into with related parties in the normal
course of business. These include the extension of credit facilities and deposit taking. For
deposits taken and credit facilities extended, the interest rates charged are under terms and
conditions that would normally apply to customers of comparable standing.

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions entered into with key
management which include directors, relatives and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them in addition to those disclosed in note 23, which were carried out in the
normal course of the Group's business :

BT
2024 2023
HKS$ HK$

b= 74 Loans
KERE 7 S ee4E Average balance during the year 164,351,381 191,733,574
AELENE 2 68 %E Outstanding as at end of year 203,842,740 150,457,140
FLEWA Interest income 7,741,374 6,297,284
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Related-Party Transactions (Continued)

(a) Transactions with key management (Continued)

The loans granted to related parties during the year are collaterised by
properties, shares in listed companies and deposits. The fair value of these
mortgaged properties and shares in listed companies as at 31 December 2024
were HK$351,400,000 and HKS$20,104,827 (2023: HK$363,000,000 and
HKS$16,094,789) respectively. No provisions have been made in respect of
loans advanced to related parties (2023: Nil).

2024 2023
HK$ HK$
Deposits
Average balance during the year 134,339,810 132,929,847
Outstanding as at end of year 129,102,798 138,720,580
Interest expense 1,882,928 1,622,683
Contingent liabilities and commitments
contract amount
Other commitments with an original
maturity of under 1 year or which are
unconditionally cancellable 15,903,763 5,099,736
Property management fee income (note (i)) 52,621 74,561
Property rental income (note (ii)) 313,200 525,053
Property consultancy fee expense (note (iii)) 900,000 405,000
Property commission expense (note (iv)) 243,618 96,050

Notes :

(i) Property management fee income included fee income charged on the
property managed by the Group on an actual costs incurred basis and
management fee charged on an arm's length basis for premises leased to
companies controlled by directors.

(i) Property rental income was charged on an arm's length basis for premises
leased to companies controlled by directors.

(iii) Property consultancy fee expense was charged on an arm’s length basis
for consultancy services provided by a company controlled by directors

(iv) Rental commission expense was charged on an arm’s length basis for
rental commission to a company controlled by directors

(b) Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries

During the year, the Bank entered into transactions with subsidiaries that are
wholly-owned by the Bank in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms. The income and expenses during the year and on-balance
sheet outstanding at the reporting date are as follows:

2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
Income and expense during the year
Interest income 1,241,089 1,118,051
Other operating income 1,415,416 1,665,830
Operating expense 982,283 217,236

The interest rates in connection with loan to subsidiary are under terms and
conditions normally applicable to customers of comparable standing.
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Related-Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries (Continued)

Other operating income represents income from providing management
services, information technology services, rental administration services,
financial control and accounting services and other administration services to
the Bank's subsidiaries by the Bank.

Other operating expense represents rental and management fee expenses paid to
its subsidiary by the Bank for the rental of office unit owned and held by the
subsidiary.

All income and expense on these transactions are determined on an arm's
length basis.

2024 2023
HK$ HK$
On-balance sheet outstanding at the
reporting date
Loan to a subsidiary 21,000,000 21,000,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries 9,840,083 10,657,625

(c) Transactions between the companies within the Group

During the year, the Bank and its wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into
transactions with another wholly-owned subsidiary that provide property
management services for properties owned and held by the Bank and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. The property manager remuneration paid by the Bank and
its wholly-owned subsidiaries are determined in the ordinary course of property
management business and on normal commercial terms. The amount of income
received and expenses paid between the Group companies during the year are
as follows:

2024 2023
HK$ HK$
Income and expense during the year
Property manager remuneration paid by the
Bank and its subsidiares 458,988 464,868
Property manager remuneration received by a
subsidiary within the Group 458,988 464,868

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(a) Credit commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitment, and the
aggregate credit risk weighted amount :

2024 2023
HK$ HKS$
Contract amount
Other commitments with an original
maturity of under 1 year or which are
unconditionally cancellable 15,903,763 5,099,736

15,903,763 5,099,736
—_—

Credit risk weighted amount - -
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Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (Continued)
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Operating lease commitments - the Group as lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
Land and buildings
- not later than one year 5,759,814 9,185,793
- later than one year but not later than five
years 1,430,271 4,295,301
7,190,085 13,481,094

The Group leases out investment properties (Note 15) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases typically for a period from one to three
years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the prevailing market conditions. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

Capital commitments

The Group does not have any capital expenditures contracted for but not
recognized as liabilities as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

Repairs and maintenance: investment properties

The Group does not have any contractual obligation for future repairs
and maintenance of the investment properties not recognized as a
liability as at 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$Nil).



26 §RITZRIENIRLE Statement of Financial Position of the Bank

e 20244£12H31H 202348128318

Note 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
HKS HKS$
e Assets
EEREEERF¥ES0E Cash and balances with banks 93,041,899 112,229,011
EHFREIEKER1ZL2 Placements with banks maturing between one
{8 A NI and twelve months 79,080,190 45,300,048
BB R HAt RIS Loans and advances to customers and other
accounts 231,212,756 248,389,437
PANEEESE B et Investment securities measured at FVOCI
AHMGRER S 2 & HS 202,907,792 199,003,354
EHRAT 2 EE 5% Investment securities in subsidiaries 13 42,710,003 42,710,003
W3 - BEB Rt Property, plant and equipment 133,525,153 116,393,377
"EYE Investment properties 235,000,000 233,500,000
BlEA#EEE Right-of-use assets 37,418,070 22,812,490
WESE Total Assets 1,054,895,863 1,020,337,720
N=¢) | Liabilities
ER Deposits from
- A El - Subsidiaries 9,840,083 10,657,623
== - Other customers 237,894,953 241,134,446
HEas Lease liabilities 41,594,834 25,477,421
Hit&{E R AEH Other liabilities and provisions 57,808,124 40,357,662
RIERTEEH Deferred tax liabilities 8,511,669 9,356,462
EHMEE Total Liabilities 355,649,663 326,983,614
Mk Equity
R A Share capital 310,000,000 310,000,000
e Reserves 27 389,246,200 383,354,106
MasaE Total Equity 699,246,200 693,354,106
WIS EMEET Total Equity and Liabilities 1,054,895,863 1,020,337,720
HEEMN0253H27THZ Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2025.
AE R AR -
BB MA CHING KUEN, ALFRED )
= { ) Directors
HiES MA CHING YEUNG, PHILIP )
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Reserves of the Bank

2024
WIT
Bank
HAtsE & Him EE EER
EfEGAE  EEEE R Ghf’ g:2e L
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation revaluation General Regulatory Retained
reserve' reserve”  reserve’ reserve’ eamings Total
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
At 1 January 2024 1,854,801 301,905 610,257 1,800,000 378,787,143 383,354,106
Surplus on revaluation of
investment securities measured
at FVOCI - 1,658,268 - - - 1,658,268
Transfer from revaluation
reserve to retained eamings on
depreciation of bank premises’ (64,091) B i " 64,091 B
Profit for the year - - - - 4,233,826 4,233,826
At 31 December 2024 1,790,710 1,960,173 610,257 1,800,000 383,085,060 389,246,200
s §&———

!The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises
prior to 30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.10).

2The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of debt and equity investment securities
measured at FVOCI until such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets
(Note 2.5).

3The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.

*The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained eamings and in consultation with the HKMA.

SThis is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the
historical cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2023 : HK$12,665).
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Reserves of the Bank (Continued)

2023
SR1T
Bank
HAt3E B L EE Pk 3
EEGE  EMSEE T A7 L
Other
properties Investment
revaluation revaluation  General Regulatory Retained
reserve' reserve’  reserve’ reserve’ earnings Total
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
At 1 January 2023 1,918,892  (684,550) 610,257 1,800,000 374,942,540 378,587,139
Surplus on revaluation of
investment securities measured
at FVOCI = 986,455 : - = 986,455
Transfer from revaluation
reserve to retained earnings on
depreciation of bank premises® (64,091) - - - 64,091 -
Loss for the year - - - - 3,780,512 3,780,512
At 31 December 2023 1,854,801 301,905 610,257 1,800,000 378,787,143 383,354,106

The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises
prior to 30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.10).

The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments measured at
FVOCTI until such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note 2.5).

*The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.

*The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained eamings and in consultation with the HKMA.

>This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the

historical cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2022: HK$12,665).
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The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying information to the financial

statements and does not form part of the financial statements.

Non-Bank Mainland Exposures

The Group did not have any non-bank Mainland exposures as at 31 December 2024 (2023 : Nil).

Currency Concentrations

The US dollar net position, the RMB net position and the EUR net position, each constitutes more
than 10% of the total net position in all foreign currencies respectively, are reported as follows :

US Dollar Position:

Equivalent in Hong Kong dollars
Spot assets
Spot liabilities

Net long position

RMB Position:

Equivalent in Hong Kong dollars
Spot assets
Spot liabilities

Net long position

EUR Position:

Equivalent in Hong Kong dollars
Spot assets
Spot liabilities

Net long position

79

1T
Bank
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$°000
16,300 15,589
(15,663) (14,985)
637 604
T
Bank
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$°000
325 342
(122) (133)
203 209
SRIT
Bank
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$°000
29 31
29 31
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Loans and Advances to Customers

Gross advances to customers by loan usage

Loans for use in Hong
Kong

Industrial, commercial and
financial

-property development

-property investment

Wholesale and retail trade
Individuals
-others

Investment companies

Segmental Information

(i) Business activities

2024 2023

HigHy E=piil

HEA#E R HAt#E R

2 2B

Amount Amount

BEH covered by B EHE covered by
Gross collateral/ Gross collateral/
advances other security advances other security
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

- - 71,862,691 71,862,691
84,952,380 84,952,380 113,228,140 113,228,140
6,992,265 6,992,265 6,192,308 6,192,308
6,918,393 6,918,393 5,789,708 5,789,708
104,449,207 104,449,207 25,246,983 25,246,983
203,312,245 203,312,245 222,319,830 222,319,830

The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong and in two classes of business -
commercial banking and property investment. The commercial banking business
includes, inter alia, acceptance of deposit from customers and the provision of
lending, trade financing, foreign exchange, and other credit facilities to customers.
Property investment represents interests in various commercial properties held for

rental purposes.

At 31 December 2024, commercial banking and property investment accounted for
HK$760,128,342 and HK$303,300,000 of the Group's operating assets respectively
(2023: HK$727,302,357 and HK$305,600,000). For the year ended 31 December
2024, contributions to the Group's operating income from commercial banking and
property investment, were HK$37,376,781 and HK$7,511,172 respectively (2023:
HK$32,503,454 and HK$8,052,553 respectively).

(ii) Overdue and impaired loans by geographical area

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has no overdue or impaired loans (2023: Nil).
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Segmental Information (Continued)

(iii) International claims

The information as at 31 December on intemational claims discloses
exposures to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is
derived according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
account any transfer of risk.

2024 2023

RITEIZE | IRITESE kL
Banks Total Banks Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
160,801 160,801 85,300 85,300

- - 57,000 57,000

Corporate Governance

In monitoring the operations and the financial soundness of the Group, the
Board has established seven specialised committees for handling matters which
requirc detailed review or in-depth consideration, namely, the Executive
Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”), Audit
Commiftee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Commitice. The Audit Committee is made up of directors who are independent
non-executive directors. Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Risk Committee are chaired by independent non-executive directors and
comprised of a majority of members being independent non-executive directors.
Other committees are comprised of Chief Executive & General Manager and
other directors and senior executives of the Bank as appointed by the Board.

The Executive Committee handles major matters arising from business and
operational activities. It relieves the full Board from the needs to carry out
detailed review of information and operational activities and also co-ordinates
the work of other Board committees. The Credit Committee, in addition to its
usual role in evaluating credit applications and making credit decisions, also
serves the vital role of monitoring the loan portfolio quality of the Group. The
ALCO oversees the Group's operations relating to interest rate risk, exchange
rate risk and liquidity risk. In particular, ALCO ensures that the Group has
adequate funds to meet its obligations. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in providing independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process and internal control systems of the Group by working closely with the
Group's internal and external auditors. The Remuneration Committee establishes
policies on the Group's remuneration paid to senior management and key
personnel and monitors their proper implementation. Nomination Committee is
responsible for the review of suitable candidates for directors and senior
management posts. The Risk Committee oversees the overall risk of the Group
and ensures the proper function of the Group's risk monitoring framework.

The Group has complied with the requirements set out in the Supervisory Policy
Manual entitled "Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized
Institutions” issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority in all material
aspects.

81



6 FTEEMEHER(RRBREGESEN) Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

R20246F12H31H » IS4 S B - Sl T The key prudential ratios of the regulatory consolidated group as
1B LR DA B2 i F PO H R 7 LR BB TR PME AR K at 31 December 2024 with the previous four quarter ends as
MI4ITF - comparatives are disclosed in Template KM1 as below.
BARKMI: B LR (R B o ) Template KM1: Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory

Consolidated Basis)

(2) (b) (c) (d) (e)

20244 20244F 20244 202447 20234
12H31H 9A30H 6308 | 3A318 | 12A318
31/12/2024 | 30/09/2024 | 30/06/2024 | 31/03/2024 | 31/12/2023

B9 RS (B B #'000) Regulatory capital (amount) (HKS'000)

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) 399,294 401,658 399,609 395,404 395,494

Tier 1 399,294 401,658 399,609 395,404 395,494

Total capital 542,695 543,828 541,779 539,869 539,959

AT Total RWA | 670421 | 622665 | 608794 | 573395 | 633328
Bl R AR WA LR
( y,mmagg Risk-based regulatory capital ratios (as a percentage of RWA)
SHPT)
5 |CET1H: % (%) CET! ratio (%) 59.56% 64.51% 65.64% 68.96% 62.45%
6 | —#REEHK (%) Tier 1 ratio (%) 59.56% 64.51% 65.64% 68.96% 62.45%
7SS EALLH (%) Total capital ratio (%) 80,95% 87.34% 88.99% 94,15% 85.26%
BUMCETIEMRR (M
BTN E 43  Additional CET1 buffer requirements (as a percentage of RWA)
*r)
g FEERAETEAER (%) rce:i‘it::ni:::‘z:/";’t“’" buffer 2.500% 2500% | 2.500% | 2.500% | 2.500%
0
9 g;ﬁﬂﬁ%@ HAZR rce:t?rt:;fz:th(‘i;])cap“al b 0.500% 1.000% 1.000% | 1.000% 1.000%
(1) (']
B KESTEAE JJEEsk Higher loss absorbency requirements
10 (%) ( HEHRG- (%) (applicable only to G-SIBs or D- N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
SIR=YD-SIB ) SIBs)
= 4 speci
1 T“‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁff%mcm ;:t:i]r?;:zf:zgc)cml buffer 3.00% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
ﬁiﬁ 3] 0) D
e TTISBINREE - : ,
CET! available after meeting the Al
12 |A$ 5% 7 FHICET1 minimﬁ‘:c:pifa?r:;ui;::ris (;J) S| s156% 5651% | 57.64% | 6096% | s4.45%
(%)
{EEMEE=) HHLLSR Basel T leverage ratio
i [ B R S i
13 gfigf?g%@%”f ;"::::f;’?;ﬁ;%g’) [SRiERpmIS 758,460 | 761,733 | 724906 | 713283 | 722,779
2 (;
14 [KitiEE#(LR) (%) LR (%) 52.65% 52.73% 55.12% 55.43% 54.72%
FR MR LLRALCR)/ Ll f = I . =
= Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) / Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (LMR)
Ry RERFEEHE(LMR)
SR s R Applicable to category 1 institution only:
T 1 hi ity liqui t
15 |EHREAEMQLA) (T}‘I’gL A’)gh felibAlauinlEeEes N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
16 HE 47 HeE%E Total net cash outflows N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
17 |LCR (%) LCR (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
CE R SE2E M Applicable to category 2 institution only:
17a |LMR (%) LMR (%) | 119.45% 136.01% | 119.96% | 11941% | 97.18%

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) / Core Funding Ratio (CFR)

Applicable to category 1 institution only:
Total available stable funding N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Total required stable funding N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
NSFR (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
FUEAI R A2AME B - Applicable to category 2A institution only:
20a |CFR (%) CFR (%) | N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

Template KM1: Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory Consolidated
Basis) (Continued)

Note:

N/A: Not applicable

Risk-based regulatory capital ratios

The table summarizes the capital ratios calculated as computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules under regulatory consolidated
basis of the Bank as at the dates shown. The constituent elements of the
Total capital as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 have been
disclosed in note 3.5 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Group. All of the Common Equity Tier 1 capital, Tierl capital and Total
capital of the Bank’s regulatory group have decreased from 30 September
2024 mainly due to the property revaluation loss on investment properties
as at the end of December 2024. With the increase of RWA between the
last two quarter ends of 2024, the Group’s regulatory consolidated CET1
ratio, Tier 1 ratio and Total capital ratio as at 31 December 2024 have
decreased from those as at 30 September 2024.

The Bank uses the Basic Approach for calculating credit risk and the Basic
Indicator Approach for calculating operational risk. The Bank was granted
by the HKMA an exemption from the calculation of market risk under the
exemption criteria under section 22(1) of the Banking (Capital) Rules on
22 March 2016 and has excluded market risk in the calculation of capital
ratio since then and as at 31 December 2024.

The Capital conversation buffer ratio for the Bank for 2024 is 2.5% (2023:
2.5%) as stipulated by the Banking (Capital) Rules. While the Bank only
operates and has private sector credit exposures in Hong Kong for the
purposes of the calculation of its Countercyclical capital buffer ratio, the
applicable Countercyclical capital buffer ratio for the Bank equals to that of
Hong Kong as at 31 December 2024, which amounts to 0.5% (2023: 1%).

Basel III leverage ratio

The leverage ratio shown above represents the regulatory consolidated
leverage ratio calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.
The exposure measure for 31 December 2024 was slightly reduced from
that as at 30 September 2024, as a result of a lower level of customers’
deposits for the fourth quarter of 2024, causing a decrease in the size of the
consolidated statement of financial position. This factor together with the
decrease in the regulatory Group’s Tier 1 capital have led to a slight
decrease in the Group’s consolidated leverage ratio as at 31 December
2024 when compared to 30 September 2024.

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (L.CR) / Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (LMR)

The Bank, as a category 2 institution for the purpose of the Liquidity Rules,
is only required to maintain and report LMR on a solo basis. As such, the
Bank is not required to report LCR. The above LMRs are the quarterly
average LMRs calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s
average LMR of the Bank’s solo position within the reporting quarters. The
decrease in the average LMR noted for the current quarter as compared to
the last quarter was mainly due to a larger extent of increase in the average
qualifying liabilities than the same for liquefiable assets.

&3



6 ERFBILCE(FREPE D) (1)
BURKM1: = S5 I EE R (IR R b 2 2508 (WD)

FfaE:

(7) MERSIPHELIR(NSFR) /0 R &H:¥ (CFR)
TR RARITHE (RErE &) MBIFTET 2 240
FEI0 S T £5NSFR 5 CFR °

(8) R BBOIGERET] (HLA)

SRATUE IR ISR LA 2 BB T M T
» IRABLTTA 2RI RIT (B A HEINFTE 2
HLAZBIRE - SRATIFRTR E SHLALLER -

7 BB TR AR (R R S S )

R EE R LA T Z ROVAFITR - 1220244128318 K
F20245E9 H 300 2 BB & 2 S BB I B
FITRIPMERROVIAFIR -

() ROVA : EB&EEmN
ErERRRE EECHBEREAM X
FZEEEZFER - BEREREE TS R
HERI TR ER Z RS HE - RFZEG0RE
SRZRG(EHERER) AERAKZES
(EHEALE - REEL - TERFAIRRR) K
PiaZ 8 & (FEL 8 & K HANRER) -

HEEFRMTEHEENE ST 2&TRTZE
B SH > NILRIT EBR G 2D BsReT
BEBAN ~ SFRZ R AR BB A T 2 T
- HARESZ EEREE RN EERY
RE TR TEERRE ZEMBORZ K
AN - AERERIRBRRSUE - WL E
TR SHEREOARSFETAT
A B TEFEAZBEEEINRER - TR
BOR BRI ARMTRTEERZ 2%

SRITATRR A 2 B AR AR R EE G KA
B TRk R SRR 7 IR 1 E IR AR
A - NS SRR Eh T 2 £ MR S BORIR A
BRF 0 2 AR ER TSR Rt R
BZER - %ISR ST R AT
TZERERCERAE - MR T E R
FBUBE R - (B S S B R f K
R E 1E Ry i RS i T BB (RS E8h(E
4R -

ERREAMAEREREERESIST RS
s HEEERERRESREEEFE
HILRRESARERREESEZ A MM

- BILFEE - AERBAHRE 3 EESE TE
REAGEG AL » WS T ERE TR T
ERNERER R R RELBRER - i
BN [E1 e R A TR R -

BANRERELEHET - AR T ERRE

' BUIEFIRIFRER - FEERRK - A%
EE TrRmS [ EEARE R - RARMERE
{8 EFH 5 | BEESF R T (AR IR A AN &
Rk B - G e TI R RS TR 1y
st TR B SRTT R (RIR IR M AR £ AR
Bz REHEE R -

Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory Basis) (Continued)

Template KM1: Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory Consolidated
Basis) (Continued)

Note:

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) / Core Funding Ratio (CFR)

The Bank, being a category 2 institution for the purpose of the Liquidity
Rules, is not required to report NSFR and CFR.

Higher Loss Absorbency (HLA)

The Bank is not designated as a domestic systematically important authorised
institution and as such is not subject to the HLA requirements under the
Banking (Capital) Rules. HLA ratio is not required to be reported by the
Bank.

Overview of Risk Management and Risk RWA (on Regulatory
Consolidated Basis)

The overview of risk management and the RWA of the regulatory
consolidated group as at 31 December 2024 and 30 September 2024 are
disclosed in Table OVA and Template OV1 as below.

(i) Table OVA: Overview of Risk Management
While management of major risk areas is delegated to the relevant
Board Committees, the full Board assumes the ultimate responsibility of
overseeing and monitoring the Bank's overall risks. These Committees
include Credit Committee (for credit risk), Asset & Liability Committee
(for capital adequacy, liquidity, market and interest rate risk) and Risk
Committee (for operational and other risks).

Both the Board and bank management fully acknowledge the Bank's
low risk appetite, hence the Bank's activities are confined to a few areas
which the Bank is able to identify, assess and exercise full control over
the risks. Control limits on different activities are set out in the relevant
policies which Board members were provided with updated copics at
meetings. A risk-averse culture has been built throughout the
organization, reinforced by active communications with staff, weekly
management meetings and annual staff briefings on the code of conduct.
All policies and operating procedures are available for handy reference
by staff.

The management information system applied by the Bank permits
timely and accurate position reporting for regular reviews by
management and relevant staff. Positions, or anticipated positions
arising from taking certain activities with resultant pressure to meet the
policy limits, will be brought to management attention promptly. Impact
analysis and sensitivity analysis will be performed, and viable
alternatives posted, for management decisions to mitigate the risks. For
the important control limits, trigger levels below such limits are set
serving as cushions allowing time for management to take actions to
rectify.

Important functions and activities, as determined by the Board, are
subject to periodic compliance checks. The findings are posted to senior
management for information, and to the relevant functions who are
required to respond with remedial plans. At the same time, Internal
Audit formulates 3-year audit plans for review and acceptance by Audit
Committee, and conducts audit works according to plan with results
presented at Audit Committee meetings where management would
respond with action time-table.

Stress tests are performed semi-annually to examine the key issues
including the risk of delinquent interbank placements, deposit run-off,
tisk of capital adequacy from falling property values, risk in meeting the
various sections of the Banking (Exposure Limits) Rules due to
escalating values of property. Reverse stress tests are performed
annually to examine the sufficiency of buffers in meeting the different
sections under the Banking (Exposure Limits) Rules.
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7 ReEHF RSN Overview of Risk Management and Risk RWA (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
(PR ERHOER) (B (Continued)
(i) BRROV1 : el ging 1 ety o (i) Template OV1: Overview of RWA as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited - on
20244E12H 31 B (RS Eire Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
AL8)
@ 1 _® ©
ST A
R R et
RWA .
capital
requirements
20244 20244 20244F
12319 9H30H 12A31H
31/12/2024 | 30/09/2024 § 31/12/2024 |
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W R I R e Crodit risk for non-securitizalion exposures 712,889 | 727,803 61,831
2 HBSTCHEE ' Of which STC approach : : =
2a HABSCEHEE Of which BSC approach 772,889 727,803 61,831
3 HPEBIRBAE A Of which foundation IRB approach - - -
4 H B M HE Al Of which supervisory slotting criteria approach - - w
5 HAE4RIRBET &L Of which advanced IRB approach - - Z
6 |BtEremmR R e &I S:::r;;:l:?;ys default risk and default fund i i i
7 HHSA-CCR Of which SA-CCR - - -
7a HAP BT RBORIE T Of which CEM 2 = =
8 HAIMM(CCR)E B A Of which IMM(CCR) approach & - =
9 Ho o LAl Of which others = _ .
10 lcvamg CVA risk ) ; .
1 i B Bl T 73 E N BB 7554 &Y |Equity positions in banking book under the simple risk- ) ) i
SRITHR M ECRE IR weighted method and internal models method
12 PR B ER R —LTA Collective investment scheme ("CIS") exposures - LTA = . -
13 | s s bR ——MBA {CIS exposures - MBA - - :
14 |Oimis st B R R ki —TFBA CIS exposures — FBA - = .
14a gg&&ﬁ PR BRI —R S ST CIS exposures - combination of approaches 2 = -
15 |RRdbam Settlement risk - . -
16 Fﬁf{?}ﬁﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁ#{ LA A b A Securitization exposures in banking book = - =
17 Hr SEC-IRBA Of which SEC-IRBA < - -
18 H.' SEC-ERBA Of which SEC-ERBA - . =
19 H.rt SEC-SA Of which SEC-SA - - =
19a .t SEC-FBA Of which SEC-FBA = E =
20 i g Market risk . - .
21 HAPSTMEEE Of which STM approach - - E
22 HopIMMEEL Of which IMM approach = z s
AF SR ERATHEL Y R LI Eig &5 [Capital charge for switch between exposures in trading
23 |fAE: (LB FSERIESS%E] [book and banking book (not applicable before the N/A N/A N/A
FIEA) revised market risk framework takes effect)
24 iR RS Operational risk 70,600 66,425 5,648
24a VE TR RS Sovereign concentration risk - u -
25 ﬁﬁ?[lﬁ["]{ﬁﬁ‘]ﬁﬁ (ZE51E250%)E 5 JAmounts below the thresholds for deduction (subject to ) ] )
HiE) 250% RW)
26 [FrA TR Capital floor adjustment - - =
26a | BRI WO Deduction to RWA 173,068 171,563 13,845
Hrp R aiEr _RERNN—K Of which portion of regulatory reserve for generalf
26b SRTHE R IR\ B (e P e banking risks and collective provisions which is - - -
FEEEE T not included in Tier 2 Capital
HAOREEE _RERNN M Of which portion of cumulative fair value gains
26¢ FamAEEEGmMEENE arising from the revaluation of land and buildings] 173,068 171,563 13,845
FEAEEE U 2567885y which is not included in Tier 2 Capital
27 AT Total 670,421 622,665 53,634
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320244E12F31H As at 31 December 2024

Overview of Risk Management and Risk RWA (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
(Continued)

(i) Template OV1: Overview of RWA as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited - on Regulatory
Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

Note:

(1) N/A: Not applicable

(2) The increase noted in the credit risk for non-securitization exposures calculated on BSC
approach between the above two periods was mainly due to the increases noted in higher risk-
weighted assets of loans and property, plant & equipment, being partially offset by the
decrease in the holdings of lower risk-weighted assets, that is, interbank placements for the
position of 31 December 2024. Operational risk have also increased due to the higher level
of operating income for the fourth quarter of 2024.

Linkages between Financial Statements and Regulatory Exposures

The differences between accounting and regulatory scopes of consolidation and mapping of
financial statement categories with regulatory risk categories are disclosed in Template LI1, while
the main sources of differences between regulatory exposure amounts and the carrying values in
the financial statements are given in Template LI2 below. Table LIA provides explanations of
differences between accounting and regulatory exposure amounts as at 31 December 2024,

(i) Template LI1: Differences between Accounting and Regulatory Scopes of Consolidation
and Mapping of Financial Statement Categories with Regulatory Risk Categories

@ (b) © | @ | @@ | o | @
B ARt JHE RYERME{E Carrying values of items:
BREg | ARERS RRAM

ARRE | MR TR | ZEARR | XBFHE | REHFMUE |RTRER | ERARRA
i ERAR | AEMER | FHER | SRR | ARFNR

Carrying R not subject to
values as Carrying capital
reported in | values under subject to requirements

published scope of subject to | counterparty |subject to the| subject to | or subject to
financial regulatory | credit risk | credit risk |securitization| market risk | deduction
statements | ¢ lidation | framework | framework | framework | framework | from capital

RE Assets HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS$'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000
[ﬁﬁ—ﬁ%&ﬁf&[‘ﬁ] Cash and balances with banks 93,042 93,042 93,042 - - - -
SRR

JEHRHERE] SR AU Placements with banks maturing

MIZ12/HE/%IH]  |between one and twelve months 79,080 79,080 R ) i : =
fq.ﬁ' TRk R Mo Loans and advances to customers 210,486 210,469 210469 ) | y )

£l and other accounts

DA O R »

LB AL A4 :?Jf;é?em ecTifesImeasuTEiE, 202,008 202908| 202,908 . . ) .
i Z s

T E AT Investment in subsidiaries - 10 10| - .| | B
PN » BEE RS Property, plant and equipment | 137,181] 137,181 137,181| -l | -l .
B |Investment properties 303,300| 303,300  303,300] - - - .
HEFEETE |Right—of-use assets 37,418) 37,481 37,481] | -l | -
HeEUkEl 2 #E ITax recoverable 13| 1 3] 13| -I -| -| -|
wEas Total assets | 1,063,428] 1,063,484 1,063,484| . .| | =
M Liabilities | | | | | | |
lz5E% Deposits from customers |  237.895] 238802 ¥ | | | 238802
[ e Lease liabilities | 41,595 41,684| 3 B i - 41,684
| states i s Other liabilities and provisions | 58,803 58,686| -l 3 - gl 58,686
| | Current tax liabilities | 10] 10| B g B - 10
| Ersm e | Deferred tax liabilities | 8,544| 8,540| 3 ] .| ] 8,540
|t | Total liabilities | 346849] 347,722 ] i | | 3
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(i) BURLI2 : EEEMRIRBEE BRRTZ

(Continued)

Linkages between Financial Statements and Regulatory Exposures

(ii) Template LI2: Main Sources of Differences Between Regulatory

TR 2 28 2 F Exposure Amounts and Carrying Values in Financial Statements
@ ®w | @ | @ | @
SN THELFEMREE Items subject to:
et | mmEeER | macey | HTERRR | TERRE
ER 3
Credit risk Securitization Count.erp.arty Market risk
Total credit risk
framework framework framework
framework
R20234£12H31H As at 31 December 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
I S Asset carrying value amount
e i A o Ao e
1 g% %Eaﬁt?fggg i scope of regulatory 1,063,484 1,063,484 i
L; 1 il A lidation (as per template L [
) L1l)
- . Liabilities carrying value
2 gi;ggggggi amount under regulatory scope
1 N ~ of consolidation (as per lj ) il
LI template LI1)
- - Total net amount under
3 g%zﬁé Lt regulatory scope of 1,063,484 1,063,484 -
rle consolidation
4 |BEABERIINEEE Off-balance sheet amounts 15,904 15,904 - -
ESENEIlpE - E R =] Differences due to different
5 |FRSiEESE (EFIA netting rules, other than those 9,853 9,853 -
TR RSN ) already included in row 2
DB R BNETER Exposure amounts considered
6 R KRB for regulatory purposes 1,089,241 1,089,241 - -

(iif)

FLIA : 820244£12 31 H @ S EERM K
R U 2 AR R

ATERRLI LA (a) 512 B 75 ML 5 SRAT R LS
LEIBATBE2024F12A3 HZ &G %
BB BB TR R & M IR -
FZSHERITZ B A SIS RRER S B HRR
WiE13P - SREINGAEHT A SR B S EsR
G BHREA -

bty AR R R E AR A E R E A
BRZGEERENAE - (FEEERB &S
S AR T - IR ASEARA
g - $ERRARLE - REKERRAFE
REBEFARAT - FRERAIRZEGE
SREECABERRLILZ (D)FIA -

PATERRLITA () 5154 (b) 312 Bl » HZRA
FEK -

GRE R ER AR 2 R I B B T B R SR B A
EFIRPREIRLI2ZA - 1220244FE12H31H » R
HHEL AR -

Table LIA: Explanations of Differences Between Accounting and
Regulatory Exposure Amounts as at 31 December 2024

The amounts in column (a) in Template LI1 are taken from the consolidated
financial statements which have been prepared based on the consolidated
results and financial data of the Bank and its five wholly owned subsidiaries
made up to 31 December 2024. The five subsidiaries of the Bank are listed in
Note 13 of the consolidated financial statements. There are no subsidiaries
which have not been included in the consolidated financial statements.

The above basis of consolidation for accounting purposes differs from the
basis of consolidation for regulatory purposes, under which only four of the
subsidiaries, namely, Success Land Enterprises Limited, Golden Wisdom
Development Limited, Team Gold Investment Limited and Gold Harmony
Enterprises Limited, are included as subsidiaries in the consolidated Group
for regulatory purposes. The consolidated carrying values under the scope of
regulatory consolidation are included under column (b) in Template LI1.

Differences between the amounts in columns (a) and (b) in Template LI1 are
not material.

The carrying values in the consolidated financial statements and the
regulatory exposure amounts are listed in Template LI2. There is no
difference between these two as at 31 December 2024.
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(iii)

()

Linkages between Financial Statements and Regulatory Exposures
(Continued)

Table LIA: Explanations of Differences Between Accounting and
Regulatory Exposure Amounts as at 31 December 2024 (Continued)

The Group does not engage in business that subject itself to counterparty
credit risk framework and securitization framework. In addition, the Group
has received exemption granted by HKMA for calculating market risk.

The Group adopts prudent valuation estimates for all its on and off-balance
sheet items. The valuation techniques and methodology adopted by the
Group has been detailed in Note 3.4 of the consolidated financial
statements.

The Template PV1 of the regulatory consolidated group as at 31
December 2024 on prudent valuation adjustments is disclosed below.

WF -
FERRPV] © 20244212 H 31 H & EGE Template PV1 : Prudent Valuation Adjustments as at 31 December 2024
GRS - (RS A Em) (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (9] ® (h)
Hep: ;
b
B
pom | U ogm | e | | wm [ orwhien: | SRTRGE
Equity Interest FX Credit Commo- Total In the Of which: In
1 rates dities R the banking
trading book
book
HAWr000 HKS '000
1 W IERYREEEME - Close-out uncertainty,
Hep of which: )
2 FEH{E Mid-market value
3 X IERAC Close-out costs
4 £+ Concentration
5 [EAIERIE {Early termination
6 ﬂfﬁiﬁ}ﬂl‘ﬁ Model risk ]
7 EEERERR IOperational risk
—— Investing and funding
8 frarmens | [ ! ]
9 IREEEVESHF Unearned credit spreads - -
10 [ mma [f:stutsre administrative .
11 HE AR fOther adjustments
12 R mcpnan Total adjustments -
FaE: Note:

SRITAC SRR RSRITSR (EA) RBIE
AMGRIE (TR A (E A2 -

The Bank is not required to make any valuation adjustments for the
purpose of Banking (Capital) Rules section 4A.
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Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

The calculation of the capital ratios as at 31 December 2024 and 30 June 2024 is based on
the Banking (Capital) Rules (“BCR”) effective from 1 January 2014. The capital ratios
represent consolidated ratios of the Bank computed in accordance with section 3(1) of the

BCR.

The tables below present the composition of the regulatory capital as at 31 December 2024
and 30 June 2024 (Template CC 1) and the statements of financial position based on the
accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory reporting scope respectively as at 31
December 2024 and 30 June 2024 (Template CC 2).

F(BRRCC2)
()BURCCI © 132024412831 HEEBE R (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2024
A ZGHFR (GREB - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
R EGRaEN)
REUEEGABE TR
EANRNSFREBRMK
]
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
W %E| sheet under the regulatory
(ﬁm 000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
: :. —4 (LRI : = mmﬁk’mwmﬂ““ & ey ‘P ot
. E%&??E’JAQ%CETIﬁKEEHEE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital . )
AR (2 E instruments plus any related share premium g )
2 |(REESTI Retained eamnings 399,601 (7
3 |EHEEHEE Disclosed reserves 6,161 BYHA)H5)H6)
4 e e ; = Directly issued capital subject to phase-out : :
4 //Ef%CET{ &:&.E{i-’fﬁﬁ@_’ﬁﬁ?&??f arrangements from CETI (only applicable to Z:]E,ﬁﬁ Z:ﬁ.ﬂq
B (AR S RANE]D won-joint stock companies) Not applicable Not applicable
~ 4= Sy — Minorty interests ansing from CET1 capital
gggﬁg— IW ;iiaﬁﬁéf;%%i_ﬂ.ﬁé instruments issued by consolidated bank
5 2 ( PN - CE’ﬁ subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount
it FIETARRESRBIAY BAL allowed in CET! capital of the consolidation
W) oup)
6 E'MNWCETlf:K CET1 capital before regulatory sdjnstmts 670,749
ez ww® |CETT capital regolatory deductions _ R ES !
7 _UEEARE Valuation adjustments 2
8 (@ (EmRmmeOEEREAR) :i}:l:)i:ii\:in::)(net of associated deterred tax
9 HifEpEE (CHRHEBRER Other intangible assets (net of associated deferred
HAE) tax liabilities)
10 BIERERE (THRERERIER Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred tax
HEF) liabilities)
11 VG e Cash flow hedge reserve
12 FIRBE & A FELAEE S ERE Excess of total EL amount over total eligible
HEEE B provisions under the IRB approach i
HEB 5B S AR RS FHAY R Credit-enhancing interest-only strip, and any gain-
13 |24 - HEBRS RCETIE AR EA, on-sale and other increase in the CET1 capital
Eﬂngﬁ arising from securitization transactions
7 BN EEEGENSERASER Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
BB P A YIRS risk on fair valued liabilities
15 REFRNRAESESIFER (T Defined benefit pension fund net assets (net of
ARt IR IR TR S (E ) associated deferred tax liabilities)
PR SMNCETIE AEBMEIE ( Investments in own CET1 capital instruments (if
16 |EUAREFIRENEEABEEPHRE not already netted off paid-in capital on reported
ZAHHIER) balance sheet)
17 | esancen A= Reciprocal cross-holdings in CET]1 capital
) o instruments
. b Insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
18 gg%iﬁ%ﬁg&?&ﬁiﬁg instruments issued by financial sector entities that

& (B0 B0

are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

(amount above 10% threshold)
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Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2024

WA Z RH B (A% - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
TR E B AT S EE) (B
REUBRERSEMET
RER MR SHRM
Rk
Source based on
reference numbers of the
balance sheet under tlu:"
B regulatory scope o
(&R 000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount consolidation
REEESRORBELUIMISRIE TS Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital instruments
19 |SB{THCETI EAZEHAE KLACKE issued by financial sector entities that are outside the scope -
(BH10%MHE2 %) of regulatory consolidation (amount above 10% threshold)
20 BB ENERME (EHBRERET Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated deferred tax S| REH
BUAAME) liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
21 HY RN EREEAIRIERIEEE Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net A REfA
(EIIERfEmt R RIS A MR|) of associated deferred tax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
22 [BHI15%MHE - % Amount exceeding the 15% threshold 7R3% i Not applicable | 73 FNot applicable
- Ho: Ry M E of which: significant investments in the ordinary share of A E ST
BE financial sector entities Not applicable Not applicable
24 |Hrb : UBE SIS HEE of which: mortgage servicing rights 7R Fi Not applicable | 7~ AiNot applicable
e Hoop o I M A YR AERRE of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary EA A
f=v:3 differences Not applicable Not applicable
HAMCETIE AR AEREEFRIEE  |National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1
26 | ! 271,455
% capital
26 g%gggﬁgéigégﬁig% Cumulative fair value gains arising from the revaluation of 269,655 3)4(8
a [&g Sy land and buildings (own-use and investment properties) ’ Gr®
26b | — R TR RS L T Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,800 (6)
26¢ SREEEBS THIBNPTISHAYE Securitization exposures specified in a notice given by the
LB BB MA
26d R A I T i R R BRI BT Cumulative losses below depreciated cost arising from the
ERAEETEAN REE institution's holdings of 1and and buildings i
26e | ZHEEIEIRITHIMATINEAREG R Capital shortfall of regulated non-bank subsidiaries -
REMEEERAEERATTHE Capital investment in a connected company which is a
26f | AHE (U RS ARLRA1S commercial entity (amount above 15% of the reporting -
%2 %) institution's capital base)
F8E 7 BATIE A K &ALl Regulatory deductions applied to CET1 capital due to
27 |HEAOBRTIZAFCETI R AIRRAYEZEF]  |insufficient AT1 capital and Tier 2 capital to cover -
B deductions
28 | CETIFRA W W HI BN Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 271,455
CET1 capital

29 |CET1 &4

399,294

Arien

|AT1 capital: inst

2 EABAT] R SR (AT AR as

Qualifying AT1 capital instruments plus any related share

N {E premium 1l
Hb @ iR A as BERI BRI ARE of which: classified as equity under applicable accounting

31 =|
3 standards

3 He R EA e A A of which: classified as liabilities under applicable ]

bl

accounting standards

33 |FF0EAT] AL A0 3 A

Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
from AT1 capital

H& G IRITH A SR T B =7
34 [RFAMATIRARE (it AR

AT1 capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in

MFIATIEARISEE) AT1 capital of the consolidation group)
35 Hpr o il s a @ iR iR R of which: AT1 capital instr ts issued by subsidiaries
FEARRATAT] FFA sy subject to phase-out arrangements 5

36 [BERIBZ MINATIRE

AT1 capital before regulatory deductions
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Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(i) BIRRCCL : 1320244E12H31H (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2024
BB R 2 RH R (R AR - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
TR B RS AR ()
FRAEE SRS RE TR’
EARRNSTRBRIR
i*
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
mF sheet under the regulatory
(%' 000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
37 | EAGHATI BEAZBARE Investments in own AT1 capital instruments =
38 | B NEENATIEAZ S Reciprocal cross-holdings in AT1 capital instruments =
o _ Insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital
N EBEA g2 =i Y A
39 gﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁﬁgﬁ ; E{;;?giﬁlfff instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
gﬁ(_ L 10% F'EJ;% >80 outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount il
above 10% threshold)
e _ Significant LAC investments in AT1 capital instruments
40 @ﬁ o A’I?’IT ﬁf .; é’;gfﬁfff issued by financial sector entities that are outside the <
fr scope of regulatory consolidation
4l HARATIEREEEEESTEE National specific regulatory adjustments applied to AT1 ]
SEEEES capital
02 FSAER BN REARDEHIRTZA  |Regulatory deductions applied to AT1 capital due to L
FEATI EAHIRAB B IR insufficient Tier 2 capital to cover deductions
43 | HATIRANE B RE Total regulatory deductions to AT1 capital |
44 JATIRE AT1 capital -
45 [TORE (—RRE =CETIRE + |5 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1) 399,294
46 gg*g Z,&gz{:;ﬁ;gﬂuﬁfﬂ ﬁ ﬁﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁ Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any related i
prali| share premium
Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
07 |t RIS AT | el .
A4S R TH AT &I T EE =75  |Tier 2 capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
48 |EEH_REAEE (F[5F A4S %E  [subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in =
EH 4B ARMIEEE) Tier 2 capital of the consolidation group)
- Jtir : (iR 2 BTSN, |of which: capital instruments issued by subsidiaries |
G AN subject to phase-out arrangements
50 LB AT IREANESEHES K |Collective provisions and regulatory reserve for general 1.800 ©
— R T R R e banking risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital i
51 ﬁmazmg_,mmg Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,800
Cesos wmEmm | [TerZoapiuk epuaorydeductions | 5 SEy
52 |NsERA B A EAEBINEE Investments in own Tier 2 capital msimments -
53 |EHERXEAN RERER Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 capital instruments -
_ Insignificant LAC investments 1n Tier 2 capital
A g BB A 22 o 30 1 [ .
gﬁ%%g%ﬁ;@ggiﬁf&% instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
54 gf—(f ;g£1 0% ; & RO 5% outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount o
o above 10% threshold and, where applicable, 5%
F 2 BO threshold)
PR e A RIE MM S R Insignificant LAC investments in non-capital LAC
G’:HIE%ZK‘L Acﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂijﬁéj(mc\&ﬁ liabilities of financial sector entities that are outside the|
e 5% M8 T 7 scope of regulatory consolidation (amount formerly|
54a (Z AR E IS9P TR E Sk designated for the 5% threshold but no longer meets the -

FEFEMERE 2B (RERAR
£ (EABAT) MZRAFSE2(1EE T3
E#ER TEAREE, B

conditions) (for institutions defined as “section 2
institution” under §2(1) of Schedule 4F to BCR only)
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9 RAGMETEMR(RBREER Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EEE) ()
(i) BERRCCL : 220244E12H31H (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2024
BERA 2R (R - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
RSO ()
REUEEGSEN TR
ERENSZRBRK
8
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
W#5| sheet under the regulatory
(%' 000) (Presented in HKS$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
e A e — Significant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
55 mﬁﬁﬁgéiéggﬁﬁﬁiﬁ instruments issued by financial sector entitics that are
ﬁfjﬂg—‘A_ﬁ ) & ; Ci outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of
(EMRERREE) cligible short positions)
— B Significant CAT investments in non-capital LAC
55 E{;E%ﬁgﬁﬁ;ﬁ}&&ﬂgﬁ@%%‘% liabilities of financial sector entitics that are outside the
afs %2& il RATEALACK K (B4l scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short
BEBERER) sitions)
56 HWHR R EANE AR EE e National specific regulatory adjustments applied to Tier 2 (141,601)
LEEE capital ’
e p— - Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising from the
56 glﬁléﬁ;ﬁgaf)\~§&§gﬂ’ﬂ;‘fiﬁt& revaluation of Tand and buildings (own-use and 141.601 [(2)+(3)+(8)]
a gé%@ Fﬁ&&ﬁ}? ) g{E{E_ investment properties) eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 (141,601) *45%
BT A AR Y RAR N EEE W capital
2 (EARHHD F48(X)EREM . ; g )
i iy - Regulatory deductions applied to Tier 2 capital to cover
56b fg,@ﬁ P WA FRATROEE | required deductions falling within §48(1)(g) of BCR o
57 | MR R Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital (141,601)
58 | ZRhFRA Tier 2 capital (T2) 143,401
59 f!gggf (BRAE = —@RE 101 regulatory capital (TC=T1 + T2) 542,695
60 | B\BR I AN 3R Total RWA 670,421
A EETE AREREE T I8 o 7 e . - = il
61 |CET1 EALLR CET1 capital ratio 59.56%
62 | —ERFEALLSR Tier 1 capital ratio 59.56%
63 |MFALLHE Total capital ratio 80.95%
RN EEERATR (HMEERA  |Institution-specific buffer requirement (capital
64 |ZRLEIER fniv AW RALL®R o conservation buffer plus countercyclical capital 8.00%
BRI UGB RE D ELRR ) buffer plus higher loss absorbency requirements)
65 | B i sBar i AT of which: capital conservation buffer requirement 2.500%
- A o SRR S R i A% |of which: bank specific countercyclical capital buffer 0.500%
Zr requirement UL
67 |EH - BEERYTEHIGE LR of which: higher loss absorbency requirement 0.00%
68 FIEM&REF AR EH TEMAR  [CETI (as a percentage of RWA) available after meeting 51.56%
CET1 ({sR&infliRaEnIEath) ‘minimum capital requirements :
|Gy M Nation minima (fiferent fom Basel 3 miinay |
ﬁ-ﬁg\’k XL e ). 1 - - - | —b ' LT B - (YD _r L
B - - ) e . REA A
69 |EAEEECETIR{EELR National CET1 minimum ratio Not applicable Not applicable
—. == ] ! . . EA E A
70 |EAEREE —REAGEHR National Tier 1 minimum ratio Not applicable Not applicable
N e . . . . REA TEH
71 |EAEEEERAREEL® National Total capital minimum ratio Not applicable Not applicable
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Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2024
(Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(Presented in HK$'000)

Insignificant LAC investments in CET1, AT1 and Tier 2

o6

RF B AR T3
Eﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁm&rﬁ

Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
sheet under the regulatory

BRAAMAATRAER IS )

BB A REANHMBSCET RIARK

ettt

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
exposures subject to the BSC approach, or the STC

72 [FICETIZAZERR - ATIERAZBE —HE capital instruments issued by financial sector entities that -
TBAIEE ALACRE are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
_ = Significant LAC i tments in CE ital instruments

T

FICETI RA ST EALACKH R ol st i T

- |scope of regulatory consolidation

74 BB RCE TN (SRR e Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated deferred tax TiEA R A

&fi) liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
75 G REAARERIESE (B0 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences RiEH AEA

(net of associated deferred tax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable

SEC-IRBA THI%M S (HEA LFRAT)

(prior to application of cap)

L :;g';ri’_i% ;?%:;R(BF‘;% f;é;ﬁ“) & approach and SEC-ERBA, SEC-SA and SEC-FBA (prior 1,800
Sl to application of cap)
TEBSCEHHEASSTCE B At SEC- Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the BSC
77 |ERBA, SEC-SA j; SEC- approach, or the STC approach, and SEC-ERBA, SEC- 9,661
FBA T HIEt A —AREAREM S EIR SA and SEC-FBA
N i Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
78 ERETA—BRAKATRBIRB: TAR exposures sub?ecl to the IRB approach and SECP-GI;BA =

BRI CET] A

Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the IRB
approach and SEC-IRBA

80 Current cap on CET! capital insuets ubject to

BT LR phase-out arrangements Not applicable Not applicable
81 IR FHRT A A CETI I8 (7 Amount excluded from CETI due to cap (excess over cap BT i

A BB EWIR e FIRZ 8 after redemptions and maturities) Not applicable Not applicable
8 PR AETLARITAT] Fr i ny sl Current cap on ATI capital instruments subject to phase-

LR out arrangements §i
83 HIFAE R A AT gi 8078655 ( Amount excluded from ATI capital due to cap (excess

LEA BRI R YR & LR %) over cap after redemptions and maturities) 1
84 AB T B G TR — B o A TR Current cap on Tier 2 capital instruments subject to

77 LR | phase-out arrangements &
8s IR E IR G A SR eds ( Amount excluded from Tier 2 capital due to cap (excess

TR /5] 32 SR AT Y [ 8D over cap after redemptions and maturities) i

93



9 RAEREMETREMN(RIBEELS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
H58) ()
() BEARCCI : 1A20244F12 531 HEEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2024
B RA Z (AR (AR - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
FRIRE B OS2 ()
TR EE Notes to the Template:
TBER (EEWEES) |
1T Description Hong Kong 2
basis| Basel I basis|
9 HAormpReE (CHRARAETEEREAEM) Other intangible assets (net of associated deferred
tax liabilities)
fRse Explanation
FNEEEZEESEN (EEFHHGE=) X As set out in paragraph 87 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel Committee (December 2010),
7% (2010%E128 ) SERTERFRYIES & HriB{itEns mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”) may be given limited recognition in CET1 capital (and hence be
HET{ECETIE AN T LUAIRERDE (WH excluded from deduction from CET1 capital up to the specified threshold). In Hong Kong, an Al is
M EJ#ECET 1A #5245 - {EL5 % required to follow the accounting treatment of including MSRs as part of intangible assets reported in
PIERIR) - FE:E AT EE R the AT's financial statements and to deduct MSRs in full from CET1 capital. Therefore, the amount to
EEFEE L GRS B B L be deducted as reported in row 9 may be greater than that required under Basel III. The amount|
VR 2 NERSEN 4 » WHECET reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 9 (i.¢.
1A D LSRRI SUSER - Jit - £ the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amount of MSRs to be
BT HEMA TR ST e SR (B deducted to the extent not in excess of the 10% threshold set for MSRs and the aggregate 15%
EENES) B EFIREISEE - AN threshold set for MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary differences and significant investments in
T{MERGES) £ B TFERNBES CET]1 capital instruments issued by financial sector entities (excluding those that are loans, facilities
IR B OITRTERSGE (B T &8 or other credit exposures to connected companies) under Basel III.
B H MRS AR AR
HURAHE R ERCE BRI FLUT 3 SR
BBE (BEFNE=) TREREREHEE
FTEAY10%F U S st i M LA B - e
M R EA NIRRT E RN SRS TR
BITAICETI EAEBNERLE (FHER
HAEEBAFINER - BBsEAM SRR &
&) FTEM15%EBPHERBIR -
10 BERFERE (SHREDRBTREEMN) Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred tax 1
liabilities)
R Explanation

IEMEZEHEZAERI (BERTE=) X
& (201055121 ) 69K BTERFRFIE - 1TFIR
TP UBEBRAGRESIAAER TR - iy
WM R A BRI AR S AR AR FECET1
ARTLUARERS (NIRRT CETI®A
HHUE AR - HUEEFIERR) - £F
A RRANEENR - ST HEARECET
V&R D LBHTRFTARERIERE - A
P8 LOTTFESRA TR BEE T se g i (
EEHEBE=) SETRNEHE - EREN
T (CEBRGES) A% H NERVEEE
R R S LOTT AT SR B B B Y
2R LOTTPREESRAYEAR (HI7E T &A%, 18
THENEBEE) - AR TER AR A
Y R AR R E A B T L T
C WA BT (EEERHE=) TN
= SPE L AV IRFERR I A TR A 10% P T R
SRR - YTHEE R EATIE
EARE R SR TR TNCETIRA
REMNEARE (FTaEREARRATNEG
X - RS RS AR E ) FTER
BEIS%IHERIR -

As set out in paragraphs 69 and 87 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel Committee (December
2010), DTAs of the bank to be realized are to be deducted, whereas DTAs which relate to temporary
differences may be given limited recognition in CET1 capital (and hence be excluded from deduction
from CET1 capital up to the specified threshold). In Hong Kong, an Al is required to deduct all DTAs
in full, irrespective of their origin, from CET1 capital. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as|
reported in row 10 may be greater than that required under Basel III. The amount reported under the
column "Basel Il basis” in this box represents the amount reported in row 10 (i.e. the amount reported
under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amount of DTAs to be deducted which relate|
to temporary differences to the extent not in excess of the 10% threshold set for DTAs arising from
temporary differences and the aggregate 15% threshold set for MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary
differences and significant investments in CET1 capital instruments issued by financial sector entities|
(excluding those that are loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies) under
Basel IIL
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9  FAEHMETENR(IBESHS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
H38) (80
(i) BUHCCL « 7R20244E12H31 HEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2024
R Z R CGRIEED - IR (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
SEE) ()
BRI EE () Notes to the Template: (Continued)
(E =
TR |NE Description Hong Kong e
basis Basel 11 basis
RERESAREDSIMISRIE MR TN Insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
CETIRAEBNIEEALACKK (EH10% instruments issued by financial sector entities that
18 P2 %0)) are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - i
(amount above 10% threshold)
R Explanation
BEEN SRS THICETI EAZEN For the purpose of determining the total amount of insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
FEE AKLACRY B4R » 27 ol #e /A T E FR instruments issued by financial sector entities, an Al is required to aggregate any amount of loans,
FHAT A RS RIS SR YA BN\ S A8 facilities or other credit exposures provided by it to any of its connected companies, where the
AR - BEECELANS F B RIS ST 4R connected company is a financial sector entity, as if such loans, facilities or other credit exposures
%E 0 SRS SN - RLEE (S F AR RS were direct holdings, indirect holdings or synthetic holdings of the Al in the capital instruments of the
BT SRS EE financial sector entity, except where the AI demonstrates to the satisfaction of the MA that any such
SRIZEBNEREE AL - ST OIS loan was made, any such facility was granted, or any such other credit exposure was incurred, in the
14 i P 2 5 S i B S Al AT MRS R 1T ordinary course of the ATs business. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as reported in row 18 may|
B S il R R R SR ~ HEBE( be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount reported under the column "Basel III basis"
SRR RS [T A R S H A £ B R R I in this box represents the amount reported in row 18 (i.e. the amount reported under the "Hong Kong
BIIRRSH - BRI 1B 8T FTHLSRE TR basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the
EEgEeER (EEEBES) Bl AT's connected companies which were subject to deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
BUE - EARAN T (EEREBE=) B
IE TSI R AV 18T AT EEBAY
B (BME " EBEE ) B MERNEED) o
MR AR R EBRANTE AT
AR AT A R A SAVERK - BB
(= AR AR IS HY S5 TARAR -
REEEGAREDINMIS R ITM BTN Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
CETIRAEMNEALACKRK (FEH110%F instruments issued by financial sector entities that
19 are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - %

L )

(amount above 10% threshold)

frR

RETER SR EERITACET R AR
ERLACK B4R - LTI T R R T
HAL A RS E R A R AT HE A B
BVEERK - BB ECHALE AR R B A ST
» BRI SE SR - BEREHME R R R
HABERERNE - MEFARSRAZE
REEROEATIE M - HEETTREER
& B AN H Rl TR R
HEBERPELEMZTER - #HHEAX

FRLEET R R A H R R IEE
BRoh - BRIk - ERITHUERA TSI
TEEgER (EEERE=S) MERUBRNE
38 - EAMNE T (EEERES) B TH
T ERA B R R B AVTE S 19T TR AV
% (AN T EAALE ) I FEURAVEIR) o T
PR TTERBRIET R MRYA T A TR
BORE AT A B A FIR R - AL EEA
EHERRRIE G -

Explanation

For the purpose of determining the total amount of significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities, an Al is required to aggregate any amount of loans,
facilities or other credit exposures provided by it to any of its connected companies, where the
connected company is a financial sector entity, as if such loans, facilities or other credit exposures
were direct holdings, indirect holdings or synthetic holdings of the Al in the capital instruments of the
financial sector entity, except where the Al demonstrates to the satisfaction of the MA that any such
loan was made, any such facility was granted, or any such other credit exposure was incurred, in the
ordinary course of the AI's business. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as reported in row 19 may|
be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount reported under the column "Basel III basis"
in this box represents the amount reported in row 19 (i.e. the amount reported under the "Hong Kong
basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the
AT's connected companies which were subject to deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
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9  REEMEFARMRGRBESSS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
Z08) ()
() BIERCCL : 1R20244E12H3 1 HEE S (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2024
RAEZEHR GRIBER - E R (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
) ()
HRSHTEE ¢ (4H) Notes to the Template: (Continued)
ERIEN| (EEWBE=)
|z Description Hong Kong X
basis| Basel I1T basis|
REREHREREIVIMISREM MR TTN Insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital
ATIRAEERNIEEALACER (HH10%F9 instruments issued by financial sector entities that
39 BB are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation 2 -
(amount above 10% threshold)
ey Explanation
B EE AR R L T EE ST The effect of treating loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies which are
AR A TN E - BUEREMSHER financial sector entities as CET] capital instruments for the purpose of considering deductions to be
K EHBCETIBEAER (R rARMIERRS1 made in calculating the capital base (see note re row 18 to the template above) will mean the
BITAVMTEE ) fERIIRIANEEE » e HAHER headroom within the threshold available for the exemption from capital deduction of other
{EATI S A E SN L IEE ALACIE BENE A insignificant LAC investments in AT! capital instruments may be smaller. Therefore, the amount to
RGBS G B M ATREA B - R » 78 be deducted as reported in row 39 may be greater than that required under Basel II. The amount
WE3OFTRTHUR A IR ERE e ErE it (2 reported under the column "Basel III basis” in this box represents the amount reported in row 39 (i.e.
HEGES) EEERABEE - [EABNE the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of]
T (BEEGES) 5% E FERNEEES loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the Al's connected companies which were subject to
|&¥r§3ﬂ’f3ﬂ’ﬂ {EEITTFE RN (Bl T 5% deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
B T THEHBNEE) - MARITERHR
EF BN A T A TIIRNRE IS Es
HUSRATEMI R - RO SRECA(E A R R
BETHEE -
REEEGEAREDSMISRER B RITHN Insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
ZREAERNIEEALACKTE (FH10% instruments issued by financial sector entities that
54 |FTER (LA ) 5% B) are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation ) i

(amount above 10% threshold and, where
applicable, 5% threshold)

freFR
BIAEFBA RN S RIGR I TSR T
AR A TR ERK - A S R
IR BCET I B AR (R ECARIBARE18
TTRIMRE) A TBIAS R - e S AR
TE SR FEA TR HA I E A LACR N RA
HURRA e 2 s T RE | AT v - PRI
{EPSATTHT SR A THIS BEATRE s ft (
ERETE=) REFALRAIBEE - TEAREA
0T (EEEGES) A% H RS
R e B SAT AT MO (BN T &
AR | IR T ERINEER) - TIERT AR
BRIEEHEBR M7 74 TR FHIRATRE vl M
HEBNFRIER - BB EAM SRR AR
JEETHEA -

Explanation

The effect of treating loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies which are
financial sector entitics as CET1 capital instruments for the purpose of considering deductions to be
made in calculating the capital base (sec note re row 18 to the template above) will mean the
headroom within the threshold available for the exemption from capital deduction of other
insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital instruments may be smaller, Therefore, the amount to
be deducted as reported in row 54 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
reported under the column "Basel I basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 54 (i.e.
the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of]
loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the Al's connected companies which were subject to
deduction under the Hong Kong approach.

T
L 3CHE B 10% T RSP IR LR (B4
KUY MEZRAFFRERETION A8 EHICET1 &
A MR RSEEBESTH TG - 15%P R S5
ZERGHHN (CEFGE=) 30K (20104
127 ) ZH8BERFTIL » WRMHIGIRDGHRE -

Remarks:
The amount of the 10% threshold and 5% threshold mentioned above is calculated based on the
amount of CET1 capital determined in accordance with the deduction methods set out in BCR
Schedule 4F. The 15% threshold is referring to paragraph 88 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel
Committee (December 2010) and has no effect to the Hong Kong regime.
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9 FeAMEHEF RN (RS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
W) ()

() BURCCL : R20244E6H30H (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2024
EERAZHRCREEB - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
R B o)

RBEUEEGFATEE TR
Eﬁﬂ&ﬁ#ﬁﬂl{kg

Source based on reference

numbers of the balance
i %5| sheet under the regulatory
(&% 000) (Presented in HKS$'000) Amount scope of consolidation

: ks Lty S g
e ¢ ‘ fre==

[N N At S0 TI" i "‘! i " X - - = - f g 3= =

| HERTONEERCETIEAZRIME Dlrectly 1ssued quahfymg CET1 capital instruments _ i
e AE ARy 2R plus any related share premium , O]

2 |GREERFI Retained eamings 398,085 ©)

3 |EiEERAE Disclosed reserves 5,256 (3AHA)YHS5)H(6)

- ] | Directly issued capital subject to phase-out A -

o |IECET RABLBHNIRRT | orrencomentsfrom CET! (onty applicableto monjoint | TR A
BE (R HEESE L E) stock companies) Not applicable Not applicable
B4 RITIN A SIS T HEE =T Minority interests arising from CET] capital

. EAWCETIEAZBEAN/DEHEH  |instruments issued by consolidated bank subsidiaries
2% (A AL EMJCETIZ AR  |and held by third parties (amount allowed in CET1 i
BIA) capital of the consolidation group)

6 ﬁfagzmgcmmx CETl l:apital before regulatory ad]utmenls 668,328]

Valuation adjustments .
8 | (CIRRERAIRERIASE) Goodwill (net of associated deferred tax liabilities) i

9 HAtfEpEE (EiREBtAIRER Other intangible assets (net of associated deferred tax i

HE®E) liabilities)

10 WIERIAEE (COBRFEBtATIRER Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred tax I
HAE) liabilities)

11 BREmErtEs Cash flow hedge reserve .

12 FEIRBE| A FELYEAERE H & A4 |Excess of total EL amount over total eligible provisions |
S under the IRB approach

AT B P A R THE A Ry 4t R Credit-enhancing interest-only strip, and any gain-on-
13 |Em%E - HEWIS R CETIE AR A |sale and other increase in the CET]1 capital arising from -

¥ nEER securitization transactions

14 AT EEAENEERASNER Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on i
R R A RS fair valued liabilities

is REFRSHBARSESIPEE (B Defined benefit pension fund net assets (net of ]
BB IR ERR IR & (]) associated deferred tax liabilities)

P EHEASHCETI EAZBAINE ( Investments in own CET1 capital instruments (if not
16 | B RITFIHENEEABRRTIRE already netted off paid-in capital on reported balance =

EAR SRR sheet)
17 |EEXXHENCETIEAZR Reciprocal cross-holdings in CET1 capital instruments -

- Insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
Hfﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁl&%ﬂ'\]ﬁﬁﬂ#ﬁ% instlégl]:m:r::f:s1 issued by ef?na::ial sector en(t:;li)es that are
18 |S{THICETI EATBHIEE RLACK, . v . -

outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount

R(RHI10%F T2 B0 above 10% threshold)

= Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
MERL S ML G
RAEEEGr e RRIDASM I SRR instruments issued by financial sector entities that are

19 |BTMCETIEAEBHNE KLACKE . A -

outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount

(R 10% 1 B0 above 10% threshold)
20 RIS (THIRAEBtR R Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated deferred tax TiEA AHEA
PR =Ti=9) liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
o IR EANRERIEEE ( Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences ST RE A
AR R IERIE A& E) (net of associated deferred tax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
22 |BBHI15%FIE > B Amount exceeding the 15% threshold 7R3E fiNot applicable | 7R3 AiNot applicable
3 o R EERNE R of which: significant investments in the ordinary share i A R i
uE of financial sector entities Not applicable Not applicable
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9  REEMETEMN(RIBEEE: Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
20 ()
(i) BUECCL : R20244E6H30H (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2024
TR A 2 GH R (R A - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
TR SRS ) ()
REUEEROTEET
REANRRNSTHRE
Rk
Source based on
reference numbers of the
balance sheet under the
e regulatory scope of]
(&% '000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount consolidation
24 |Hrp - BRALES SR of which: mortgage servicing rights 7} FiNot applicable 758 FNot applicable
Hp o IS REAAIRERTE  |of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary FEA EA
25 |2 . . .
BE differences Not applicable Not applicable
HANCETI EAMNEAEEREE  |National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1
26 |\s . 268,719
SR capital
AL RERY (A REERR) Cumulative fair value gains arising from the revaluation
26a |EETEEERGTNESNER AL EHE of land and buildings (own-use and investment 266,919 B)+(8)
Wigs |properties)
26b | - SRfT BRI B Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,800 )
2%6¢ SRS HE BSTFHRAFTIEEHNE Securitization exposures specified in a notice given by
FALE R BRI the MA
26d R A N L it R EFEYMEHREHT  |Cumulative losses below depreciated cost arising from
B AEENEEN ERBEE the institution's holdings of land and buildings i
26¢ |2 EIERITHIR A TIHIE AN R Capital shortfall of regulated non-bank subsidiaries Il
PIERPAEERNAE#EBR/NSITHE |Capital investment in a connected company which is a
26f |AHE (B RRBEHEEARENEEALS  |commercial entity (amount above 15% of the reporting -
%2 B) institution's capital base)
REE R ENATIE AR R _REARLL Regulatory deductions applied to CET]1 capital due to
27 |EHIBRMEFECET I EARIRRAYELZ]  |insufficient AT1 capital and Tier 2 capital to cover .
R deductions
28 | CETIRA NS HIFRNAE Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 268,719
29 |CET1 & CET1 capital 399,609
ATIRA : |AT1 capital: instruments
20 S RBATIE AR Z I HERR D Qualifying AT1 capital instruments plus any related share
WBE premium Il
3 Hep : iREBEASTERT BB ALE  |of which: classified as equity under applicable
B accounting standards i
- Ho  RBEAGTERIVIA&ESE  |of which: classified as liabilities under applicable
i) accounting standards I
s PP z Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
Eig P g {12 ™
33 AT g dEmRa |
H4T AT B A T RITILHE =)  |ATI capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
34 |[RFENATIEAZR (Tt ALGEE subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in 3
HWHATIERNEEE) AT] capital of the consolidation group)
35 Hofr Bl 2 Al T A2 F AL RS |of which: ATI capital instruments issued by subsidiaries
GHFARIRATAT] Fr 450 subject to phase-out arrangements '
36 |BREIIRZ AIATIRA AT1 capital before regulatory deductions 5
37 [N RS MATI EAZBNIEE Investments in own AT]1 capital instruments =
38 | BN ENATI S AT 8 Reciprocal cross-holdings in AT1 capital instruments &
_ [nsignifi LACi tments in AT1 ital
E’:‘ﬁ%’é‘&%ﬁﬁl—){%ﬂ’\]ﬁﬁﬂ%gﬁ% in:gxlrl;i:;:tissuedl;; effnar:lial lsnector e‘r:::ﬁlit:s that are
39 |BRITHATIEAZBAIIEERLACHE ide th £ regul v
% (EBHI10%TE > 8) outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount
. above 10% threshold)
HTHATI BA S I E ALACKLE issued by financial sector entities that are outside the -
= |scope of regulatory consolidation
4l HHRATIERANE A EEERE T National specific regulatory adjustments applied to AT1
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eGSR TE R L (PR BT
AEN) ()

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(i) BERRCCT : 1¥20244E6 H30H (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2024
BT 2 fH R (GRAR A - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
REBRELRSEN) ()
REUAEEESRET
REAMRNSH MY
Rl
Source based on
reference numbers of the
balance sheet under the
BoE regulatory scope of|
(ﬁm'OOO) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount consolidation|
9 /ﬁﬁ EEE’J iﬁﬁzﬁw LR Regulatory deductlons apphed to ATl capltal duc to ]
{EATIEARHIRHIE B TIR insufficient Tier 2 capital to cover deductions
43 | MATIREANER NN Total regulatory deductions to AT1 capital -
44 JATIRAER AT1 capital -
45 [TRRE (PR = CETIRE +  |pier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + ATI) 399,609
ATl =Y. ) e = = = = -t — - - - - - -
ook wemmme |Tier? il imtroments and pro = | S
46 Aﬁ% Q&QZF;E;%}JDH:H #ﬁ Eﬁﬁ&{ }} Qualifying Tier 2 capltal instruments plus any related ]
adi=t share premium
. S Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
w7 | | :
4 A RTI B AT STt i =77  |Tier 2 capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
48 |FFEM_BEAZEE ([ AREE subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in =
R §=Z:NzOL SEED) Tier 2 capital of the consolidation group)
49 Hipr ;L E R THIS A MEE |of which: capital instruments issued by subsidiaries
AR B A subject to phase-out arrangements 1
50 ESERF AT RANEREHFS R Collective provisions and regulatory reserve for general 1.800 ©
— AR TSR B A banking risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital :
51 lﬁﬁmﬁzgﬂﬂ:ﬁ&:& Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,800
",u AL fer 2 capital: regul _m_ m’ ns .‘;l— % :.:-IL'R -m_ﬁl'l T A a3
52 F#ﬁﬁjﬁ%ﬂ’] REARE gaf]&g Investments in own Tler 2 capital instruments -
53 |EENFEN_REAER Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 capital instruments -
R A RE DN SR e [ns;gll:rl:liint LA(:i ilr)w«;.stmenits1 in Ttier 2 ::Pita:h t
T — AT IR EALACK: instruments issued by financial sector enti ies that are
54 % (8 H:',l 0%F9 {E,: & (QEAD S outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount -
S above 10% threshold and, where applicable, 5%
e threshold)
REEEGEREDIMICRIEER Insignificant LAC investments in non-capital LAC
BIIEBEALACE BIEE KLACKE liabilities of financial sector entities that are outside the|
s4a ( ZHIHEIS T Mm% EAEA{E 5% |[scope of regulatory consolidation (amount formerly, ]
AEFSPTERGZE) (REAR designated for the 5% threshold but no longer meets the
1F (EABEA) HRAFE20ET# conditions) (for institutions defined as “section 2
FEE TEMEE | E) institution” under §2(1) of Schedule 4F to BCR only)
53 %ﬁﬂ’]-ﬁ&ﬁzﬁgﬁﬂ'ﬂikh\c&ﬁ str s issued by financial sector enti at are I
P ) outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of
(OIS TRER) eligible short positions)
PRI A R AN S R g S.igI.li.ﬁ'cant LAC inyestments in‘n.on-capital LAC.
55a | JEALACE Iy EALACKRE (B4 liabilities of financial sector entities that are outside the
a BAESEE) : |scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short il
7 A
positions)
56 HANR AR EEREEEE: National specific regulatory adjustments applied to Tier 2 (140,370

ERR

capital
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9 AR TR DR (R R Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
SAH) (M)
() BEARCCL : 142024486 H30H (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2024
BRI 2 RH R (R ARk - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
TREREE EF R S 2608 ) ()
RIREMEEGASEE TR
EENRNSTRB K
i
Source based on
reference numbers of the
balance sheet under the
Wk regulatory scope o
(5% ' 000) (Presented in HKS'000) Amount consolidation
o Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising from the
56 ggg%gg)\éggﬁ?;@ém& revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and | 0 [(2)+(3)+(8)]
¢ Efﬁ\ﬁ’ﬁ Eﬂiﬂ’]gfﬁ"iféﬁqﬁggﬁ investment properties) eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 (140,370 *45%
RIS capital
I (B B8N e)RF e : ; ) .
Regulatory deductions applied to Tier 2 capital to cover
1) ’;’%E > YAE — SRR AR B BT the required deductions falling within §48(1)(g) of BCR
57 | RAREER R A Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital (140,370)
58 |ZfREA Tier 2 capital (T2) 142,170
[EEwcEmE (R - —@Rk 3
59 + —RRE) Total regulatory capital (TC =T1 + T2) 541,779
60 | T 8 6 0 Total RWA 608,794
LA MMBEAE ) |Capital ratios (asa percentage of
61 |CETI RALL® CETI capital ratlo 65.64%
62 |—{hwAthEE Tier 1 capital ratio 65.64%
63 |SRRALLR Total capital ratio 88.99%
MR ERERATR ([58EHR  |lustitution-specific buffer requirement (capital
64 | AR HIERAEmEALLR i conservation buffer plus countercyclical capital 8.00%
R EsEEE TR ) |buffer plus higher loss absorbency requirements)
65 |EHH - s il i A R of which: capital conservation buffer requirement 2.50%
A ! fRETAFE DI # #r4L5%  |of which: bank specific countercyclical capital buffer
66 TR requirement L00%
67 | B - BEr R SRS i F R of which: higher loss absorbency requirement 0.00%
REFERERFREHTHEERN  |[CETI (as a percentage of RWA) available after meeting
68 57.64%
CET1 ({EE B InfEsEEnE S ) minimum capital requirements o
EAEHERELE (BR (DX ' PR
e =) BEERAE) s
69 |EIAEEECET R National CET1 minimum ratio Notfpjﬁi}fable Notfpﬁfable
70 |EABEE —REARELER National Tier 1 minimum ratio Notfpﬁfable Notfpiﬁfable
=8 4 stz ; : - : A A
71 |EEERERAELARELE National Total capital minimum ratio Not agplicable Not applicable
R = o T <
liesstomraimmn CRsaminn) 3,;’;‘:’;:;,,":.:'; Pk foe BN bIe
RIEEEGREHE DN SR ZER  |Insignificant LAC investments in CET1, AT1 and Tier 2
72 |BITAYCETIEARZE - ATIHAZE  |capital instruments issued by financial sector entities that =
RO BEARERIEE ALACKE are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
. . Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
73 gﬁiiﬁ‘%ﬁgﬁzﬂéﬁj{ﬁfﬁig instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
T st ® outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
74 PR ERE (CHIRRERRAE  |Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated deferred tax KigH A
HEHAR) liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
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() BERRCCI * 72202446 H 30H

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2024

RARZ (HRE GREE R - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
R AR AN) (D)
HH AR E S T TR
Eiﬂ&ﬁ?ﬂﬂkﬁi
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
45| sheet under the regulatory
(&%'000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
75 mY M E REARERESE (B0 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences e AEH
BB W R S (net of associated deferred tax liabilitie:s) Not applicable Not applicable

ﬁﬁf&ﬁ;\:&&&'*nﬁﬁms&mﬁezﬁ

Prowsmns ellglble for inclusion in Tler 2 in respect of
exposures subject to the BSC approach, or the STC

-L:i;

' —J_l_'"‘ﬁ.‘;.l\l".l"' T s

e A T S W T ) _]

FBA F a]5H A AREEAMTHEM & LI

SA and SEC-FBA

b §E§ﬁ§ﬁ'§ﬁ§é§“ﬁ%£§§;)& approach and SEC-ERBA, SEC-SA and SEC-FBA (prior 1,800
i to application of cap)
HEBSCH T ASTCEH I B SEC- Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the BSC
77 |ERBA, SEC-SA K SEC- approach, or the STC approach, and SEC-ERBA, SEC- 8,970

BREITA_RESTARRBI BUAK
SEC-RBATHy#EfH & (MM EMRFT

78

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
exposures subject to the IRB approach and SEC-IRBA
(prior to application of cap)

FEIRBE1 LA B SEC-
IRBAT_I A K&QZS#EU@{%%J:BE

MR IR CET] A

Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the IRB

approach and SEC IRBA

Cun'em cap on CETI capltal instruments subject to

. B LR |phase-out arrangements Not applicable Not applicable
81 FIRA S BT FA CET1 888 (7€ Amount excluded from CET! due to cap (excess over cap b Sz g
RG] R F R T R %) after redemptions and maturities) Not applicable Not applicable
47 AR IR R LAAEIRIT AT Frf Sy s Current cap on ATI capital instruments subject to phase-
LR out arrangements 7
5 HIFCER IR G A AT Eram gy ( Amount excluded from AT capital due to cap {excess
o BRI EIR A L2 8)  |over cap after redemptions and maturities) ;
4 SR AR AR A Current cap on Tier 2 capital instruments subject to
§ LR |phase-out arrangements N
85 HIFAT I RT3 A R A as ( Amount excluded from Tier 2 capital due to cap (excess
R B A L R 8E) over cap after redemptions and maturities) B
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9 REEMERERERGRBESSS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
208) ()
(i) BERKOCI : 1220244F6 530 5 B %¥ (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2024
REZAHER GRETAEE: - IRAB i (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
) ()
AR Notes to the Template:
TR (EENTHE=)
TE|RE Description Hong Kong . % |
basis| Basel IIT basis|
° HAMERE (EHEREDABREREEM%) Other intangible assets (net of associated deferred
tax liabilities)
iz Explanation
FHNEEBZEE{EN (BEEBEGE=) X As sct out in paragraph 87 of the Basel IIl text issued by the Basel Committee (December 2010),
A (20104128 ) ETERFATHIEL - HUBtze mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs™) may be given limited recognition in CET1 capital (and hence be|
BN FCETIEANT UARERS (R excluded from deduction from CET1 capital up to the specified threshold). In Hong Kong, an Al is
T CET1 AN IR DM 20 - HLESE required to follow the accounting treatment of including MSRs as part of intangible assets reported in
FUERIR) - 12555 » ol i/EmIEa Ry the AT financial statements and to deduct MSRs in full from CETI capital. Therefore, the amount to
B EEITE » SR S S ALY B A be deducted as reported in row 9 may be greater than that required under Basel II. The amount|
BRI S EN—5Y » WHECET reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 9 (i.c.
1 &4 D2 BEIEE R S B - NI % the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amount of MSRs to be
EOTFHESATHIRNSETES SR (2 deducted to the extent not in excess of the 10% threshold set for MSRs and the aggregate 15%
REGE=) BTN - AR A threshold set for MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary differences and significant investments in
C(EERERES) A% | E P ERNEER CET!I capital instruments issued by financial sector entities (excluding those that are loans, facilities|
RS BT E R AT (U T Bk or other credit exposures to connected companies) under Basel III.
A ETHEBWEE) - AR AREA
BB E BB T T » LR
BT (BEBHES) TSt EEE
FRERI10%F TR R SR i (b m B BEAE ~ g
MERAMELNBEERHTERR SRMEEHE
[ITNCETI BAZBNEARE (FEER
FAEBENEINER - RS E FERRA
BEORE) FTERS%REFIE R -
10 RERERE (CHIREMNBTEREEM) Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred tax i
liabilities)
frrg Explanation

ENEEREZEEHHN (EEFHE=S) X
A (201048127 ) 3569 HBTERATSIH » M TIR
T PURRAGRIERDRA A TR - My
BV RA R R R A A F[{ECET L&
ARFUARERR (AELFFECET1EA
AU AR « EDUEEPERM) - (05
# - ARAMEENICR « RO R CET
VA BRI RETE R - NI
TS 1 OfT B A FHIRA AT g m i |
CERGE=) SEHRAIEE - FEABA
0T (EEERED) K2 H T ERSEE
R HBAIE B 0T EE B B R AR
B 0TTATERSRAIRER (RIME " &ise | 15
NEHRAIEER) o ARy AR AR B
B S R BRI A R T A T4
VDA BIEE (CEEHES) TRy
7o PB4 IR AE R IR E T R M 10%F 948 .
RAISRGUE BN - YR R E
IERAKEARN SR BERITHCETIZA
RENEARE (FRERHAEBRATNE
K~ RUEEREAE A RRRIBRE ) FrEm
BRIS%IUERR -

As set out in paragraphs 69 and 87 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel Committee (December
2010), DTAs of the bank to be realized are to be deducted, whereas DTAs which relate to temporary
differences may be given limited recognition in CET1 capital (and hence be excluded from deduction
from CET!1 capital up to the specified threshold). In Hong Kong, an Al is required to deduct all DTAs
in full, irrespective of their origin, from CET1 capital. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as
reported in row 10 may be greater than that required under Basel I The amount reported under the
column "Basel I basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 10 (i.e. the amount reported
under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amount of DTAs to be deducted which relate
to temporary differences to the extent not in excess of the 10% threshold set for DTAs arising from
temporary differences and the aggregate 15% threshold set for MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary
differences and significant investments in CET1 capital instruments issued by financial sector entities
(excluding those that are loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies) under
Basel III.
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9 WAGEMEFTLENE(GERETGS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
Z88) (90
(i) #ERRCCL & 182024486 H 30 H B (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2024
AR 7 GHER (REBRER - IR R A 6 (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
AEE) (W)
HRRHTRE © () Notes to the Template: (Continued)
[(=! =
Fiig ] [ooks Description Hong Kong R
basis Basel 111 basis
RIERBEATMEDIIMISHRERETN Insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
CETIRAEBNIEEALACE K (BH10% instruments issued by financial sector entities that
18 |F9iE %)) are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - -
|(amount above 10% threshold)
4 = Explanation
BETEN SR EEBTHCETIEAZRN For the purpose of determining the total amount of insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
JEEARLACR 4R » SAuT i E T R HIR AL instruments issued by financial sector entities, an Al is required to aggregate any amount of loans,
T HAT A S R e B B A A R AT 8 facilities or other credit exposures provided by it to any of its connected companies, where the|
SEAEE - BB S A RRR IS S ET4E connected company is a financial sector entity, as if such loans, facilities or other credit exposures|
¥ AR EEY - Bk S R R were direct holdings, indirect holdings or synthetic holdings of the Al in the capital instruments of the
BT IR - MR AR AR E S financial sector entity, except where the Al demonstrates to the satisfaction of the MA that any such
SRISEBNEASE AL RS loan was made, any such facility was granted, or any such other credit exposure was incurred, in the
SRR 2 A S R T S A ordinary course of the AI's business. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as reported in row 18 may
H 8 2 5@ 2 /e T L S8 ~ HLHREm be greater than that required under Basel Il The amount reported under the column "Basel III basis"
S SR S AR T R S (P R I B in this box represents the amount reported in row 18 (i.c. the amount reported under the "Hong Kong
BilERSh - I » 1555 81T FHE S/ TR basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the
lEmEeER (REEHE=) EEaiRn AT's connected companies which were subject to deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
B - EARAN T (EEEBE=) 2
TE T BE R B o SR SRR E 55 1 ST TP EE By
BEE (BNME T EUEEME ) T RIS -
AR T AR SR E B AR AN T A T AT
TRETE AR R ATIER - BUERHE
ftifS P BB RIBAU S STAREE -
REEBEABEEDSMISRS RS TN Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
CETIRAEMNEALACEK (BH10% instruments issued by financial sector entities that
19 %) are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - -

(amount above 10% threshold)

frE

R E T SR R THICET L B A TN
B KLACKY RS - vt BRI T
LA R R BO AT BN B AU RS
AYEEAK - RLE A R RIS RIE S5 4RER
» BRI - R EAE AR RIER
REHEERE - MERARARTALS
|BhsarmaR AT — Y - SR
SRl R RO A SR P 2 AR
B PR EMR TR - fLHEMX
b S REAE T B T AN (E AR R & Al
BRgt « BRIL - AES9TATERA TR B
AgEeER (CEFERES) SEFTRAIE
- fEARAN T (EERTE=) 28, H
TR B R AR R AL 19T SR
B8 (BIME TESEEE I TERMBE) 0
SR R E SRR A T AT
RS T RN A AT EERK - BB B
1= BB & ST EE -

Explanation

For the purpose of determining the total amount of significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities, an Al is required to aggregate any amount of loans,
facilities or other credit exposures provided by it to any of its connected companies, where the
connected company is a financial sector entity, as if such loans, facilities or other credit exposures
were direct holdings, indirect holdings or synthetic holdings of the Al in the capital instruments of the
financial sector entity, except where the Al demonstrates to the satisfaction of the MA that any such
loan was made, any such facility was granted, or any such other credit exposure was incurred, in the
ordinary course of the Al's business. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as reported in row 19 may
be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount reported under the column "Basel III basis"
in this box represents the amount reported in row 19 (i.e. the amount reported under the "Hong Kong
basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the
AT's connected companies which were subject to deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
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9 RAEMEAREWEZGREBESGS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
) ()
(i) BEHROCT © A20244E6 H30H B (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2024
PEA Z G (R - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
TREBEE B ER O 2E0) ()
TR ¢ (48 Notes to the Template: (Continued)
Tz Description

REEERAEEDIMISRR MBI Insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital
ATIRAERNIEEKLACER (EU10%PY instruments issued by financial sector entities that

39 2% are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

(amount above 10% threshold)

frre Explanation
BRETE AR RIS IR TEOREE The effect of treating loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies which are|
REANEEEAN TSR - RS EMESARS financial sector entities as CET1 capital instruments for the purpose of considering deductions to be
EERBCETIEAZ (R FXARERS] made in calculating the capital base (see note re row 18 to the template above) will mean the
STTHIMTEE ) MELHIRGER > HESEAR headroom within the threshold available for the exemption from capital deduction of other
AT A B H M IEE KLACKR IR R insignificant LAC investments in AT capital instruments may be smaller. Therefore, the amount to
SRR S P 2 W FT e AT ARG/ - K - £ be deducted as reported in row 39 may be greater than that required under Basel Il The amount
P IOFT AT PR B e a2 reported under the column "Basel I basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 39 (i.c.
EHIE=) BEEHIR S - AN the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of]
T (EEEGES) A% | T FESNEIES loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the Al's connected companies which were subject to
AR RO SO TRREE SRS (B T deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
JEHE TH TS - TRRITAR SRR
BRI ITE T R TR i SA
SR SIHIEIRN - MBS A F R R IR
B ETEH -
RERERAEND/MISRITRRTH Insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
ZORAERIFEEALACEKE (FEH10% instruments issued by financial sector entities that

54 |FPTHER. (HUEFE) 5% ) are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation ] i

(amount above 10% threshold and, where
applicable, 5% threshold)

1

e

BT IR B R S TR R
RAREH MO AN SR SRR - RESEALE AR
IRASLBCET I B AZUE (R R RRRRE 18
ARk ) ZUE IR R ME S B

TR AA TR S I A LACK @R A
IR S PR ZE R T SE S A AT - ERE »

TERSATTATSTRAT AT B FTRE Gt (
AT =) HERTRVEEE - FERKRN
0 (CEABES) 2% B TERNIEEE
Ryt M TS SATT TR B (I T B

B | HTERNEER)  MARITAES

BRER BB AT TR TR AT g
AR EIRI TR - AlE S A R R I

VGRS -

Explanation
The effect of treating loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies which are
financial sector entitics as CET1 capital instruments for the purpose of considering deductions to be
made in calculating the capital base (sec note re row 18 to the template above) will mean the
headroom within the threshold available for the exemption from capital deduction of other
insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital instruments may be smaller. Therefore, the amount to
be deducted as reported in row 54 may be greater than that required under Basel . The amount
reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 54 (i.c.
the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of}
loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the ATs connected companies which were subject to
deduction under the Hong Kong approach.

I
ST B 0%F I B S%F TR DRI (AR
A FRAFRTIRATIIR T AT ECET 1
AEE RIERET TR - 15%FIEREEER
FRURUA (BEEGEZ) 30F (201045
12) FE8BELATAL - WEBMNGIRDLHHE -

Remarks:
The amount of the 10% threshold and 5% threshold mentioned above is calculated based on lheL
amount of CET1 capital determined in accordance with the deduction methods set out in BCR
| Schedule 4F. The 15% threshold is referring to paragraph 88 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel
Committee (December 2010) and has no effect to the Hong Kong regime.
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9 RAGHMETEMNR(RREES Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
BER) (B

(i) BIARCC2 - 1320244E12H31H (ii) Template CC2: Reconciliation of Regulatory Capital to Statement of Financial
EERAHARNELAMB2NE Position as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
GRS - LB B R AR
HIEZHBHIEN s peasr
ZREMBIRAE| oy gk
Consolidated - BRUECCLY
. . .| Under regulatory scope
Statement of Financial el s
Position as in of consolidation -
ublished financial Group's Statement of| Cross-
? Financial Position| referenced to
disclosure statement Template
CC1
RUELLASIA  popnnateromsif
As at 31 December 2024
2024
HKS$'000] HKS$’000|
9.3 Assets
[EfFIRE A E 208 Cash and balances with banks 93,042 93,042
Placements with banks maturing between one
EEE A
EFHFRFERFRRIZIEANEI |4 welve months 79,080 79,080
= PR E AT Toans and advances to customers and other 210,486 210,469
l'g_fr‘mmtq
DUNEE(ERE B HEBH) T AHM4E Investment securities at fair value tthrough 202.908 202.908]
B2 BEB S other comprehensive income > »
RSB OARAZ B AR 2R Investments in subsidiaries not consolidated v
= for regulatory purposes T
Yt HE R Property, plant and equipment 137,181 137,181
B Investment properties 303,300 303,300
HEERERE Right-of-use assets 37,418 37,481
BEUR D] 2 BRAK Tax recoverable 13 13
RESE Total assets 1,063,428 1,063,484
A | Liabilities
BOER Deposits from customers 237,895 238,802
HEAE Lease liabilities 41,595 41,684
HAh A B e Other liabilities and provisions 58,805 58,686
AEAIE A Current tax liabiliites 10 10
VANAE T Deferred tax liabilities 8,544 8,540
aRae Total liabilities 346,849 347,722
M Shareholders' Equity
HUWREA Paid-in share capital 310,000 310,000
Hebmit : FWIRSE RS  |of which:  share capital paid up in cash and
YR E LR AT A capitalized from realized 264,987 (1)
R A revaluation gains of propertics
, - e share capital capitalized from
ﬁgﬁ%é?iiﬁm unrealized revaluation gains of 45,013 )
. properties
E st b EE Other properties revaluation resreve 1,791 1,791 (3)
BLoNEE{ER 2 B R 2 EE AHAER .
. - Investments at FVOCI revaluation reserve 1,960 1,960
A A B : ’ @
L E General reserve 610 610 O
EERE Regulatory reserve 1,800 1,800 6)
BERTHT Retained eamnings 400,418 399,601 )
Hobdfh ¢ kEriaeyesE L  [of which:  unrealized revaluation gains of
eyl investment properties 267,864 ®
HAh B bR 7 Bt other retained earnings and profits 131,737
RS &t Total shareholders' equity 716,579 715,762
MR HES & Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,063,428| 1,063,484
faE - Note:
BEEL20244E6 A 30H » 20244 12H31H There are no material changes in the reconciliation between the composition of the regulatory capital
REEBEAR R AT S i e 2 & and the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 when compared to that of
AR R EE R TSR - 30 June 2024
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(i) BLRRCC2 :

R20245£6 5 30H

EERARREARR R
(REEFZ - TR R A )

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(ii) Template CC2: Reconciliation of Regulatory Capital to Statement of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2024 (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

R AR B 2 B
RAZGRERBERR
#R| BEBETZEEHE| Z#ECC!
Consolidated Statement| AW Z B IGIRII Z3R
of Financial Position as Under regulatory Cross-
in published interim| scope of consolidation| referenced to
financial disclosure| - Group's Statement Template
statement| of Financial Position CC1
R2024526 H30H R20244E6 5308
As at 30 June 2024 As at 30 June 2024
HK$’000 HKS’000
e Assets
IR S B i El a0 TE Cash and balances with banks 128,967 128,967
Placements with banks maturing between one
= 2 T A
EHHBIERARARE12BANEE [, P ——" 148,109 148,109
EE R R Loans and advances to customers and other 162,968 162,942
accounts
DA EETE HESEF)E A ML |Investment securities at fair value tthrough other 131.055 131.055
SIS 2 B S comprehensive income B >
AEEEHEEBAN BT #:  |Investments in subsidiaries not consolidated for 10
& regulatory purposes il
W BEF R Property, plant and equipment 118,906 118,906
1B Investment properties 300,500 300,500
Al AEE Right-of-use assets 40,110 40,110
AEU[E] 2 F2 =K Tax recoverable 66 43
RESE Total assets 1,030,681 1,030,642
S Liabilities
BEE Deposits from customers 224,000 224,972
HirEEREHF Other liabilities and provisions 39,971 39,898
fAEaE Lease liabilities 42,961 42,961
WRAEFR1ERT Deferred tax liabilities 9,470 9,470
&MEst Total liabilities 316,402 317,301
[ia,8) £+ |Shareholders* Equity
BULREA Paid-in share capital 310,000 310,000
Hop T FUGRE TN~ |of which:  share capital paid up in cash and
WL AT A capitalized from realized 264,987 (6}
TREA revaluation gains of properties
. share capital capitalized from
PERMER Z e B G0 X . .
- unrealized revaluation gains of 45,013 2)
| > .
B EAZ A i)
Hfin L Other properties revaluation resreve 1,855 1,855 3
DAHEEST B B S8 A L g :
N . - Investments at FVOCI revaluation reserve 991 991 4
SUis s BB G “
LBkt General reserve 610 610 Q)
EEE Regulatory reserve 1,800 1,800 (6)
EIEERE Retained eamings 399,023 398,085 (@)
HohfHg . Sk E ST E L [of which:  unrealized revaluation gains of
gl investment properties 25063 ®
Hfth B &8 H 1R Bas other retained eamings and profits 133,021
RS AT Total shareholders' equity 714,279 713,341
I=Ti $5did: i tAvaris Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,030,681 1,030,642
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(iif) 12024412131 H R2024476 /1 30 E1 s

EEATB Y TEEHIIRITZ
FRCCA -

RESRITAERAE
FOCA © 2024412831 H 522024526 H30H

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

(Continued)

(iii) The main features of the regulatory capital instruments (Table CCA) as at
31 December 2024 and 30 June 2024 are disclosed below:

Tai Sang Bank Limited

Table CCA: Main Features of Regulatory Capital Instruments as at 31

BEERATR 7 TR December 2024 and 30 June 2024
= REFITARAT
L |BITA faer Tai Sang Bank Limited
) B 35 RIS (ENCUSIP ~ ISINZ;Bloombergf Unique identifier (eg CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg identifier . i licabl |
AL ER RIS for private placement) /N3] Not applicable
. . . AR
i AL
3 |=igayE A Govemning law(s) of the instrument Laws of Hong Kong
B BRI Regulatory treatment
4 (EE@ERE=) wEEa Transitional Basel Il rules* K& Not applicable
. CET1%
5 (BEERE=) RiEEEaAr Post-transitional Basel Il rules” Common Equity Tff
N . o BEEREN
= E N *
6 TTEF A B+ / SR ) / 42 0 BE MR AL Eligible at solo*/group/group & solo Solo and Groupr
L Instrument type (types to be specified by each i AR
i r
7 SR (B HEB1TIRY) jurisdiction) Ordinary shares
EEEERNRER B Amount recognised in regulatory capital (Currency in
8 loamas st  REsEEBELE million, as of most recent reporting date) HK$265(% #)(Mn)
9 |=iBmEE Par value of instrument HKS$1
N A HoR s
10 | g5t Accounting classification Sharcholders' equity
11 |S98TEH Original date of issuance 1954, 1969, 1990, 2001, 2010
12 | AMEEER E BIR Perpetual or dated KA
Perpetual
N . . LM e
13 FRETEIAA Original maturity date No maturity
14 |/EREEE BHEER AR IT ABEEIE Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval Iﬁf

TEEEEEH - AETTREE - B

Optional call date, contingent call dates and

B % B i O] e redemption amount “F#f Not applicable
16 &4 R B (A E A Subsequent call dates, if applicable “RiE A Not applicable
=5/ R Coupons/dividends
ot o
17 EES2EREE /| ER Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Floating dividend
18 B SR R (T (AT AE R e Coupon rate and any related index A& F Not applicable
$iE
19 B (RS S AR Existence of a dividend stopper N(;
Fully discretaionary, partially discretionary or 2EEE
20 SN - HoEIE - SR mandatory Fully discretaionary
21 YA B R A R 55N Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem ﬁ
Qe - - e E
22 JEREFTHEET Noncumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative
. ) I 50
g Convertibl - rtiabl
23 | EfiE A n i onvertible or non-convertiable Non-convertible
24 ol o BB If convertible, conversion trigger(s) A Not applicable
25 75 o] i £EEES If convertible, fully or partially 4~iE F Not applicable
26 T EiabEE If convertible, conversion rate A 3% FH Not applicable
27 AT - RE R If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion i FH Not applicable
e , If convertible, sepcify instrument type convertible . i
8| T RN e & R Not applicable

into
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(iii) CCA : 2024412/ 31 H & 20244E6 H30H

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
(Continued)

(iii) Table CCA: Main Features of Regulatory Capital Instruments as at

BB RATEE 7 R (B 31 December 2024 and 30 June 2024 (Continued)
ET > SRR EE If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it . .
29 P . A% Not applicable
BT A converts into
300 B BE Write-down feature ;?:
31 e 0 RR{E A SR a If write-down, write-down trigger(s) 4~ i [fi Not applicable|
32 ERE - SRS If write-down, full or partial N3 ] Not applicable
33 FEEAE  RAREERSE If write-down, permanent or temporary 3 FH Not applicable
BRI - RAEBOE If temporary write-down, description of write-up . .
34 . “K#& F Not applicable
] mechanism
N Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation
SEH | y H
3 5#3%2%%2%%5;? M EEIIRRE (specify instrument type immediately senior to “NiE F Not applicable
i i instrument)
36| Pl R SRS B Non-compliant transitioned features If;
INEE  EEEASHEE If yes, specify non-compliant features “N3#E ] Not applicable

i
#

A SR B R B YRR I PR BRI T R CRA) B

Hif Fe4HET #LAX) 18 e 2o Bk

T EAERNEEEEITARAREERTEER)R

SUInift ZeAHFR kA i 22 HE
¥ DEEEGRO A

RITZ R EBRAEATHZ 2 RAANCERT

LHETENHEE -

B0 B IR L8 (PR B T e & 208 )

20244E12 F 31 H B 20244E6 ] 30 H $R1T40 R A4S &
BEARLEFEE SRS FHHRARCCYBIA -

BRRCCyB1 : 20244E12H 31 H Z AR ARG %

Footnote:

# Regulatory treatment of capital instuments subject to transitional

arrangements provided for in Schedule 4H of the Banking (Capital) Rules

+ Regulatory treatment of capital instuments not subject to transitional

arrangements provided for in Schedule 4H of the Banking (Capital) Rules

* Include solo-consolidated

website of the Bank.

Full terms and conditions of the Bank's CET! capital instruments are disclosed in the

Countercyclical Capital Buffer Ratio (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

The details of the Bank's countercyclical capital buffer ratios as at 31
December 2024 and 30 June 2024 are disclosed in Template CCyB1 below:

Template CCyB1: Geographical Distribution of Credit Exposures Used in

A(CCyB)R{a AR B R I s 4 A Countereyclical Capital Buffer ("CCyB") as at 31 December 2024
R2024512A318
At 31 December 2024 (a) (c) (d) ©
TR T CCyB
E HEBHEACCyBEE ELERBT Ry
e eIl B = RWAGH coyBt ik
4 pJ -t Y | Applicable CCyB ratio in RWA used in Alspecific CCyB Py
T effect computation of CCyB ratio CBarA
ratio
@) % HKS '000 % HKS '000
1 753% Hong Kong SAR 0.500% 203,312

4851 Total 203,312 0.500% 1,017
120244E6 5308
At 30 June 2024 () © (d) (©)

T RERE A CCyB
& HARAY#EFCCyBEE ELRATRR PR
Geogra ?iifﬁga%down b; $ RWA“E CCYBbt$ %(E:I?‘?g
e PJ - Y| Applicable CCyB ratio in RWA used in Al-specific CCyB n g
e o 0 effect computation of CCyB ratio HEOCTT G
ratio
@ % HKS '000 % HKS '000
1 % Hong Kong SAR 1.000% 154,324
485t Total 154,324 1.000% 1,543
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PRANREEALE (RREERSEH ()

#iRCCyB1 : 20245 12A31B 2 AN YA EH
#EA(CCyB)M{E AR A WA £ ()

BfEE -

Ll b2 REFETIN20244E 128318 %2024456 830
BEBERTHRAREMSE S BMNEEE AL E

o ARBITRESBEELHEILARABEBEER

BRERAEHEESENBEEALE, RTN202
AF12A3MAZ S A GEELE REFEMEZ LE

#BRE, BNA0.5%, HMR2024E THEZBITEER
ERK, HEEBEMABEBESERAKRKEKEESRL

T, BRitbz s, KER1TIE AR < thig /5 R 7E A

SR BRI % K

ARLERZEE (REEERAER)

LT RIBHITRIN2024512A31B 2 It E MR AR
2RSS EEHERLRERFEFTEZIEREE
(#EARLR1) R #22024412H31H KR20244%9H830
B2 Rt REMR (BRRLR2), HiLiEFTAE

BLFIR,

(i) #EKRLR1: 2024%12A318 2 Wi EEHER
LR E R B L REE RBE-
BEERAER)

Countercyclical Capital Buffer Ratio (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
(Continued)

Template CCyB1: Geographical Distribution of Credit Exposures Used in
Countercyclical Capital Buffer ("CCyB'") as at 31 December 2024
(Continued)

Note:

The above templates show the CCyB ratios of the Bank computed on the
consolidated basis as at 31 December 2024 and 30 June 2024. As the Bank
only operates and has private sector credit exposures in Hong Kong, the
overall countercyclical capital buffer ratio was the same as the jurisdiction
countercyclical capital buffer ratio of Hong Kong, that is 0.5% as at 31
December 2024. The level of private sector credit exposures in Hong Kong
has increased during the second half year of 2024 as a result of a larger loan
book. Apart from this, there have been no material changes in the
geographical breakdown of the credit exposures of the Bank during the
current semi-annual reporting period.

Leverage Ratio Dislcosures (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

The tables below represent the summary comparison table for reconciling the
total consolidated assets of the Bank as stated in the financial statements as at
31 December 2024 to the leverage ratio exposure used in the computation of
the leverage ratio (Template LR1) and the leverage ratio template (Template
LR2) as at 31 December 2024 and 30 September 2024, presented in
HK$’000.

(i) Template LR1 : Summary Comparison of Accounting Assets
Against Leverage Ratio ("LR") as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited -
on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

(a)
TEEBLEEERTHE
Value under the LR
HE Item framework
%000 (E
HKS$'000 equivalent
- . . " Total consolidated assets as per published
g 1 M lv'::A’ ;\tl'n:.\ .
| [ERHMBHRRAINBEHFSEERE financial statements 1,063,428
_ _ Adjustment for investments in banking, financial,
d & " PP BE s g
5 ﬁgﬂi%gé;;ﬁ;:-!éﬁ{%ggggg insurance or commercial entities that are 10
%E’J?ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ?ﬁ 1’EE’J i‘ﬁ quﬁ%é - = consolidated for accounting purposes but outside
- the scope of regulatory consolidation
BEIAMENERASERNESEAR Adjustment for fiduciary assets recognised on the
3 _i NFEER, @Z:@,#?E*E#E ttﬁ}ﬁlﬁﬁﬁi% balance sheet pursuant to the operative )
STEENNERIZIEEEMA RN accounting framework but excluded from the
B leverage ratio exposure measure
4 |ERASTESMIEMNIAE Adjustments for derivative contracts -
5 EHAZHEMEXZNAZE (ARERXSR Adjustment for SFTs (i.e. repos and similar )
HihfBLMERERER) secured lending)
. - R Adjustment for off-balance sheet ("OBS") items
- EEE= s =x
6 E@ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ{;ﬁ%g Eﬂ;‘;?—gg @(;}ﬁ)&ﬁ (i.e. conversion to credit equivalent amounts of] -
= e i . OBS exposures)
T LR R A 5 AR £ B e s o T Adjustment for specific and collective provisions
62 | o e %mgﬁ;ki - =R 2T that are allowed to be excluded from exposure -
= measure
HithiE % Other adjustments 9,900
BRLERERIENE Leverage ratio exposure measure 1,073,338
Pt - Note:

MALEZRENAM, HRBELRRART
IRNEFEMBRARZFEEERARE
M LT ERR L R 2 B ER 2 HIRIR
BiEERER,

There are no material changes in the summary comparison reconciling items
of the Bank's consolidated balance sheet assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position with the exposure measure for the calculation
of leverage ratio for the current semi-annual reporting period.
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(i) BIRLR2 : 202441231 B Z RERLLH
CREEFFE - RIE RGN

Leverage Ratio Dislcosures (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(ii) Template LR2 : Leverage Ratio ("LR") as at 31 December 2024
(Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

(a) (b)
BRIZHL¥RIER REERER
Leverage ratio Leverage ratio
HHE Item framework framework
HEW'000 8000
HKS'000 HKS'000
20244E12A31H | 2024495 30K
31/12/2024 30/09/2024
ﬁEﬁ@iﬁﬁﬁ;&m On-balance sheet exposures
BEAHERNBRARE (FEHETE On-balance sheet exposures (excluding those arising
1 | CEAHSESRER S (SFT)EER from derivative contracts and SFTs, but including 1,073,338 1,074,761
BBRASE » HEEEFS) collateral)

: iﬁg;};ﬁ D BTE— R E AR TR A B B E:;ist:aiﬁsset amounts deducted in determining Tier 1 (316,468) 313.732)
3 BEEERNEGRIE®EEE CRaiERT Total on-balance sheet exposures (excluding - o
4 T B SR SFT) derivative contracts and SFTs) ’ 2
EHTAE T RS #0E % A AR AR Exposures arising from derivative contracts

FiERETAE THANAMNESRAE ( Replacement cost associated with all derivatives
4 [HIERANEE - RSB RIISBE RS transactions (where applicable net of eligible cash 3 l
£ [ REERELE) variation margin and/or bilateral netting)
5 FrEEST4E T R SOH RN BIER K Add-on amounts for PFE associated with all
R R AR B derivatives contracts N i
BRERGFE T MERSERE Gross-up for derivatives collateral provided where
6 |IEENEEAERTHIRATE T HIE deducted from the balance sheet assets pursuant to 2 4
EENTt ] e the applicable accounting framework
7 R © BEETA L AR S mE) Less: Deductions of receivables assets for cash
CRee 4 i FEUER 5y variation margin provided under derivatives ) ]
8 IR © PRTSHFF ERRIE R Less: Exempted CCP leg of client-cleared trade )
PSR SR T R ARy exposures
9 Bk O EERTETASYNE Adjusted effective notional amount of written credit
B EBE derivative contracts - T
10 R BN EERTAE TESHESR Less: Adjusted effective notional offsets and add-on
BN L RS R M N SR R deductions for written credit derivatives contracts = N
11 T4 T B ANEEN R RIESEE Total exposures arising from derivative contracts - .
ERSFTE4: 0 B\ & ik Exposures arising from SFTs
12 BRI E oA B s (1ERRETPa Gross SFT assets (with no recognition of netting),
stHF) HISFTR AEAMST after adjusting for sales accounting transactions i 7
13 sk - SFTE FEARET AU REN SRS FERE UL Less: Netted amounts of cash payables and cash
B THIE RIS receivables of gross SFT assets T ¥
14 |SFTREEER A F 45 FRB R IE CCR exposure for SFT assets I 3
15 [HAHIA PRk Agent transaction exposures i .
16 | SFTEE 2 B9 B SG R IE 484 Total exposures arising from SFTs 3 5
FA B 2 (I SMELBSRAR Other off-balance sheet exposures
17 |EEAERINARRIE 2 S BEaEE Off-balance sheet exposure at gross notional amount 15,904 7,043
- HIRL : SR A S EEEE RS Les§: Adjustments  for conversion to credit (14314) (6,339)
% equivalent amounts
19 | EEEERINER Off-balance sheet items 1,590 704
AR MO MEKE4E Capital and total exposures
20 | EA Tier 1 capital 399,294 401,658
2. BT REREHESER B Total exposures before adjustments for specific and 758 460 761.733
4 Y B b AR S AR AT collective provisions > >
20b | BRIE A o B R S E K Ry s Adjustments for specific and collective provisions . 4
21 SR A S R A R S S Total exposures after adjustments for specific and 758,460 S
(1 B AR 8T collective provisions g >
HiHHEE#E Leverage ratio
22 |t |Leverage ratio | 52.65%| 52.73%

BifaE - AHEL20244F9F30H » 120244F 12531 H Zkg#RtE %
HFT TR - WX EERESERRIMS R4S
WIBSIRLFARBL T b - M SRR LR B R i T

BT REREEAE -

Note: The decrease of leverage ratio as at 31 December 2024 from that of 30
September 2024 was predominantly due to the lower level of leverage ratio
exposure measure, which was resulted from a decrease in the level of customers'

deposits, causing a decrease in the size of the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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RTEIR B SRR R ZIZE - MhE(R
EHRBRBIN —EA RS HARE
SRR > BRREUS R BEEEF
REEFERZEIIXE -

HERMMTZ RSRSEEBR EA
Bi& 7 ORiE - SHTRBESRAZ HEE
HRETRREEE - HEFRREAR
ZEOBFEEE - AIREBE SR e
ESRfTZ &3t aHE - WNEHAREER
EER  FREREEARERGHERH
HEWE o NEESIRARE SRR E A E R
BASRAZENER - REEARZRS
BRI ESIRIE - HE RS R
ZRBENR » WRERIT ZRERSEEK
RAIET I HEREF LA -

B it 2 ST < R E & R BRI
RRHBERBERGREZBWRBES
R T S P TR R S S R B R e S
BH B [ ST B AR AE AR I E I -

b alds b

REMTRIRATRE S ZERE LRI
REEFERFEAEZASRMREEZH
B SRATEER R HIE LIRS T B LB ST
BlanEEIERE S R S EE SRR
S SEELA A K S b R A T (SR
FTRM% - FLMRBUR T H SR T i
ASRMEHE -

P 12 e L A

SRATIRRF R HILRE 2 RR F R E & AR RE
FITESER - SRTTABERFEMEB L
BEERRYEE -

St Bl G e BRI

FETE SR Z BIARN GRETIL AR
ELBEEGZHUFERE - RBEDZE
FTRIE RS B ESRT 2 R R M e
Z M R 55— (AR A T 45 2 SR
- BEAEZSIREADHRERIIHR
ZEERRTRERTHU LR R EHE
TRV AT BRERBHEER
A BY T e S R B S A AT R 2 R B T
BEEIFEBCK - BEAHZRETMRE
BIHRZ ERFERERITHRERSEEL
CLLEAEHREAR -

Liquidity Disclosures

M

Table LIQA Liquidity Risk Management

Governance of Liquidity Risk Management

The Bank has a low liquidity risk tolerance and ensures that funds
are always available to meet obligations fully as they come due,
particularly for customers’ deposits which should be fully covered
by highly liquid treasury funds.

The Board of Directors assumes the ultimate authority in the
approving the liquidity management policy of the Bank. Day-to-day
management of the Bank’s liquidity position is delegated to senior
management, whose opetation is closely monitored by ALCO.
Internal liquidity position reporting is prepared by the Bank's
accounting department and reported to senior management on a
daily basis and to ALCO at every AL.CO meeting. Intemal trigger
limits are set for the effective monitoring of the liquidity position.
Upon review by ALCO of the liquidity positions, it assesses in light
of prevailing market condition, if the Bank's liquidity management
strategy or guidelines are required to be amended.

The Liquidity Risk Management Policy of the Bank as approved by
the Board and liquidity management strategy as determined by
ALCO from time to time are communicated to relevant operational
departments within the Bank during periodic meetings held among
the departments and senior management.

Funding Strategy

While efforts have been made to promote depositors’ loyalty to
maintain funding stability from customers' deposits, bank
management constantly reviews market situation and explores
suitable funding sources such as terin depository products and
establishing correspondent banking relationships with other
financial institutions, both locally and overseas, with an aim to
provide reciprocal funding arrangements or standby funding lines.

Liquidity Risk Mitigation

To mitigate its liquidity risk, the Bank maintains an adequate level
of ovemight interbank funds. It also aims to maintain an adequate
cushion of high quality liquid assets.

Stress Testing on Liquidity Risk

Stress testing on liquidity positions are performed on a quarterly
basis and presented to ALCO for review. The liquidity stress testing
exercise includes scenarios covering an institution-specific crisis
scenario for the Bank and a general market crisis scenario. ALCO
examines the liquidity stress testing results to decide if the minimum
number of days necessary for the Bank to arrange emergency
funding support is satisfactory to the needs of the Bank and
formulate the necessary strategies to address the cash flow needs
reflected from the scenario analysis. AL.CO also determines if the
mix of the Bank's holding in liquefiable assets has to be adjusted
based on the outcome of the stress testing.
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BBES/ SRS ABEEESHNA
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MEfR > RSTRRZ GEEERER
R Mt £ R ROR RN SR T O IE
E - BEAAZERGRERREFLRE
Kf ZHGE - IESE S IARRERE EHE
BT RMABEATECREESES -

B R B

EER2024F 1283 HEEABEENEL
ZEEAS B R TAEM S HHRIEES 3. 1R
FF -

R T /S E E R B R SR T E
ZEBUBRIAE - NG MR BARARLIQL
MPME R R ERLIQREESIPHE
ELA -

13 JERS LR B M K ol 2 1 F

@

RCRA © ERAEMRZ—BFOR

SRITREENERE P T8 - TR g
REHEANETRMUHBRIEZEFX
S M A G BRAERA L EERN R /50
TEFRAMERERRBZ H - SRITAHE
LLiMFESE R B AWM+
ZEEREEE -

HEHEROKHEEME - REREEZE
BEASRZERY - WERZEMHLRA
B2 EEBRIEE B Rt A (5 8B
RFES| - BRI 25 ARG EEY
REEHERARESE - ABERERHRE -
I R EIIE - BB E S 5
B BARRE A REREZ RibE
- FERBRZEERTRIFEREGEH
WEZBAEES » MATERAHES
EREAY -

ERBORNFF R RED A EBIR A T
D BMER B EBORESRA EHE L
#F - BRZEIREEAZEGZRER
EER AL TTER - BORNZFRET)
CRSIVEPIRE - TTRERREELS
Z B\ B EMRE

SRERERTEE GFies SELRE
ERERAR L RE R EEN{EHEE -
BRZE B gk ARlE A G EHERS
BHS MRS RAMAHZME -
HIFAMEA L2 SR E B &R EFTHZ
ZAMESSUKEENSEERSEH
RGN B/ A -

Liquidity Disclosures (Continued)

(i) Table LIQA Liquidity Risk Management (Continued)

Contingency Funding Plan

Upon the awareness of liquidity crisis concemns, emergency ALCO and
Board meetings would be called to decide on the ways that the Bank's
liquidity position can be improved, including, but not limited to the
following possible means: cancellation of undrawn customers' overdrafts
facilities, calling back of customers' overdrafts / loans outstanding,
availability of un-used interbank funds that could be utilized,
negotiating with major depositors for increasing their deposits with the
Bank, pledging of appropriate assets of the Bank for funding facilities,
convincing major shareholders to place deposits with the Bank or
making additional capital injection. Prompt decisions are to be made by
ALCO and the Board. Contingency funding drills are carried out
periodically to test the availability of funds available for the Bank.

Maturity Profile of Balance Sheet

The maturity profile of the items in the balance sheet of the Group as at
31 December 2024 has been disclosed in note 3.3.1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As the Bank is designated as a Category 2 institution for liquidity
monitoring purposes, Template LIQ1 on liquidity coverage ratio and
Template LIQ2 on net stable funding ratio are not required to be
disclosed.

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures

Table CRA General Information about Credit Risk

The Bank is stringent in accepting credit customers and would only deal
with customers whose background and financial conditions are known
to our management. Tangible securities and/or strong guarantors to
support credit facilities are insisted. This has given rise to a high quality
credit portfolio with decades of zero loan loss.

The credit approval, review and monitoring functions are delegated by
the Board to Credit Committee. Granting of new credits and renewals of
existing credit are guided by Credit Policy as approved by the Board.
The credit initiation and review process involve the Credit Officer who
is responsible for information gathering, analysis and report preparation.
New credits are subject to prior compliance clearance before the loan or
credit limit would be made available to bomowers. Credit risk
management and administration are examined by Internal Auditors once
a year, with results reported to Audit Committee.

Credit Policy is reviewed annually, or more frequently as changes in
regulatory or business environment necessitate a policy change.
Revisions to Policy require concurrence of the Credit Committee and
approval of the Board before taking effect. Policy limits are established
upon referencing the regulatory requirements, market practice and our
own risk tolerance.

Weekly meetings are held among senior management to review the
performance of each existing credit exposure and new credit
applications. Members of Credit Committee meet monthly to examine
the overall portfolio, market trend and compliance-related issues.
Information on connected exposures, as approved by Credit Committee
members who are not connected parties, are provided to Board members
at each Board meeting.
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B ()

(i) MRARCRL : BRREZEH (ii) Template CR1: Credit Quality of Exposures
"X
@ | ® ©) (d ] (© ® (3]
R ASTCHNETRIRRAN
BOfE ARSI /R VBRI ARk | 3t : RIRB
BAT R B Z SRR o e EREe HEETHRE
Gross carrying amounts Or which ECL accounting B Re1E A
of provisions for credit losses on STC | KT {EH Y
approach exposures EHER#AR
S EE - Ligcll o B
Allowances Or which ECL | Net values
BRERL | WA | /impairments | SETREEERR] | SHCREEEG] | accounting
REBRR |RES R R ERES | FMMAREHES | provisions for
Defaulted Non- Allocated in Allocated in | credit losses on
exposures | defaulted regulatory regulatory | IRB approach
exposures category of category of exposures
specific provision collective
provision
As at 31 December
R2024512H31H 2024 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
| 1 |=x Loans 4 203312 - . J - 203312
| 2 |mmms  Debtsecurities e 179,715 | I J | 179715
ZEEAMEE  Off-balance sheet
| 3 ﬂ‘mkﬁﬁ% exposures - 15,904 - - - - 15,904
| 4 Jemst Total | 398931 | | - | 398931
@ | 0 © @ | () 0] )
For : BSTCRHREE T R R MR it
AUE AR TEH R EE AR R ]
U9 H 2 SR RO HHERS H : RIRB
Gross carrying amounts Or which ECL accounting FHEE T RO,
of provisions for credit losses on STC B e
approach exposures BRI R
BEMERRE
s/ B it R4 e
Allowances Or which ECL | Net values
R | SRy | Aimpairments | syE AR | SHIEHNE AR | accounting
FERRE | EERRAE KRG EEES | AAMMmHSE | provisions for
Defaulted Non- Allocated in Allocated in | credit losses on
exposures | defaulted regulatory regulatory IRB approach
exposures category of category of exposures
specific provision collective
provision
20244£6 H30H  As at 30 June 2024 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
1 e Loans i 154,324 - - I o 154,324
2 | Debtsecurities | - 108,781 y - | -| 108781
FEL{f(# Off-balance sheet
3 |ybmsgris  exposures ’ 34 ) . ) [ S
4 |amzt Total | 263453 | | -| | 263453
Ffs): SEEN20245 12831 H k2024 Note: There was an increase in the level of loans of the Group between the positions as at 31
F6H30HBZ EE5KEEFT December 2024 and 30 June 2024. The debt securities held as at 31 December 2024 were
EFF - H2024F 12031 HEH investments in Hong Kong Government exchange fund bills. All credit exposures of the
BT S BE BBUTINES Group as at both 31 December 2024 and 30 June 2024 were non-defaulted exposures.
BB RE - EE20245F
12H31H ;20246 H30HZ
Fif (5 RRRIEE B AREY
JR\ PR 4 -
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Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(i)  BARCR2 @ I BB (iii) Template CR2: Changes in Defaulted Loans and Debt Securities
L
(2)
R
Amount
#20244E12H31H As at 31 December 2024 HKS'000
1 P EEHREHRREESR R EERSE Defaulted loans and debt securities at end of the previous reporting |
i period
P lﬁﬁl*J BN R R TS :;::r;z and debt securitics that have defaulted since the last reporting 1
3 |ﬁ[§]§j ERERIL IRetumed to non-defaulted status B
4 e | Amounts written off 1
5 |gﬁﬂg§y |Other changes "
6 Imfﬂﬁiﬁ B R B AL il})ﬂerti'z:}l:ilt;ed loans and debt securities at end of the current reporting i
(a)
e
Amount
R20244E£6 5308 As at 30 June 2024 HKS'000
1 B E—ER SRR E SRS BT SE Defaulted loans and debt securities at end of the previous reporting i
fif: period
5 l PSS A R R R S PL:ﬁzz and debt securities that have defaulted since the last reporting 1
|$§ [EEESES=Cre) IRetumed to non-defaulted status :
lmflﬁgﬁ IAmounts written off i
IEﬂi’.Eﬁb |Other changes i
6 l s e E;f;:;ltcd loans and debt securities at end of the current reporting i
Bfak: $A20244E12H 31 H R 20244E6 H30H Note: Our Bank does not have any defaulted loans and debt securities as at 31
s AR TW IR A KRB TER & December 2024 and 30 June 2024,
BRI 2F -
(iv) FCRB: WREBRIAMEREEHE (iv) Table CRB: Additional Disclosure Related to Credit Quality of Exposures
A8id

BRBRIEZ ERTEHMEH &
WEEGRIFRE - CRERGREEY
ezt DR A B AR E AR 2 3k
B el EEREAERIEZ &
bR - EEEBRTBEALUTE
AR Z SEIR SR R R B s
I

- BEREREAVMBEE
- FIEEASZ ST R SEEY

- RBIRSEHCE 2 MBI L
B ESGARB TR PERE —
ESRTIR A TR Bl
2k

- SRR ST S
B -

Exposures are considered by the Group to be past due when repayments are
overdue by 3 months. Impaired exposures are those of which the discounted
future cash flows using the original effective interest rate are lower than their
existing carrying values. Impairment is considered when there is objective
evidence of the happening of the following events, including, but not limited to:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower;
= default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, grants to the borrower a concession that the Bank
would not otherwise consider; or

= it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization.
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(iv) RCRB : BRI BB AR IR RO 2 S eI ()

)

it AR EREE AR L BRI R
REfGAEZ EBALITAE -

WE Y BIRRE T RE Y 6T —EELLRAR
BEEREE BRORE - Pl SEERERK/
HBAEST R -

EERIER 20244212 5 31 5 520235812 H31H
HIEEE - TERFGRE A 2 RE S SR
ELaMHRZ 3. 1.11(a) » KfsE
3.1.11(b) Kffa3.3. 1 -

2024412831 B %2023 12 H 31 B EE L #E
A RE A - BHERARE - BARREA
EELARRRRE -

FRCRC * BRI BRAGA FI B e S AL 5 I

EEER B ULEN RS R E SRR
R - BT EREE R D
RIEEETEZ A XENERBEBERHB AN
BIFEE - ERTENZ EHEFREEFHE
fE DAREB B 1 SRR (B (PR B R

2024128310 » DERB R EiidsFE
H > £5505Y Rl B #8189, 401, 58771 Bt
13,910,6587T * MiABIRAEBHRZER EH
HREEE > N EE(E 5 B %351, 400, 0007T R
#20,104,8277C - REMEREET €Y
s By e (B > 95 2% ¢ R A ANEET
4.8% - i PEBEFESRIENZ FhEFR
EE A

EEEHEEEARRARINZ BIRRE -

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

i)

)

115

Table CRB: Additional Disclosure Related to Credit Quality of
Exposures (Continued)

There are no differences between the definitions of past due
exposures and defaulted exposures for accounting purposes and those
for regulatory purposes.

Restructured exposures are those exposures that the Group has
granted concession in its repayment, such as, a longer repayment
period and/or lower installment amounts, when compared to the
original exposures.

The breakdown of exposures by geographical areas, industry and
residual maturity as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are
given in Note 3.1.11 (a), Note 3.1.11(b) and Note 3.3.1 of the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

The Group does not have any impaired exposures, past due
exposures, defaulted exposures nor restructured exposures as at 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

Table CRC: Qualitative Disclosures Related to Credit Risk
Mitigation

The Group accepts first legal property mortgages and listed securities
as collateral for secured loans. Updated valuation of properties under
mortgages are obtained at least annually for credit review purposes or
when changes to the credit facility lines are proposed. Listed
securities pledged to the Group are revalued on a daily basis to ensure
the prudent loan-to-security value ratios have been preserved.

The carrying amounts of loans secured by mortgaged properties and
listed securities amounted to HK$189,401,587 and HK$13,910,658
while the fair value of these mortgaged properties and shares in listed
companies were HK$351,400,000 and HK$20,104,827 respectively
as at 31 December 2024. Of the total mortgaged properties,
residential properties accounted for 25.2% of the total value of such
properties while commercial properties were 74.8% of total
mortgaged properties. All listed securities pledged to the Group as
loan collaterals were blue-chip listed equities.

The Group does not net its on- and off-balance sheet exposures.
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(vi) BLRRCR3 : GETTHRAGE A B A HE R

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(vi) Template CR3: Overview of Recognized Credit Risk Mitigation

(@ (b1) (b) (d) ®
D fEr
DIEEFTEA L | MR EAE | fTETRSA
FERBERR | FRERRR | FREZER | REZERX | SEREBZ
% IRERE ] < E BB R
Exposures |Exposurestobe| Exposures Exposures Exposures
unsecured: secured secured by secured by ssecured by
carrying recognized recognized recognized
amount collateral guarantees credit
derivative
contracts
20244121318 As at 31 December 2024 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
[ 1 |&x [Loans 203,312
| 2 |[mmses | Debt securities 179,715
| 3 |est | Totat 383,027 -
| 4 |smems |of which defautted
@) (b1) (b) (4 ®
PAEER{EA
DISEETHEA & | DIRTTHRIE | fTETRA
IRGARERR | AREERR | FREZRR | RBZREX | OffFRZ
& - AR | Rk ® BB R
Exposures | Exposures to be| Exposures Exposures Exposures
unsecured: secured secured by secured by ssecured by
carrying recognized recognized recognized
amount collateral guarantees credit
derivative
contracts
F20244£6 4300 As at 30 June 2024 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
| 1 [|sem | Loans 154,324
| 2 |ffFsaEse |Debt securities 108,781 - - -
| 3 |ast [ Totat 263,105
| 4 |rmEms |of which defaulted
FifaE: Note:

FELA_ERERRCR3A (2) FIFTER &5 72 20244E 12 A 31H
B20245F6 F30H 2 2SR BUR T 5 2 H
FER ol (E H R B BB s I E AT 2 B3R - (EREE
TIEEBINRT ZEEMIMNEA ST -

All loan amounts reported in Column (a) in Template CR3 above as at 31
December 2024 and 30 June 2024 are fully secured by collaterals other than
recognized Credit Risk Mitigation. Debt securities represent exchange fund
bills issued by the Hong Kong government which are unsecured.
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(vii) HRRCR : {21 FH BB AR A B v WS

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(vii) Template CR4: Credit Risk Exposures and Effects of Recognized Credit Risk

RS i 2 B —BSCEF A Mitigation - for BSC Approach
@ | ® © | @ | ®
I CCF B A {2 FH B 8 1 | 6 CCF BB A T B | o B o B 5 B B i
SEERNZ R RN R R & isbidic
Exposures pre-CCF and pre- | Exposures post-CCF and post-| RWA and RWA density
CRM CRM
REANER | REAKE | REAME | REARSE |RRIMS| R
e SN RIS SR ] BEE
On-balance Off-balance On-balance Off-balance RWA RWA density
ﬁ‘_ﬁﬂ?xﬂ-ﬂ‘:lﬁﬁ 31H As at 31 December 2024 sheet amount | sheet amount | sheet amount | sheet amount
R R Exposure classes HKS$'000
‘Eﬁ"ﬁ'ﬁﬂ!ﬂﬁﬁﬁm Sovereign exposures 182,325' - 182,325 -l 17,972 9.86%
2 |NBEfRERRE |PSE exposures .| 1 N _| _| 0.00% |
%BEREIRTREBE Multilateral development bank
3 ] E E - - 0,00%
= exposures
4 |rrmiiaie | Bank exposures | 167,093] | 167,093 | 33,419 20.00%|
5 |memE |Cash items 2,419 ¥ 2,419] i - 0.00%|
E i tof
BSSSARA il doiveryon
6 ?’?_Ziﬁg?;‘kg% transactions entered into on - - - - - 0.00%
e TP a basis other than a deliver-
versus -payment basis
7 |emmeen |Residential mortgage loans | 45,598| 932 45,598 | 45,598| 100,00%
8 |strmsEm |Other exposures | 675,903 14,972] 675,903 4 675900 100.00%|
g BAGRBmAIOAE, | Significant exposures to | | ) 0.00%
| g i commercial entities - B & 3 Sl
10 |jest | Total | 1,073338] 15904 1,073,338 | 772,889 72.01%|
@ | ® © | @ @ | o
K CCF B B8 P BB 1 s | 6 CCIF B o 10 Y G | i R T % B e
RN ERRE HRAENZ BB RE JEE
Exposures pre-CCF and pre- | Exposures post-CCF and post-| RWA and RWA density
CRM CRM
REAME | REARR | REARE | REARR |RRIER| R mE
AR SMBOE PIBER SR 2| BEE
On-balance Off-balance On-balance Off-balance RWA RWA density
JR20244E6 F 30H As at 30 June 2024 sheet amount | sheet amount | sheet amount | sheet amount
Jedoe skl Exposure classes HKS$'000
IT B T A S Sovereign exposures 1 13,767| -l 1 13,'?67I = 10,878 9.56%)
2 |amEfirEREE  |PSE exposures | - § 2 ] 0.00%
LB EIRTT R R Multilateral development bank
3 - - - - - 0.00%
¥ exposures
4 |spermisRiE |Bank exposures 269,280 - 269,280 ¥ 53,856 20.00%
5 |memEA | Cash items 2,809] - 2,809 ¥ ¥ 0.00%
E } f
DUSEBHIALGE  [ooronis B Iepeeto
BT 5 Sy
6 f}ii?gﬂﬁ AR transactions entered into on 3 = J | ) 0.00%
# IR a basis other than a deliver-
= versus -payment basis
7 |remmes | Residential mortgage loans 29,312 254| 29,312 | 29319 100.00%
8 |sinmgEE |other exposures 623,525| 94| 623,525 | 623523  100.00%|
9 B ENE AR Significant exposures to y—
PR commercial entities i : by - - .00%
[ 10 |umat | Total | 1,038,603 348] 1,038,693 | 7m17569)| 69.08%|
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(vii) BUKCRA : {2 I BRI B BB ET B GE F BR S

R W —BSCET IR (M)

et

PR2024FTHEF - BERBERANZBBERE
AERER - B2 > FAEREAEERZ
Mz HE8ETEL - 20244128318 »
VT ESHERNE TR R 2 SNEE S
i - S—J7m 0 SRITRIEFRBUKERIEFT
TRE -

2024F 1231 HEE S K EZ BEAH
RAE TR E RS R A ERGAE - £
EHEEFREUERBEAR R REZ
A5 [NFTE & 2 (X SRR ERH 2 &
MBEX - HERIE SRS - Al
B OO T AR IS S5 - iR
EESE - CRBEN TRNEESERINE
gEn

AEEFERZ BEEINESEEE2024F6H30H
AR EF - BREEM024E12[31H Y
ARG RE R EMERRIEERSZ
K > % E R AIERTE100%2 (5 FH EbE
FEE - MEELASRIT R A IE20%.2 15 A R
ERT  UERE - SRERIEBIRRER?
0244E6 H30H 2269.08% » FFZE20244E12H3
1HZ72.01% -

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(vii) Template CR4: Credit Risk Exposures and Effects of Recognized

Credit Risk Mitigation - for BSC Approach (Continued)

Note :

Overall on-balance sheet exposures have only slightly increased
during the second half of 2024. However, the mix between the
different exposure classes has changed. More funds have been placed
with sovereign via investment in exchange fund bills. On the other
hand, lower level of interbank placements as at 31 December 2024
are noted.

The higher level of on-balance sheet residential mortgage loans and
other exposures were noted for 31 December 2024. Residential
mortgage loans in the above templates include loans and overdrafts
secured by residential property mortgages, as defined by the
completion instruction of the Capital Adequacy Return. The higher
draw down by customers on such loans together with the partial lower
of line amounts granted to customers were reflected in the lower level
of off-balance sheet amount, representing the undrawn line amounts.

The RWA of the Group as at year end has increased from 30 June
2024. This was directly resulted from the higher level of residential
mortgage loans and other exposures with credit risk weighting of
100% which were higher than the credit risk weighting of bank
exposures of 20% for 31 December 2024. As a result, the RWA
density has increased from 69.08% as at 30 June 2024 to 72.01% as
at 31 December 2024.
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Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(viii) TSIRRCRS © ETRFRE I AR b Al EE (viii) Template CRS: Credit Risk Exposures by Asset Classes and by Risk
SYH{E B i A& M —BSCET A Weights - for BSC Approach
20244E12 5318 As at 31 December 2024 @ ®) © @ © ® ® | ® @ |
B Risk Weight i R R BoR
(EMCCFRBAE
e R R
5 5 5 g 5 o " Ffh A
0% 10% 20% 5% 50% 100% | 250%| el eredit risk
exposures amount
(post CCF and post
CRM)
B8 R AR Exposure class HKS '000
| 1| EH T Rk Sovereign exposures 2,610 179,715 < o u - & 182,325
| 2 |amspmmEE |ps:s s ! | | | | : !
e Multilateral development bank
| 3 |@mmmwm L | | I | | I I R
| 4 |sfTERRR | Bank exposures | A 167,093 - ) j| | | 167,093 |
| 5 |meEis | Cash items 2,419 | i i N ] 1 1 1 2419
IHR e othpica ety Exposures in respect of failed
(P LTI B 3 delivery on transactions entered i i | i | ) ] |
{F AT ERIRK into on a basis other than a °
i — delivery-versus-payment basis
7 |tEiaitk |Residential mortgage loans -l | | | ! 45,598 | | | 45,598
8 |HAitm B RS |Other exposures i | il 1 | 675903 - - 675,903
SRR AR Significant exposures to ] A i i i
gl commercial entities i )
10 st |rotar 50| 119m5| 167,003 | ] {7150 | . | 1,073,338 |
20244E6 H30H As at 30 June 2024 (a) (b) (©) (Y] (e) (f) ()] (h) i) I
Bl Risk Weight CEEEL T ]
(EMCCFRIRE
BB Rt
0% 10% 20% 35% 50% 100%| 250% ofeﬂr% - credfrzl)ﬁ
exposures amount
(post CCF and post
CRM)
BRI BT Exposure class HKS '000
1 |EFEREERE |Sumnign exposures 4,986 108,781 - : u o b d 113,767
2 |nempERRE |?sr-. oxposures | . | | | I | . )
3 |%3§§E$Hﬁﬁtﬂﬁf¥d)§ B | | | | | | | I "
exposures
4 |srTmisiRi Bank exposures -l | 269,280 | i g i i : 269,280
s |memH Cash items 2,809 | i i 1 ] ] 1 ] 2,809
DAS SRR RAS S Exposures in respect of failed
HIB R THIR 5K |delivery on transactions entered
(BTSN R R into on a basis other than a = - ) 1 -
i delivery-versus-payment basis
7 |[{EEERER Resideatial mortgage loans - | | | 1 20312 | 1 29,312
8 |sLAmBRESS Other exposures -l - 2 | ]  e235s5] | i 623,525
9 B AR E AR Significant exposures to I | _| | | | ]
gty commercial entities ] . i . X B i
| o |asar |Total 7,795 | 108781 | 269,280 -| | 652,837] - - 1,038,693 |

fifeE: B ERERRRIER 2024512531 02024
FOA30HEEE LA - ERANRARINEE
STBZKPE R HEMRGEER10% -
B—7H » B2024F6H30HA » sRITEERIK
E2KTHF TR - ERERERNT &
SIEHAINERS TR AIGEL -

Note: Sovereign exposures as at 31 December 2024 showed a significant
increase from 30 June 2024, resulting from a higher level of investment in
exchange fund bills which are attracting a 10% credit risk weighting. On
the other hand, the level of bank exposures decreased from 30 June 2024.
The funds released from such assets have been applied mainly to the
investment in exchange fund bills.
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0]

Wﬁﬁ?ﬂZﬂ*&ﬂﬁ - B B B

SATRRA 2 FIRERR ( “SRITHRFIRER" )79
BRRR K 2 T AR BB T B B SR SR TRR Y
FIRGRERE » FIRPEEEREERBRINE
B i e ER 2 A58 R -

SECEY (R EEEAEFIRITIRFIR R
BHZBUR - ZBSGEEN HE BRI EE BT
B2 BB BORFM IR "SRATIR NIV FI R E R
NAREZ R TRFIR R EELHC ER - &
FRCZRARZESY  REEHBEENRIRT
Z B EHE R R SR TIRFIR AR - &
REAGEIREEEE SRERETEERS - i
AERAZ RSP AEREEBHESS
BRSRTTHRFIZR B E 4 R S A L
TR I SRTT AR B T > £ B R A
BREMBRYMARZ KT REE DB R
TSR TAR AR B B e R - BENAMES
S IR IR, - BT R B ST
R

FRRP A RE  SRTIRFIRERRBORIF 2
it 5 RESRTTAR FISR R < B R 2HE ST > 2
B SR B 3T B EE Bt S0 B SRATRR AR
EBRBURA < BB IRAE - 2% b R A (e R
GREL PRI R 2 AT e B m S A R A 1 (B

RECUREME) BUFFIS A CFRIBIRA ) Z % -

BB AR M T AR AR (5 A S 2 RIS
EATEBIEOSH - SRITHRFIHR IR ~ BB A BE K
BB —(E F RRA BT R SR GURAR 2 AR
RS HETT - LEFME TR B R N R R
BEEBGFF S ALE R B AT 2 SRR 1 Rk
RmEH > AN EEARTIEEARESSY
H ERXTHERGERER® -

RN ERE R B E R SRR AT 2RI TRRITE
Rl St RET - EERE T2 e R EFRE
MZFE

() EEGRRAEAREFREEEK

(&) SEZHERIER  HOEERRERER
WG EHAZ T RRK - ZEFERZ RS
FIRERIR H IR A R BRI TR AR AR
HEEZE -

() REZBEER—MERZERE SR AE
617 i - {ER% R =T 4 E AR SRR
[B].Z B RETRIFTIRE - SEMFA L 5 < FE 50
FEARREEEIERZ R ERERIFEE

(1) EELOEFEFERRESEL RS
WAS RS BN 22 - WARE > &E
ERREREF -

Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book

(i) Table IRRBBA Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book - Risk

Management and Objectives and Policies

Interest rate risk in the banking book ("IRRBB") is defined as the risk
of loss to the Group due to possible changes in the level of interest
rates impacting interest rates sensitive assets and liabilities and off-
balance sheet items in the banking book of the Group.

The Group has established a Board approved policy on the risk
govermnance management of IRRBB. The subject policy refers to
elements of IRRBB management framework as advocated in the
Supervisory Policy Manual IR-1 "Interest Rate Risk in the Banking
Book" issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. The monitoring
of IRRBB of the Group is delegated by the Board to the Risk
Committee, ALCO and senior management of the Bank. With Risk
Committee overseeing the overall risk management framework of the
Group, ALCO concentrates on direct monitoring of IRRBB via its
reviews of periodic reports submitted by management on IRRBB
impact and gives necessary instructions on the Group's level and type
of interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities for the controlling of
IRRBB of the Group. ALCO also conducts regular reviews of interest
rate trends, risk profile and stress testing results.

Risk appetite in IRRBB has been thoroughly considered by the Board
when approving the Group's IRRBB policy. The risk appetite has been
reflected in the risk limits established by the Group and duly
documented in the IRRBB policy. Such risk limits serve as the basis
for on-going monitoring of the impact of possible future interest rate
changes on the economic value of equity ("EVE") and net interest
income ("NII").

With the current structure of the Group's HKD interest rate sensitive
position being more than 95% of the total interest rate sensitive
position in all currencies, the monitoring of IRRBB is effected through
the compilation and review of related risk reports on the HKD interest
rate sensitive positions as at the end of each calendar month. Such
reports are compiled based on the same scenarios for the EVE and NII
impact analysis as the regulatory returns and are submitted to ALCO at
its monthly meeting for review and discussion.

In the measurement of IRRBB for both internal monitoring and
regulatory reporting purposes, the Group relies on the following
assumptions and characteristics of its interest rate position profile:

(a) The Group does not provide any fixed rate retail loans.

(b) The non-maturity deposits of the Group, including current and
savings deposits, are assumed to continue into the foreseeable
future. The earliest repricing date of such deposits is used to
determine the impact of IRRBB on the Group.

(c) The retail time deposits of the Group are normally subject to early
redemption risk by the deposit customers. However, such risk is
mitigated by a material penalty applied on time deposits for pre-
maturity redemptions. The historical pattern of the Group in this
regard reflects a very insignificant early withdrawal rate on retail
time deposits.

(d) The Group assesses the impact on earnings under the eamings
perspective approach, based on the two standard interest rate
shock scenarios while assuming a constant balance sheet.
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Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book (Continued)
(i) Table IRRBBA Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book - Risk Management

and Objectives and Policies (Continued)

The Group also conducts periodic stress-tests on IRRBB for the measurement of
its vulnerability to loss resulted from its interest rate positions under stressed
market conditions. The results of the stress-tests performed are reviewed by
ALCO, which gives specific instructions on the composition and level of
interest rate positions when it sees fit.

The overall risk management framework on IRRBB is subject to periodic
reviews and audits conducted by the internal compliance unit and the internal
auditors of the Group.

(ii) Template IRRBB1 Quantitative Information on Interest Rate Risk in

Banking Book

The table below provides information on the adverse change in the economic
value of equity ("EVE") and also the adverse change in net interest income
("NII") over the next 12 months under each of the prescribed interest rate shock
scenarios in respect of the Group's interest rate exposures arising from its
banking book position for the current annual reporting date as at 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023.

(5% ' 000) (in HKS'000) (a) ()
ES -2 AT FFIR T
- Lo ABGEEWE | ABHENE | ABABKA | ABRIBKA
Adverse impact Adverse impact Adverse impact Adverse impact
AEVE AEVE A NII ANII
o] Period 20244125 31H 2023412 H31H 2024512 31H 20234E12H31R
31-Dec-2024 31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2024 31-Dec-2023
1 e frE b Parallel up 1 32 - -
2 SEFFRET Parallel down 3,145 191 6,178 5,060
3 BER Steepener - -
4 | EE Flattener 609 1,724
5 T Short rate up 2 1,644
6 AR N[E Short rate down 284 -
A= Maximum 3,145 1,724 6,178 5,060
. 20244E12H 318 20234127318

i e 31-Dec-2024 31-Dec-2023

8 4@?2& Tier 1 capital 399,294 395,494

EEMREREEHESEMERGN R
SRFMIR “SRITHRAEIFISRIESE" PIFTHREL -

WA T
1 7 L AR R A — B T

2

& FFER

AT - FrAR R — B TR
MR

BRIEAY SR TR AR L7
W) - ST T BRI TR
KR P R R R IRRA LA -
HTHBR G R SHRFI%
TR - R B R T 0% -
SRR R S ) R

R T2 &R HTa TREERGRE
B ZEF B REARZ A FIRE - BIREZ
SBFEMA G TRR40.40%( 20234 : FITEA T &

E ’

31.64%) - —HH @ BHEAREESRAR

R EERRBRARFIRE » &REKFZ—
PEARGEAE0. 15%(20234E: 0.44%) ZIHD -

The prescribed interest rate shock scenarios are provided by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority in their Supervisory Policy Manual IR-1 "Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book" and are described as follows:

Parallel up: A constant parallel shock up across all time buckets
Parallel down: A constant parallel shock down across all time buckets

Steepener: Short rates down and long rates up
Flattener: Short rates up and long rates down

Short rate up: Rates up are greatest at shortest time bucket and diminish towards
current rates in longer time buckets

Short rate down: Rates down are greatest at shortest time bucket and diminish
towards current rates in longer time buckets

Based on the results of the above analysis, the parallel down shock scenario
would result in the most significant adverse impact on the Group's net interest
income, i.e. a 40.40% (2023: parallel down shock 31.64%) decrease in the
Group's NIL On the other hand, the flattener scenario would cause the largest
adverse impact on economic value of equity, which would lead to 0.15% (2023:
0.44%) decrease in the Tier 1 Capital at the consolidated level.
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Disclosure on Remuneration

() BISREMA FTEAGUREECE ()  Table REMA Remuneration Policy
AEIRITHIE LA E I — % The Bank establishes a Remuneration Policy which governs the set up of a
BEFREEHE T 7 FHiLERA 23 Remuneration Committee and formulates the principles of remuneration
FHBUR - $RTTZ ERBUR(BEREEIEH determination for its staff. The Remuneration Policy of the Bank promotes
—ERERAIRIT 2 EE ) RRET an overall scheme of remuncration that matches the Bank's business
[ R A TR - S TR B - objectives, risk tolerance and risk management framework.
EHFMZE S HREERHEFEE The composition and responsibility of the Group's Remuneration
AR 8 A M B B STE N © 20244 Committee has been set out in note 5 of the Supplementary Financial
VA3 HILEEFREfT 2RSS  » # Information. During its two meetings held in the year ended 31 December
HMEESRBAT ZHHBCERBEEY 2024, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved the annual
eI R AR T S AR B (T YE remuneration to be paid to the Bank's senior management (being those
BB/ Bh AR E s D A R EER holding position as Deputy/Assistant General Manager or above) and key
T (LT RS R TR 14 B e = personnel (being heads of key functions as stipulated in Fourteenth
ERE TS ) Y EEER - ZE ST Schedule of the Banking Ordinance) in accordance to the Bank's
AFTERNBUE > SEOIR BRI E Remuneration Policy and Board instructions. It also approved the annual
B R A N 8 - BT review of the Bank's Remuneration Policy where minor changes were
15T S R 5T > He s made. The basis of determining the annual emolument adjustment payable
R TANE SR EERER TES by the Bank to its senior management and key personnel is by reference to
IZEE%EEH%H% - it - BERKRE Board approved benchmark based on public sector indicators in this area.
HINE Y 8 THeA T ISR Lsm> Accordingly, employees who are responsible for risk control functions are
AL - ST EU%%%K@ remunerated independently of the businesses they oversee. No individual
:}‘;EEQ B7ME - director of the Bank will be involved in decisions relating to his/her own
R remuneration,
2024512731 H IEEEN » S48 The total fees paid to the members of Remuneration Committee during the
MZEE SR & 7 RS B3 1,200,000 year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2023:
TT(20234 © #H81,200,0007T) » fEHEH HK$1,200,000) which were paid for their overall workloads and
HEEE R T E R SR - commitment to the Board as a whole.
(i) FRRRREM1 #EBABAEREAEE B (ii) Template REM1 Remuneraiton Awarded During Financial Year
182024412 H31 H At 31 December 2024 (a) (b)
| [ (o ROEAE | rmar
Remuneration amount and quantitative information Key personnel
management
2 8 T. A% Number of employees 2 6
BT Fixed HEERH - o
i ixed remuneration B R EIGER)
2 Total fixed remuneration of which: 23005785 4,371,002
cash-based (HK$)
4 |44%7H Total remuneration 2,407,735 4,371,002
1#20234£12H31H At 31 December 2023 (@ (b)
| (s Rt kst B T
Remuneration amount and quantitative information Key personnel
management
2 B T A% Number of employees 3 6
- HRE TR - 2
i3 ixed remuneration : 3
3 B RILBECENY) . . 3,613,140 3,772,882
Total fixed remuneration of which:
cash-based (HK$)
4 |4&E5HY Total remuneration 3,613,140 3,772,882
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Disclosure on Remuneration (Continued)

(i) Template REM1 Remuneraiton Awarded During Financial Year
(Continued)

Note:

The Group only provides fixed remuneration to its senior management
and key personnel in the form of salary and allowance in cash. No
variable remuneration, whether in the form of cash, shares and share-
linked instruments and other instruments, has been provided by the
Group to its senior management and key personnel. There were no
deferred remuneration nor retained remuneration, whether vested or
unvested, awarded, in the form of payment or reduction through
performance adjustments, to the Group's senior management and key
personnel during both the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023.

The decrease in the number of employees for senior management in the
year ended 31 December 2024 was due to the fact that senior
management of the Group was more stable during this year when
compared to the previous year when there were more personnel changes.
However, the level of fixed remuneration paid to these staff has
increased as a result of salary adjustment to such personnel. On the other
hand, the number of employees for key personnel has increased in the
year ended 31 December 2024 owing to the staff change in this category.
The level of fixed remuneration paid to such key personnel has decreased
mainly due to vacancy among such key personnel during part of the year
ended 31 December 2024.

(iii) Template REM2 Special Payments

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the
Group did not have any new sign-ons, severance payments or guaranteed
bonuses awarded to its senior management and key personnel. It has
therefore not included disclosure Template REM2 on special payments,
which is considered not to be relevant and would carry nil balances in
such template if published.

(iv) Template REM3 Deferred Remuneration

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the
Group did not have any outstanding deferred remuneration not pay out
any deferred remuneration in any forms for its senior management and
key personnel. It has therefore not included disclosure Template REM3
on deferred remuneration, which is considered not to be relevant and
would carry nil balances in such temple if published.

Disclosure Templates on Counterparty Credit Risk,
Securitization Exposures and Market Risk

The Bank does not engage in any derivative transactions, securities financing
transactions or securitization transactions as at and during the year ended 31
December 2024 nor has plan to engage in such transactions in the coming year,
and has therefore not included any disclosure templates on counterparty credit
risk and securitization exposures, which are considered not to be relevant and
would carry nil balances on such templates if published.

The Bank has been exempted from the calculation of risk weighted assets for
market risk and accordingly has been exempted from disclosing templates on
market risk.
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Capital Charge for Credit, Market and Operational Risks

The capital ratio in note 3.5 to the financial statements represents the
consolidated ratio of the position of the Bank for regulatory purposes as at
31 December 2024 and 2023 computed in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules.

The capital requirements for each class of exposures are summarised as
follows :

®

@i

(iii)

Capital charge for credit risk

BEAREXRK

Capital requirement

2024 2023

HK$°000 HK$°000

Sovereign exposures 1,438 1,420

Bank exposures 2,673 2,362

Residential mortgage loans 3,648 2,020
Other exposures which are not past

due exposures 54,072 54,462
Total capital charge for on-balance

sheet exposures 61,831 60,264

Direct credit substitutes - -

Trade-related contingencies - -
Total capital charge for off-balance

sheet exposures = 2

Total capital charge for credit risk 61,831 60,264

The Bank uses the Basic Approach for calculating credit risk. This
disclosure is made by multiplying the Bank's risk-weighted amount
derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the Bank's
actual “regulatory capital”.

Capital charge for operational risk

2024 2023
HKS$°000 HK$°000
Capital charge for operational risk 5,648 4,352

The Bank uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating
operational risk.

Market risk capital charge

2024
HKS$°000

2023
HK$°000

Market risk capital charge - -

The Bank was granted by the HKMA an exemption from the
calculation of market risk under the exemption criteria under section
22(1) of the Banking (Capital) Rules on 22 March 2016 and has
excluded market risk in the calculation of capital ratio since then and
as at 31 December 2024,
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Disclosure on Fair Value Practices on Financial Instruments for CA-S-
10 Guideline issued by the HKMA

The Group holds listed equity investments measured at FVOCI which are
subject to fair value measurement as stipulated in the CA-8-10 Guideline
issued by the HKMA. The valuation technique used by the Group to
value the subject listed equity investments measured at FVOCI has been
set out in note 3.4 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
while the sensitivity analysis of such investments are detailed in note
3.2.1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group uses prices quoted at the stock exchanges for each of the listed
equity investments measured at FVOCI to mark the investments to their
fair values on periodic basis. The fair value measurement and calculation
process is performed by a department independent of the risk taking unit
and is subject to stringent controls supervised by senior management of
the Group. The fair values of the listed equity investments measured at
FVOCI are reviewed regularly by senior management and the Board.

Climate Risk Management

Following to the issuance of Supervisory Policy Manual GS-1 “Climate
Risk Management” by the HKMA in December 2021, banks are required
to disclose climate-related information that addresses the financial risks
and opportunities posed by climate change.

Climate risk is broadly classified into physical risk and transition risk.
Physical risk refers to the impact of climate and weather-related events
and long-term progressive shifts of climate that impact directly on the
Group through events like property damage and reduced productivity.
Transition risk refers to the financial risk that results from the process of
adjustment towards a lower-carbon economy which may include changes
in climate policy of governments, technologies advancements or changes
in the market sentiment.

With regard to climate risk, the Group has put in place a Climate Risk
Management Policy which was approved by the Board in October 2022.
The Board has the ultimate responsibility for the Group’s climate risk
management and resilience. Risk Committee has been delegated with the
prime responsibility for overseeing the development and implementation
of climate risk policy and strategy while the Executive Committee ensures
adequate resources, systems and controls are in place to support the
implementation of the climate risk strategy. Other parties that take part in
the day-to-day management of climate risk include the compliance
function, heads of various departments and the internal audit function.

The Group commits to the following strategies adopted for its
management of climate risk:

- to integrate climate risk considerations into its strategic planning
process;

- to ensure that climate risks are identified, measured, monitored,
reported and controlled through active Board and management
oversight, adequate policies, procedures and limits, efficient
management information systems and comprehensive audits;

- to keep abreast of the latest standards and development on climate
risk and adopts industry recommendations on the subject; and

- to promote staff awareness on carbon neutrality and the carbon
footprint of the Group’s operation and adopts practices, products
and equipment that are environmental friendly.
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Climate Risk Management (Continued)

The Group has identified that the lending portfolio, the investment
portfolio and the business operations to be the three channels that are
prone to potential impacts of climate-related risks. The assessment of
these channels further identified the following potential impacts:

(i) Credit risk — credit risk of the Group’s lending portfolio will be
affected via the widening of bomrowers’ credit premium and
lowering of the value of loan collaterals due to climate-related
damages or policy changes

(ii) Market risk — investment securities and investment properties held
will be affected through price fluctuations;

(iii) Operational risk — operations of the Group will be subject to the risk
of business disruption, costs associated with property repairs and
compliance with new rules; and

(iv) Reputation risk — poor management of climate risk will adversely
affect the reputation of the Group.

At the initial stage, simple metrics are planned to be adopted by the
Group to periodically measure and report climate risks. Examples of such
metrics include the amount of loans exposed to climate sensitive sectors,
the amount of loans with collaterals exposed to climate risk,
environmental risk rating of the equity investments made by the Group,
are adopted by the Group to measure climate risks, the Group’s properties
held and its operation location by geographic segments and the number of
incident events and loss related to climate risk. Periodic stress-tests on
financial impacts are to be performed on severe but plausible scenarios of
physical risk cases where climate changes result in business disruption to
the Bank’s operations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI SANG BANK LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability )

Opinion
What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of Tai Sang Bank Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group™) set out on pages 8 to 78,
which comprise:
- the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024;
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory

QOur opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code™), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
directors’ report and supplementary financial information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
gither intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI SANG BANK LIMITED (CONTINUED)
( Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability )

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control televant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

= Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
cntities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposcs of the group audit . We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS
Certified Public Accountants

HONG KONG, 27 March 2025
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